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Sub.: Notice of a Meeting of the Equity shareholders of the Company pursuant to NCLT
order dated 14™ July 2022 and modified order dated 04" August 2022

Ref.: In the matter of the Scheme of Amalgamation of Number Theory Software Private

Limited (“the Transferor Company”) with Newgen Software Technologies Limited
(“the Transferee Company”) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.

Dear Sir/ Ma'am,

Pursuant to Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, we hereby submit the copy of the Notice along with annexures of a meeting
of the Equity shareholders pursuant to the order dated 14™ July 2022 and modified order dated
04™ August 2022 of the New Delhi Bench of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal
(“NCLT™).

In pursuance of the NCLT Order and as directed therein and in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, a meeting of the Equity shareholders of the Company will be held on Saturday
24" September 2022 at 11:30 A.M. (IST) through video conferencing (“VC”) / other audio visual
means (“OAVM”).

The Notice of the NCLT Convened Meeting is being sent via e-mail to all the equity shareholders
for whom the Company has registered e-mail IDs and physical copies are being sent at their
registered addresses via courier to all other equity shareholders whose e-mail IDs are not
available.

The details such as the manner of: (i) casting vote through e-voting; and (ii) attending the meeting
through VC / OAVM have been set out in the Notice of the respective meetings. An equity
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shareholder, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial
Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e., Monday, 9% September 2022
only shall be entitled to exercise his/ her/ its voting rights on the resolution proposed in the notice
and attend the meeting of the equity shareholders.

A copy of said Notice of NCLT Convened Meeting of equity shareholders is available on the
website of the Company at www.newgensoft.com.

This is for your kind information and record.

Thanking you.
For Newgen Software Technologies Limited

Digitally signed by
AMAN AMAN MOURYA

Date: 2022.08.22
MOU RYA 16:33:26 +05'30'

Aman Mourya
Company Secretary

Encl.: a/a
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY
LAW TRIBUNAL

NEW DELHI BENCH, NEW DELHI
C.A.(CAA) 72/ND/2022
IN THE MATTER OF SEC 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND
IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF
NUMBER THEORY SOFTWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
(The Transferor Company / Applicant No. 1)
WITH
NEWGEN SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(The Transferee Company/ Applicant No.2)
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CREDITORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
UNDER
SECTION 230 & 232 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF
NEWGEN SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED PURSUANT TO THE ORDER
DATED 14™ JULY 2022 (FURTHER MODIFIED BY THE TRIBUNAL ON 4™ AUGUST
2022) OF THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, NEW DELHI
BENCH.

To,
All the Equity Shareholders
Newgen Software Technologies Limited

Notice is hereby given that by an order dated 14t July 2022 and modified order dated 4th
August 2022, the New Delhi Bench of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal
(“Hon’ble NCLT” or “Tribunal”) has directed to convene a meeting of the Equity
Shareholders of Newgen Software Technologies Limited for the purpose of considering,



and if thought fit, approving with or without modification the Scheme of Amalgamation of
Number Theory Software Private Limited (“the Transferor Company”) with Newgen
Software Technologies Limited (“the Transferee Company”) and their respective
Shareholders and Creditors on September 24, 2022, at 11:30 AM (IST).

Pursuant to the said Tribunal order and as directed herein, the meeting of the equity
shareholders of the Transferee Company (“Meeting”) will be held through video
conferencing (“VC”)/other audio visual means (“OAVM”) in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Act to consider, and if thought fit, pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution for approval of the scheme by a requisite majority
as prescribed under section 230(1) and (6) read with section 232(1) of the Companies Act
2013:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromise, Arrangement and
Amalgamations) Rules 2016 and the National Company Law Tribunal Rules 2016 and other
applicable Rules, circulars and notifications framed thereunder including amendment
thereof, and such other applicable Regulations, Section 2(1B) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and pursuant to the Memorandum of
Association of the Company and subject to the sanction/confirmation by the Honourable
National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), New Delhi Bench and such other Statutory/
Government authority(ies) as may be necessary or as directed by the Hon’ble NCLT being
obtained and subject to such terms and conditions and modification(s) as may be imposed,
prescribed or suggested by the Hon’ble NCLT or other appropriate authorities, the
Amalgamation of Number Theory Software Private Limited (“the Transferor Company”)
with Newgen Software Technologies Limited (“the Transferee Company”) and their
shareholders and creditors, as a going concern with effect from the close of business on 1st
April 2022 or such other date as the Hon’ble NCLT may direct or approve under the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Appointed Date”), as per the terms
and conditions mentioned in the draft Scheme of Amalgamation as circulated, and laid
before the meeting, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all
such acts, deeds, matters, and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite,
desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this Resolution and to effectively
implement the Scheme and to make any modifications or amendments to the Scheme at any
time and for any reason whatsoever, and to accept such modifications, amendments,
limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the
Hon’ble NCLT while sanctioning the amalgamation embodied in the Scheme or by any
authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or
doubts or difficulties that may arise as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme,
as the Board may deem fit and proper.



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to sign,
seal and deliver all documents, agreements, and deeds and perform all acts, matters, and
things and to take all such steps as may be necessary or desirable to give effect to this
resolution.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the equity shareholders shall have the facility and option
of voting on the resolution for approval of the Scheme by casting their votes (a) through e-
voting system available at the Meeting to be held virtually or (b) by remote electronic
voting (“remote e-voting”) during the period as stated below:

REMOTE E-VOTING PERIOD

Commencement of remote e-voting 21st September 2022

End of remote voting 23rd September 2022

The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by the e-voting Agency for voting at 5:00 PM
(IST) on 23rd September 2022.

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of
Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e., 19t" September
2022 only shall be entitled to exercise his/her/its voting rights on the resolution proposed
in the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who is not an equity shareholder as on the
cut-off date, should treat the Notice for information purposes only.

The Hon’ble NCLT has appointed Shri Raj Kumar, (District & Session Judge (Rtd.), as
Chairperson, Ms. Vasundhra, Advocate as Alternate Chairperson and Shri Parvindra
Nautiyal, as Scrutinizer for the meeting of the Shareholder of the Transferee Company. The
above-mentioned Scheme of Amalgamation if approved by the meeting will be subject to
the subsequent approval of the Hon’ble NCLT.

The above-mentioned scheme, if approved at the aforesaid meeting will be subject to the
subsequent sanction of the Tribunal and such other approvals, permissions, and sanctions
of regulatory or other authorities, as may be necessary.

Explanatory Statement under Section 230(3) read with Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 along with copy of the Scheme of Amalgamation and other enclosures as indicated in
the Index are enclosed herewith.

Date: 19t August 2022

Registered Office: Sd/-
A-6, Satsang Vihar Marg, Qutab| Raj Kumar, (District & Session Judge (Rtd.),
Institutional Area, New Delhi - Chairperson appointed by Tribunal for the
1100067 meeting




NOTES:

1.

Pursuant to the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi Bench vide its order dated 14t July 2022 and modified order dated 4t August
2022, the Meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company is being conducted
through video conferencing (“VC”) / other audio-visual means (“OAVM?”) facility to
transact the business set out in the Notice convening this Meeting. The deemed
venue for the Meeting shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

that pursuant to the Order of the NCLT, the Company has exercised the option to
convene the meeting through video conferencing (“VC’)/ other audio visual means
(“OAVM”), following the operating procedures referred to in General Circular No.
14/2020 dated 8t April 2020, General Circular No. 4 17/2020 dated 13t April 2020,
General Circular No. 22/2020 dated 15t June 2020, General Circular No. 33/2020
dated 28t September 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated 31st December 2020,
General Circular No. 10/2021 dated 23rd June 2021, General Circular No. 20/2021
dated 8t December 2021 and General Circular No. 3/2022 dated 5™ May 2022 issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars™),

The Statement pursuant to Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rule 6 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 in
respect of the business set out in the Notice of the Meeting is annexed hereto.

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of
Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date (specified in
the Notice) only shall be entitled to exercise his/ her/ its voting rights on the
resolution proposed in the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who is not an
equity shareholder as on the cut-off date, should treat the Notice for information
purpose only.

Since this Meeting is being held through VC /7 OAVM, physical attendance of equity
shareholders has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of
proxies by the equity shareholders will not be available for the Meeting and hence
the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.

No route map of the venue of the Meeting is annexed hereto, since this Meeting is
being held through VC /7 OAVM.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in
the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.



8.

10.

11.

12.

Equity shareholders attending the Meeting through VC / OAVM shall be reckoned
for the purpose of quorum. Quorum for the Meeting shall be in terms of the Tribunal
Order and Section 103 of the Act.

As per directions of the Tribunal Order, the Notice of the Meeting and the
accompanying documents mentioned in the Index are being sent only through
electronic mail to those equity shareholders whose email addresses are registered
with the Company / Depositories as on 12t August 2022 and by Post/courier to the
equity shareholders whose email addresses are not registered with the Company/
Depositories.

Company has appointed KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin
Technologies Private Limited), Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (“Registrar” or
“KFintech”), to provide VC/OAVM facility for the meeting and the attendant
enablers for conducting of the meeting.

The equity shareholders (“Members”) who wish to speak during the meeting may
register themselves as speakers for the meeting to express their views. They can visit
https://emeetings.kfintech.com and login through the user id and password
provided in the mail received from Kfintech. On successful login, select ‘Speaker
Registration” which will be available on 21st September 2022 from 09:00 A.M. (IST)
upto 5:00 P.M. (IST). Members shall be provided a ‘queue number’ before the
meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and/or
number of speakers during the Meeting, depending upon the availability of time and
for smooth conduct of the Meeting. Any equity shareholder seeking information in
relation to the Scheme is requested to write to the Company at least 5 working days
before the date of the Meeting by sending e-mail to the e-mail ID:
investor@newgensoft.com.

The equity shareholders may note that the aforesaid documents are also available on
the website of the Company at: www.newgensoft.com and on the website of the
Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com , respectively, the website of e-voting
agency KFintech https://evoting.kfintech.com being the agency appointed by the
Company to provide e-voting and other facilities for the Meeting. If so desired,
equity shareholders may obtain a physical copy of the Notice and the accompanying
documents, i.e., Scheme and the Statement under Sections 230 and 232 read with
Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 etc., free of charge.
A written request in this regard, along with details of your shareholding in the
Company, may be addressed to the Company  Secretary at
investor@newgensoft.com.
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Instructions for Attending the Meeting and VVoting through electronic means.

The Transferee Company is providing the facility to its shareholders, to cast their
vote electronically for the resolution proposed at the Meeting of the Transferee
Company and to attend the meeting through VC/OAVM facility as provided by
KFintech.

A. Instructions for Attending the meeting through VC/OAVM are as under:

i) Member will be provided with a facility to attend the meeting through VC /
OAVM platform provided by KFintech. Members may access the same at
https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ by using the e-voting login credentials
provided in the email received from the Company/KFintech. After logging in,
click on the Video Conference tab and select the EVENT of the Company. Click
on the video symbol and accept the meeting etiquettes to join the meeting.
Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-
Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by
following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned above.

i) Facility for joining the meeting though VC/ OAVM shall open 15 minutes
before the time scheduled for the meeting and will be available for Members
after 15 minutes of start of meeting on first come first served basis. Members are
encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops/ Desktops with Google
Chrome (preferred browser), Safari, Internet Explorer, Microsoft Edge, Mozilla
Firefox 22. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or
Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of
aforesaid glitches.

iii) Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will also be eligible to
attend the meeting.

B. Instructions for voting at the meeting:

i) The Members who have not cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be
eligible to cast their vote through e-voting system available during the meeting.
E-voting during the meeting is integrated with the VC / OAVM platform. The
Members may click on the voting icon displayed on the screen to cast their
votes.



C.

iii)

Vi)

ii) A Member can opt for only single mode of voting i.e., through Remote e-voting
or voting at the meeting. If a Member cast votes by both modes, then voting
done through Remote e-voting shall prevail and vote at the meeting shall be
treated as invalid.

Instructions for remote e-voting are as under:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from
time to time, Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in terms of SEBI
vide circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December
2020 in relation to e-Voting Facility Provided by Listed Entities, the Members are
provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-Voting
services provided by KFintech, on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The
instructions for e-voting are given herein below.

However, in pursuant to SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December 2020 on “e-Voting
facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-Voting process has been enabled to all
the individual demat account holders, by way of single login credential, through
their demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs to increase the efficiency
of the voting process.

Individual demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without
having to register again with the e-Voting service provider (ESP) thereby not
only facilitating seamless authentication but also ease and convenience of
participating in e-Voting process. Shareholders are advised to update their
mobile number and e-mail ID with their DPs to access e-Voting facility.

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date.

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, the member shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently. In case of voting by both the modes, vote
casted through remote e-voting will be considered final.

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders,
who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company
after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain
the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@Kfintech.com.
However, if he / she is already registered with KFintech for remote e-Voting
then he /she can use his / her existing User ID and password for casting the
vote.



vii) In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and who
acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after
sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date may follow steps
mentioned below under “Login method for remote e-Voting and joining virtual
meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.”

viii)  The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting and the meeting
are explained herein below:

Step 1. Access to Depositories e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders
holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2: Access to KFintech e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in
physical and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

Step 3: Method 7/ Access to join the Meeting on KFin system and to participate and
vote thereat -

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:
Login method for remote e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode.

Type of | Login Method
shareholder

S

Individual 1. User already registered for IDeAS facility:

Shareholder I.  Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com.

S holding | Il.  Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” under
securities in ‘IDeAS’ section.

demat mode | IIl.  On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post successful
with NSDL authentication, click on “Access to e-Voting”

IV.  Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider and you
will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for
casting the vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2. User not registered for IDeAS e-Services
I.  Toregister click on link: https://eservices.nsdl.com
[1.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS” or click at:
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReq.|sp
1. Proceed with completing the required fields.
IV.  Visit the e-voting website of NSDL
https:.//www.evoting.nsdl.com.
3. Alternatively by directly accessing the e-Voting website of NSDL
I.  Open URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/




VI.

Click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID
(i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL),
Password / OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen.

Post successful authentication, you will be requested to select
the name of the Company and the e-Voting Service Provider
name, i.e. KFintech.

On successful selection, you will be redirected to KFintech e-
Voting page for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period.

Members can also download the NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede”
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless

voting experience.
NSDL Mobile App is available on

.’ App Store ' Google Play

Individual
Shareholder
S holding
securities in
demat mode
with CDSL

1. Existing user who have opted for Easi / Easiest

Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
URL: www.cdslindia.com

Click on New System Myeasi

Login with your registered user id and password.

The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have links
of ESP i.e. KFin e-Voting portal and will be redirected to the e-
voting page of KFin to cast their vote without any further
authentication.

2. User not registered for Easi/Easiest

Option to register is available at:
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Reqistration/EasiRegistrat
ion

Proceed with completing the required fields.

Follow the steps given in point 1

3. Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-Voting website of CDSL

V.

Visit URL: www.cdslindia.com

Provide your demat Account Number and PAN No.

System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account.

After successful authentication, please enter the e-voting
module of CDSL. Click on the e-voting link available against




the name of the Company or select KFin.
Members will be re-directed to the e-voting page of KFin to cast
their vote without any further authentication.

Individual
Shareholder
login
through
their demat
accounts 7/
Website of
Depository
Participant

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
account through your DP registered with NSDL /CDSL for e-
Voting facility.

Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once
you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL /
CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein
you can see e-Voting feature.

Click on options available against Company name or e-Voting
service provider — Kfintech and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of KFintech for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period without any further authentication.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised
to use Forgot user ID and Forgot Password option available at respective websites.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Securities held | Please contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

with NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and
1800 22 44 30

Securities held | Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

with CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or

022-23058542-43

Details on Step 2 are mentioned below:

Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual’s shareholders
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical

mode.

(A) Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/ Depository
Participants (s), will receive an email from KFintech which will include details of
E-Voting Event Number (EVEN), USER ID and password. They will have to
follow the following process:

i. Launch internet browser by typing the URL.: https://evoting.kfintech.com/

ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e., User ID and password). In case of physical
folio, User ID will be EVEN (E-Voting Event Number) xxxx, followed by folio
number. In case of Demat account, User ID will be your DP ID and Client ID.
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However, if you are already registered with KFintech for e-voting, you can use
your existing User ID and password for casting the vote.

iii. After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

iv. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to
mandatorily change your password. The new password shall comprise of
minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case (A- Z), one lower case (a-z),
one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@,#,$, etc.,). The system will
prompt you to change your password and update your contact details like
mobile number, email ID etc. on first login. You may also enter a secret question
and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you forget it. It is
strongly recommended that you do not share your password with any other
person and that you take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

V. You need to login again with the new credentials.

vi. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the “EVEN” i.e.,
‘NEWGEN
SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED- ’ and click on “Submit”

vii. On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the
number of votes) as on the Cut-off Date under “FOR/AGAINST” or
alternatively, you may partially enter any number in “FOR” and partially
“AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/AGAINST” taken together shall not
exceed your total shareholding as mentioned herein above. You may also choose
the option ABSTAIN. If the Member does not indicate either “FOR” or
“AGAINST” it will be treated as “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be
counted under either head.

viii. Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting
process separately for each folio/ demat accounts.

iX. Voting has to be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do
not desire to cast your vote on any specific item, it will be treated as abstained.

X. You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on
“Submit”.

xi. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL”
to modify. Once you have voted on the resolution (s), you will not be allowed to
modify your vote. During the voting period, Members can login any number of
times till they have voted on the Resolution(s).
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xii. Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.)
are also required to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board
Resolution/Authority Letter etc., as mentioned in the Notes of this Notice.

(B) Members whose email IDs are not registered with the Company/Depository
Participants(s), and consequently the Notice of the meeting nd e-voting
instructions cannot be serviced, will have to follow the following process:

Members who have not registered their email address and in consequence
the, Notice and other related documents and e-voting instructions cannot be
serviced, may temporarily get their email address and mobile number
provided with KFintech, by accessing the link:
https://ris.kfintech.com/clientservices/mobilereg/mobileemailreg.aspx.
Members are requested to follow the process as guided to capture the email
address and mobile number for sending the soft copy of the notice and e-
voting instructions along with the User ID and Password. In case of any
gueries, member may write to einward.ris@kfintech.com.

. Alternatively, member may send an e-mail request at the email id

einward.ris@kfintech.com along with scanned copy of the signed copy of the
request letter providing the email address, mobile number, self-attested PAN
copy and Client Master copy in case of electronic folio and copy of share
certificate in case of physical folio for sending the Annual report, Notice of
the meeting, and the e-voting instructions.

After receiving the e-voting instructions, please follow all steps above to cast
your vote by electronic means.

Details on Step 3 are mentioned below:
Method 7/ Access to join the Meeting on KFin system and to participate and

vote thereat -

Type of Login Method
member
All A. Instructions for all the shareholders, including Individual,
shareholders, other than Individual and Physical, for attending the
including Meeting of the Company through VC / OAVM and e-voting
Individual, during the meeting:
other than
Individual i) Members will be able to attend the Meeting through VC /7 OAVM
and Physical platform provided by KFin. Members may access the same at
- https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ by using the e-voting login
for attending : ; : : :
. credentials provided in the email received from the Company /
the Meeting KFin
of the '
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Company
through VC
/ OAVM
and e-voting
during the
meeting

ii)
iii)

After logging in, click on the Video Conference tab and select the
EVEN of the Company.

Click on the video symbol and accept the meeting etiquettes to join
the meeting. Please note that members who do not have the user id
and password for e-voting or have forgotten the same may retrieve
them by following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned
above.

The procedure for e-voting during the Meeting is same as the
procedure for remote e-voting since the Meeting is being held
through VC /7 OAVM.

The e-voting window shall be activated upon instructions of the
Chairman of the Meeting during the Meeting.

E-voting during the Meeting is integrated with the VC / OAVM
platform and no separate login is required for the same.

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS:

In case a person has become a Member of the Company after dispatch of meeting
Notice but on or before the cut-off date for E-voting, he/she may obtain the User ID
and Password in the manner as mentioned below:

i. If the mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No./ DP ID Client ID,
the member may send SMS: MYEPWD <space> E-Voting Event Number+Folio No. or
DP ID Client ID to 9212993399

Example for NSDL:

Example for CDSL.:

ouswhE

MYEPWD <SPACE> IN12345612345678

MYEPWD <SPACE> 1402345612345678
Example for Physical:
MYEPWD <SPACE> XXXX1234567890

ii. If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No. /
DP ID Client ID, then on the home page of https://evoting.kfintech.com/, the member
may click “Forgot Password” and enter Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to

generate a password.

iii. Members may send an email request to evoting@kfintech.com If the member is
already registered with the KFin e-voting platform then such member can use his / her
existing User ID and password for casting the vote through remote e-voting.

iii. Members who may require any technical assistance or support before or during the
meeting are requested to contact KFintech at toll free number 1-800-309-4001 or write to
them at evoting@kfintech.com.

13.In case of any query and/or grievance, in respect of voting by electronic means,
Members may refer to the Help & Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voting
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

user manual available at the download section of
https://evoting.kfintech.com(KFintech Website) or contact Mr. Anandan K,
Manager at evoting@kfintech.com or call KFintech’s toll free No. 1-800-309-4001 for
any further clarifications.

You can also update your mobile number and E-mail address in the user profile
details of the folio which may be used for sending future communication(s).

Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes member of the
Company post-dispatch of Notice of the meeting before the Cut-Off Date may obtain
the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@karvy.com or visit the
FAQ’s section available at KFintech’s website https://evoting.karvy.com.

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of
Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories, as on the cut-off date, only shall
be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or e-voting during the meeting.

In terms of SEBI Listing Regulations, application for : (i) Deletion of name of the
deceased member(s) where the shares are held in the name of two or more
member(s) (ii) Transmission of shares to the legal heir(s)/representative(s), where
deceased member was the sole holder of shares (iii) Transposition of shares — when
there is a change in the order of names in which physical shares are held jointly in
the names of two or more member has to be accompanied with a self-attested copy of
their PAN along with the other required documents to the Company’s Registrar
irrespective of the value of the transaction. Members are requested to bear in mind
the aforesaid requirements while communicating with the Company or Registrar for
any of the purposes stated above. Section 72 of the Act provides for Nomination by
the members of the Company and the members are requested to avail this facility.

The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the
Company’s website https://newgensoft.com and on the website of KFintech
https://evoting.karvy.com immediately after the declaration of results by the
Chairperson or a person authorized by him in writing, as per the NCLT order. The
results shall also be submitted with the concerned Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE and NSE
and also the Tribunal
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY
LAW TRIBUNAL
NEW DELHI BENCH, NEW DELHI
C.A.(CAA) 72/ND/2022
IN THE MATTER OF SEC 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND
IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF
NUMBER THEORY SOFTWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
(The Transferor Company / Applicant No. 1)
WITH
NEWGEN SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(The Transferee Company/ Applicant No.2)
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CREDITORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
UNDER
SECTION 230 & 232 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230(3) AND SECTION 102 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016
TO THE NOTICE OF THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
CONVENED MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWGEN
SOFTWARES TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED, TRANSFEREE COMPANY.

Pursuant to the NCLT Order dated 14t July 2022 and modified order dated 4th
August 2022 in Company Scheme Application No. C.A. (CAA)-72/ND/2022 passed
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench (“NCLT”), a
meeting of the equity shareholders of Newgen Software Technologies Limited is
being convened by way of VC/ OAVM on Saturday, 24t September 2022 at 11:30
AM (“Meeting”), for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving with or
without modification, the arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation of
Number Theory Software Private Limited (“the Transferor Company”) with
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited (“the Transferee Company”) and their
shareholders and creditors. The aforesaid Scheme of Amalgamation is enclosed as
Annexure 1.

The meeting of equity shareholders of the Applicant Company is being held by VC/
OAVM on Saturday, 24t September 2022 at 11:30 AM for approval of Scheme of
Amalgamation as per NCLT Order dated 14t July 2022 and modified order dated 4th
August 2022.

This statement explaining the terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation is being
furnished, interalia, as required under section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
along with the Notice dated 24t September 2022 of the Meeting.

1.

The draft Scheme of Amalgamation was placed before the Audit Committee
and Board of Directors of the Transferee Company at their respective
meetings held on 02nd May 2022 and 03d May 2022. In accordance with the
provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) Circular
bearing no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, the Audit
Committee of the Applicant Company vide a resolution passed on 02"d May
2022 recommended the Scheme of Amalgamation to the Board of Directors of
the Transferee Company, The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company
at its meeting held on 039 May 2022, 2022, approved the Scheme of
Amalgamation, interalia, based on such recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

List of the companies/parties involved in the Scheme of Amalgamation:
A. Number Theory Software Private Limited
B. Newgen Software Technologies Limited

Details of the companies/parties to the Scheme of Amalgamation:

A. Number Theory Software Private Limited

a) Number Theory Software Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Transferor Company/ Applicant No. 1”) is a Company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 on 08.01.2016 vide
CIN U72300DL2016PTC289417 under the name and style of “Number
Theory Software Private Limited”. Transferor Company is presently
having its registered office at BLK-D-10, PKT-8, G/F. SEC-23B, Dwarka
New Delhi South West Delhi DL 110077 IN.

b) The main objects of the Transferor Company are set out in the
Memorandum of Association which is as under:
To carry on the business as manufacturers, trading and dealing in the
field of computers, hardware, software and information technologies,
establish and run date processing/ computers centres, and to offer
consultancy software development and data processing, data entry
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(©)

(d)

B.

services, relating to computer and act as adviser and consultants
relating to computer hardware software, their production, storage,
processing web designing, web hosting and internet based solutions.

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the
Transferor Company as on March 31, 2022 was as set out below:

Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)

Authorized capital
1,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,00,000.00

Total 10,00,000.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up capital
50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,00,000.00

Total 5,00,000.00

There is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up
share capital of the Transferee Company subsequent to March 31, 2022.

The details of the present promoter(s) and directors of the Transferor
Company along with their addresses are as follows
I Promoter(s) and Promoter Group

Sr.No | Name Address
1 Newgen Software A-6, Satsang Vihar Marg,
Technologies Limited Qutab Institutional Area,
New Delhi - 110067

1 Directors

Sr.No | Name Address

1 Mr. T.S. Varadarajan D-162, Saket, New Delhi -
110017

2 Mr. Diwakar Nigam J-3, Saket, New Delhi -
110017

3 Mrs. Priyadarshini Nigam J-3, Saket, New Delhi -
110017

Newgen Software Technologies Limited

a) Newgen Software Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “Transferee Company / Applicant Company No.2”) is a
Company incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile
Companies Act, 1956 on 05.06.1992. It was initially incorporated
as a Private Limited Company under name and style of
Newgen Software Technologies Private Limited. Thereafter the
Company was converted to Public Limited Company on June 13,
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b)

2000. The Company is having CIN L72200DL1992PLC049074
and is presently having its registered office at A-6 Satsang Vihar
Marg, Qutab Institutional Area New Delhi DI 110067. The
Transferee Company’s equity shares are listed on BSE Limited
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The main objects of the Transferee Company are set out in the
Memorandum of Association which are as under:

To carry on the business to develop, implement, export, import,
purchase, sell or otherwise deal in software and otherwise as
dealers and representatives for all types of software and
firmware, to do research and development in image processing,
artificial intelligence, communications, networking, process
control software.

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of
the Transferee Company as on March 31, 2022 was as set out
below:

Amount

Share Capital (in Rs.)

Authorized capital
9,80,00,200 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 98,00,02,000
1,19,99,800 Compulsory convertible
preference shares of INR 10 each 11,99,98,000

Total 110,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up capital
6,99,55,7_01 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 69.95 57010
fully paid up

Total 69,95,57,010

There is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and
paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company subsequent to
March 31, 2022

The details of the present promoter(s) and directors of the
Transferee Company along with their addresses are as follows:
Promoter(s) and Promoter Group holding shares in the
Transferee Company.

Sr. No. Name Address

Promoter:

1

Diwakar Nigam J-3, Saket, New Delhi,
110017.
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2 T S Varadarajan D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
110017
Promoter
Group:
3 Usha Varadarajan D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
110017
4 Priyadarshini Nigam J-3, Saket, New Delhi, 110017.
5 Ragini Goorha A-26, Block A, Press Enclave,
Saket, Delhi - 110017
6 Meenakshi Nigam Issar J-3, Saket, New Delhi, 110017.
7 Shubhi Nigam J-3, Saket, New Delhi, 110017.
8 Sonali Nigam J-3, Saket, New Delhi, 110017.
9 T.S. Devanathan D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
110017
10 TSS. Deshikan D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
110017
11 TS. Amruthavalli D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
110017
12 Ujjwal Varadarajan D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
110017
13 V. Divya D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
110017
14 V. Vidula D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
110017
15 Nadadur Srinivasa | D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
Varadan Saroja 110017
16 N.S. Krishnamachary D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
110017
17 S. Srikanth D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
110017
18 Sudha Sairaj No 005 R M Sneha
Residency Basapura, Off
Hosur Main Road, Near
Adithya Vintage, Bangalore -
560100
19 Krios Technologies | 40, 4th Street, Murugappa
Private Limited Nagar Puzhuthivakkam,
Madipakkam P.O Chennai-
600091
20 Jnanaadri Technovations | New No. 141, C-2/2, First
Private Limited Floor, Gandhi Salai
Velacherry Chennai -600042
21 Sosaley Technologies | New No. 141, C-3, Second
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Private Limited Floor, Gandhi Salai,
Velachery Chennai- 600042

22 Jnanaadri Innovations | N0.191, Gandhi Road,
LLP Velachery, Chennai - 600042
1 Directors
Sr. No Name Address
1 Mr. Diwakar Nigam J-3, Saket, New Delhi, 110017.
2 Mr. Varadarajan Tirumalai | D-162, Saket, New Delhi,
Sundaraja lyengar 110017.
3 Mrs. Priyadarshini Nigam | J-3, Saket, New Delhi, 110017
4 Mr. Kaushik Dutta 843, Block Lavy Pinto, Asiad
Village, Delhi, 110049
5 Mr. Saurabh Srivastava C-482, Defence Colony, New
Delhi 110024
6 Mr. Subramaniam B/2/131 Safdarjung Enclave
Ramnath lyer New Delhi 110029
7 Mrs. Padmaja Krishnan A-23, Ashok Vihar Phase-3,
Delhi - 110052

Relationship subsisting between the companies who are parties to
the Scheme of Amalgamation

The Transferee Company holds 100% of the issued, subscribed and
paid up capital of the Transferor Company, hence the Transferor
Company, is an wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company.
Mr. Diwakar Nigam, Mr. T S Varadarajan and Mrs. Priyadarshini
Nigam, are common Directors in the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company.

Details of the Board meeting at which the Scheme of Amalgamation
was approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company,
and Transferee Company respectively, including the names of the
Directors who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against
the resolution and who did not vote or participate on such resolution.
a) All Directors of the Transferee Company, namely, Mr. Diwakar
Nigam, Mr. T S Varadarajan, Mrs. Priyadarshini Nigam, Mrs. Padmaja
Krishnan, Mr. Kaushik Dutta, Mr. S R lyer, and Mr. Saurabh Srivastava
had attended the Board meeting held on 03 May 2022 and had
unanimously approved the Scheme of Amalgamation. All the Directors
of the Company were present at the aforesaid Board meeting.
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b) AIll Directors of the Transferor Company, namely, Mr. Diwakar
Nigam, Mr. T S Varadarajan, Mrs. Priyadarshini Nigam, had attended
the Board meeting held on 25t April 2022, and had unanimously
approved the Scheme of Amalgamation.

Salient features / details / extract of the Scheme of Amalgamation
The salient features / details / extract of the Scheme of Amalgamation
are, inter alia, as under:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The proposed Scheme of Amalgamation and Merger is among
Number Theory Software Private Limited (“the Transferor
Company”) with Newgen Software Technologies Limited (“the
Transferee Company”) and their respective members and
pursuant to the provisions of Section 234 read with Sections 230
to 232 of Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013

The Appointed Date for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation
shall be 1st April 20222 or such subsequent date (if any) as may
be decided by the Board of Directors as applicable, of the
Transferor Company and the Board of Directors of the
Transferee Company or such date as may be approved by the
National Company Law Tribunal at New Delhi or such other
appropriate date as the Appropriate Authority may decide, and
is the date with effect from which this Scheme of Amalgamation
shall upon receipt of requisite approvals, be deemed to be
operative.

With effect from the Appointed Date, whole of the undertaking
of the Transferor Company, as a going concern, including all its
assets, all liabilities, employees, all statutory licences,
permissions, approvals or consents to carry on the operations of
the Transferor Company shall stand vested in or transferred to
the Transferee Company without any further act or deed and
shall be appropriately mutated by the statutory authorities
concerned in favour of the Transferee Company upon the
vesting and transfer of whole of the undertaking of the
Transferor Company pursuant to this Scheme. The benefit of all
statutory and regulatory permissions, licenses, environmental
approvals and consents or other licenses and consents shall vest
in and become available to the Transferee Company pursuant to
this Scheme.

All the investments of the Transferor Company shall stand
transferred or deemed to have been transferred without any
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further act, instrument or deed, pursuant to the provisions of the
Act and Applicable Laws so as to become as and from the
Appointed Date, the assets of the Transferee Company.

(V) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company
shall stand dissolved without being wound up and without any
further act or deed on the part of the Transferor Company.

(vi)  The Transferor Company is an wholly owned subsidiary of the
Transferee Company. The entire share capital of the Transferor
Company is held by the Transferee Company. Hence, upon the
Scheme becoming effective, no shares of the Transferee
Company shall be allotted in lieu or exchange of the shares of
the Transferor Company. Upon the Scheme becoming effective,
the entire share capital of the Transferor Company shall be
cancelled and extinguished. The Transferee Company will carry
on the Transferor Businesses along with Transferee business
with reasonable diligence and business prudence to ensure that
the interests of the stakeholders of Transferor Businesses are
protected and enhanced

The aforesaid are only some of the salient extracts thereof. You
are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme to get fully
acquainted with the provisions thereof.

Effect of the Scheme on various parties

The effect of the Scheme on the stakeholders of the Transferor
Company would be as follows:

a. Shareholders

Since the Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Transferee Company, upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferee Company, no shares of the Transferee Company
will be issued and allotted by the Transferee Company.

b. Creditors

No rights of the creditors are being effected pursuant to the Scheme.
The liability of the Transferee Company towards the creditors of the
Transferor Company is neither being reduced nor being extinguished.
The creditors of the Transferor Company would in no way be affected
by the Scheme. Further, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures issued by the Transferor
Company shall stand extinguished and cancelled in entirety without
any consideration and without any further act or deed.

c. Employees, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
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Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all employees, who are on the payrolls of the
Transferor Company shall become, without any interruption of service
as a result of this amalgamation and transfer, employees of the
Transferee Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the
Appointed Date, since the Transferor Companies shall stand dissolved,
the directors and/or Key Managerial shall cease to be directors and/or
Key Managerial of the Transferor Company

The effect of the proposed Scheme on the stakeholders of the
Transferee Company would be as follows :-

a. Shareholders

Since the Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Transferee Company, upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferee Company, no shares of the Transferee Company
will be issued and allotted by the Transferee Company. Accordingly,
there will be no variation in the rights of the shareholders of the
Transferee Company upon the Scheme being made effective.

b. Creditors

Upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company, no rights of the existing creditors of the Transferee
Company are being affected pursuant to the Scheme. The liability
towards the existing creditors of the Transferee Company is neither
being reduced nor being extinguished. The creditors of the Transferee
Company would in no way be affected by the amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company.

c. Employees, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Scheme will not have any adverse effect on the rights and interests
of the employees, key managerial personnel and directors of the
Transferee Company.

Approvals and intimations in relation to the Scheme

I. The Equity Shares of the Transferee Company are listed on BSE
and NSE. The Transferee Company on 6th May 2022 and 10th
May 2022, submitted a copy of the Scheme to the NSE and BSE,
respectively. It is submitted that in terms of Regulation 37(6) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, provisions of Regulation 37 of the said
regulations in relation to obtaining no-objection letter from the
Stock Exchanges do not apply to the Scheme as the Scheme
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10.

solely provides for merger of a wholly owned subsidiary with its
holding company.

In addition to the approval of the Tribunal and the New Delhi
Bench of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, the
Company and 7/ or the Transferee Company will obtain such
necessary approvals / sanctions / no objection(s) from the
regulatory or other governmental authorities in respect of the
Scheme in accordance with law, as may be required.

A copy of the Scheme has been filed by the Company with the
Registrar of Companies, New Delhi.

No investigation proceedings have been instituted and/or are
pending against the Company and the Transferee Company
under the Act.

As there will be no issue of shares by the Transferee Company upon
the Scheme of Amalgamation being effective, there will be no change in
the pre scheme and post scheme capital structure and shareholding
pattern of the Transferee Company.

The pre and post Scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferee
Company as on 31st March, 2022 is as follows:

Category | Category of Pre & Post Scheme
Code shareholders Shareholding Pattern
Total no. of | As a percentage
shares of total capital
(A) Promoter & Promoter 38586300 55.16
Group
(B) Public:
Mutual Funds 3234393 4.62
Alternate Investment Funds 1997963 2.86
Foreign Portfolio Investors 10991359 15.71
Overseas Corporate Bodies 60 0.00
Individuals 12173639 17.40
NBFC registered with RBI 41400 0.06
Any Other 2515077 3.60
© Non Promoter- Non 415510 0.59
Public
Total Shareholding 69955701 100
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(i)

11.

12.

The Post-scheme capital structure and shareholding pattern of the
Transferee Company is not applicable, as the Transferor Company is
wholly owned subsidiary.

The pre and post Scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferor
Company as on 31st March, 2022 is as follows:

Sr. No | Name of | No. of shares Percentage  of
Shareholder total paid wup
share capital
1 Newgen Software | 49,999 100%
Technologies Limited
2 Newgen Computers |1 NA
Technologies Limited

The Post-scheme capital structure and shareholding pattern of the
Transferor Company is not applicable, as the Transferor Company shall
be dissolved upon the Scheme becoming effective.

Non applicability of valuation report and fairness opinion

No shares are proposed to be issued either by the Company or by the
Transferee Company, pursuant to the Scheme. Therefore, there will be
no change in the shareholding pattern of the Company and the
Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme. Thus, in view of the
above, valuation report and fairness opinion are not applicable.

Inspection of Documents Electronic copy of following documents
will be available for inspection in the “Investor Relations” section of
the website of the Company: www.newgensoft.com

a. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and
the Transferee Company;
b. Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of

the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022;

C. Copy of the Register of Directors’ shareholding of each of the
company

d. Copy of the NCLT order dated 14t July 2022 and 4th August
2022 directing inter alia convening the meeting of unsecured
creditors and equity shareholders of the Transferee Company
passed in C.A.(CAA)/72(ND)2022.

e. Copy of the Scheme of amalgamation;

f. Certificates of the Statutory Auditors of the Company and of the
Transferee Company confirming that the accounting treatment
prescribed under the Scheme is in compliance with Section 133
of the Act and applicable accounting standards;
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g. Report of the Audit Committee of the Company recommending
the Scheme;

Based on the above and considering the rationale and benefits, in the opinion
of the Board, the Scheme will be of advantage to, beneficial and in the interest
of the Company, its equity shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders and
the terms thereof are fair and reasonable. The Board of Directors of the
Company recommend the Scheme for approval of the equity shareholders.
The Directors and KMPs, as applicable, of the Company and of the Transferee
Company, and their relatives do not have any concern or interest, financially
or otherwise, in the Scheme except as equity shareholders in general.

Date: 19t August 2022

Registered Office: Sd/-
A-6, Satsang Vihar Marg, Qutab | Raj Kumar, (District & Session Judge (Rtd.),
Institutional Area, New Delhi - | Chairperson appointed by Tribunal for the
1100067 meeting
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ANNEXURE - 1

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF

NUMBER THEORY SOFTWARE PRIVATE LIMITED

(The Transferor Company / Applicant No. 1)
WITH
NEWGEN SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

(The Transferee Company/ Applicant No.2)
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CREDITORS AND SHAREHOLDERS

UNDER

SECTION 230 & 232 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

For Number Theo Sofmud.
Bl

Authorised Signatory

For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.

hoon L

Authorised Sfghatory
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PREAMBLE AND OBJECTIVES

This scheme of‘ amalgamation envisages the amalgamation of
Number Theory Software "Pri\hlate Limited (“the Transferdr
Company”) with Newgen Software Technologies Limited
(“the Transferee Company”) and other matters co_nséqUential,
supplemental, incidental and/or.otherwise integrally connected
therewith pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to Section
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant pr‘oviéion‘s
of the Companies .Act, 2013, as may be applicable. The
Transferor Company is a’ whblly owned subsidiary of the
Transferee Company. The Transferee Company’s equity
shares are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchangé

of India Limited.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PARTA | BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF THE

| COMPANIES

PART B | OBJECTS AND RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

PART C. | CONTENT(S) OF THE SCHEME

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd.

@Mv@%qmw/ For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.
Authorised Signatory W
; Authorised Signatory
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PART A

BACKGROUND AND DES'C-RIPTIION OF THE COMPANIES

1. NUMBER THEORY SOFTWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as “Transferor Company/ Applicant No.
1”) is a Company ihcorporated" under the provisiohs of the
Companies  Act, 2013 on 08.01.2016 vide CIN
U723OODL20"16PTC28941‘7_ under the name and style of
“Number Theory Software If’rivate Limited”. Transferor
Company is presently haviné its registered office at BLK-D-10,
PKT-8, G/F. SEC-23B, Dwarka New Delhi South Weét Delhi DL

110077 IN.

2. That the main objects of the Transferor Company/Applicant
Company No. 1 are set .out in its Memorandum of Association
and one of the main dbject of the Transferor Compahy/AppIicant
Company No. 1 is engaged'in ;‘.he business to manufacturer,
trading and dealing in-. the field of computers, hardware,
software and information technologies, establish and run date
processing/ com-putc‘e"rs‘ centres, and to offer consultancy
software development and data processing, data entry
services, relating to 66mputer and act as adviser and
consultants relating to computer hardware software, their
production, storage, process’inguweb designing, web hosting
and internet based solutions.

For Number Theory Software Pvt, Ltd. For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.
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3. NEWGEN SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED:(hereinafter
referred to as “Transferee‘Co'mpany / Applicant Company
No.2") is a Company incorporated under the provisions of the
erstwhile Compaoies -A'ci, 1956 on 05.06.1992. It was initially
incorporated as ‘a Private Limited Company under name and -
style of Newgen SOftWare Technologies Private Limited.
Thereafter the COmpaqy was- converted to Public Lfmited S
Company on June 13, 2000. The Company is having CIN
L72200DL1992PLC049074 and is presentl'y' .having its
registered office at A-6 Satsong_ Vihar Marg, Qutab Institutional |
Area New Delhi DI 110067. The- Transferee Company’s equity
shares are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange

of India Limited.

4. That the main object of the Tranoferee Company/Applicant |
Company No. 2 is set out in its Memorandum of Association
and the main object of the Transferee Company/Applicant
Company No. 2 is engaged in the business to develoo,
imo[ement, export, impoﬁ, purchase, sell or otherwise deal in
software and otherwise as dealers and representatives for all
types of software and firmvlrare, to do research and
development in image prooessing, artificial intelligence,

communications, networking, process control software.

For Number Theory Software Pvt, Ltd.
(B-:-»@}?Q‘M/ For Newgen Software Technologies Lid.
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PART B

OBJECTS AND RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

5. The Transferee Company is holding stake directly in the
- Transferor Company énd as the Transferor Company and

Transferee Company's 'businéss activities are similar and
complement each other, and to achieve inter—alié economies of
scale and efﬁciehcy, the merger of the Company is being
undertaken. The amalgamatk')n of the Transferor Company with
the Transferee Company would inter alia have. the following
benefits:

a. Reduce managerial overlap, reduce administrative cos"c and
strengthened leadership in the industry, -

b. Improve organizatiohél capabilities and leadership, arising
from pooling of Assets, human capital, and technical
resources to compete 'sucucessfully in én in.creasingly
competitive industry

c. Consolidation and simplification of the group structure, cost |
savings resulting from 'rgtionalization, standardization and
simplification of business processes.

d. Avoiding un-nepessary duplication of‘costs of administrétion,
distribution, selling and marketing anld reduction in legal and
regulatory compliancés.

e. Achieving economies of scale.

For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd. -
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PART C
CONTENT(S) OF THE SCHEME

Part C is divided into following Séctions:

Section| | Deals with the Definitions and Share Capital.

Sectionll | Deals with the amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with'Transferee Company in accordance
with Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
Section 230 to Section 232 and other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as may be

applicable.

Section Il | Deals with the consideration for amalgamation of the |

Transferor Company with Transferee Company.

Section IV | Deals with the accounting treatment in the books of

the Transferee Company.

Section V | Deals with general terms and conditions applicable to

the Scheme.

The amalgamation of the Transfergr Company with Transferee
Company, pursuant to and in accérdance with the Scheme, srhall be
effective from the Appointed ‘Date but shall be operétive from the
Effective Date and shall be in accordance with Section 2 (1B) qf the

Income Tax Act, 1961.

For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.
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SECTION |

(DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL)

1 DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Scheme, unless repugnant to the
meaning or context therelof, the following expressions shall have
the meaning as mentioned herein below:-

1.1. %2013 Act” means the Qémpanies Act, 2013 and the
Rules, Regulations, Circulars and Notifications issued
thereunder, and any other statutory modifications,
amendments, restatements or re-enactments thereof, from
time to time and to the extent in force.

1.2. “The Act’ means the 2013 Act, as may be applicable.

1.3. “Appointed Date” means 1% April, 2022, the date with
effect from which this Scheme shall come into effect, or
such other date és may be fixed or approved by the
Tribunal or any other competent authority.

1.4.“Board of Directors” in _rglation to the the Transferor
Company and/or the T;ansferee Company, as the case
may be, shall mean their respective Board of Directors, and
unless it is repugnant to the context or otherwise, shall
include committee of directors, if any constituted or
appointed and authorized to take any decision for the
implementation of th'is Scheme on behalf of such Board of

Directors.

Number Theory Software Put. Ltd For Newgen Software Technologies Lid.
For Number Theo . Lid.
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1.5. “Effecti\(e Date”means the last date of the dates specified
in Clause 17 of this _Scheme. All references in this Scheme
to the date of “coming into effect of this Scheme” or
“‘effectiveness bf' this Scheme” or “Scheme taking
effect” or other similar e);pressions shall mean the Effective
Date.

1.8. “Equity Share(s)” ‘means the equity shares of thé
Transferor Company or .the- Transferee Company, as the
case may be.

1.7. “Law” or “Appli(;able Law” includes all applicabie
statutes, enactments, Acts of legislature or Parliament,
laws, ordinances, rules, Byejlaws, regulations,.notiﬁcatio.n's,
guidelines, policies, directions, directives and orders of any
government, statutory authority, Tribunal, B_oa‘rd, Court of
India or any other country or jurisdiction as applicable.

1.8.“Scheme” or “this Scheme” or “the Scheme” means th‘e

| present Scheme of Amalgamation framed under the
provisions of Seéﬁon 230 to Section 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as
approved by the rt_éspective Board’ of Directors of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company in its
present form or with any modification(s) approved or
imposed or directed b'y Shareholders/Creditors of the
respective Companiés and/o,r'by any competent authority

and/or by the Hon’ble Tribunal.

' hnologies Ltd.
For Number Theory Software Pyt, Lt d. For Newgen Software Technolog
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1.9. "SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Boérd of India;

1.10."SEBI LODR Regulations" means SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,
2015, and any amendments thereof;

1.11.“SEBI Notification” means SEBI nofification no.
SEBI/LAD/NRO/GN/2016-17/029 dated 15" February, 2017

1.12. Stock Exchanges” means BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limitéd where the shares of Transferee
Company are listed;

1.13. Transferor Company means NUMBER THEORY
SOFTWARE PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as
“Transferor Company/ Applicant No. 1”) is a Company |
incorporated under ;che provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 on 08.01.2016 vide CIN U72300DL2016PTC289417
under the name and st'yle_vof “Number Theory Software
Private Limited”. Transferor Company is presently having
its registered office at BLK-D-10, PKT-8, G/F. SEC-238B,
Dwarka New Delhi South West Delhi DL 110077 IN.

1.14. Transferee Company means NEWGEN SOFTWARE
TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as
“Transferee Company / Applicant Company No_.é_”) is a
Company .incorporafed' under the provisions of the
erstwhile Companies Act, -1956 on 05.06.1992 -vide CIN
L72200DL1992PLC049074 and is presently’ having its
registered office at A-6 uSatsang Vihar Marg Qutab

Institutional Area New Delhi DI 110067 IN.

For Number Theory Software Pyt Ltd. For Newgen Software Technologies Lid.
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1.15. “Tribunal” means the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Benc’h‘.at New Delhi to which this Scheme of
Amalgamation in its present form is submitted for
sanctioning of the Scheme under Section Section 230 to
Section 232 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 as may be applicable.

1.16. “ROC” or “Regi‘strarof Companies” means Registrar
of Companies, N'CT of. Delhi and Hafyana, having
jurisdiction over both the Transferor Company ant_:i the
Transferee Company.

1.17. “Undertaking” in relétio_n to the Transferor Company
shall mean the entire business and the whole of the
undertakings of.'the Transferc;r Company on é going
concern basis, including all its assets, rights, licenses and
powers, leasehold rights and all its debts, outstanding
liabilities, duties, lo'bligations and employees as on the
Appointed Date. |

1.18. “IT Act” means the lnbomUe Tax Act, 1961 and any pther
statutory modifications, amendments, restatements or re-
enactments thereof, from time to time and to the extent in
force.

All terms and words which are -used. in this Scheme and not
defined in this Scheme shali, unless repugnant or contrary to the
context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning prescribed to
them under the Act and other Applicable Laws (as defined

hereinafter), rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be or

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd. S
For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.
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any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from time to

time.

References to the singular include a reference to plural and vice-

versa and reference to any gender include all other genders.

Reference to persons shall include individuals, firm, bodies
corporate (whether incorporated or un-incorporated), associations

and partnerships.

The headings are inserted for ease of reference only and shall not

affect the construction or interpretation of this Scheme.

Reference to a clause or paragraph or Schedule, as applicable
shall be deemed to be reference to a clause or paragraph or

Schedule of this Scheme.

Any phrase introduced by the terms “including” or “include” or any
similar expression shall be constructed as illustrative and shall not

limit the meaning of the words preceding those terms.

Unless otherwise defined, the reference to the word “days” shall

mean calendar days.

References to dates and times shall be construed to be’
references to Indian dates and times.

For Newgen Software Technologies Lid.
For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd.
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References to a document include an amendment or supplement

to, or replacement or novation of, that document.

Word(s) and expressions(s') elsewhere defined in the Scheme will

have the meaning(s) respectively ascribed to them.

2. SHARE CAPITAL

2.1. The share capital of the Transferor Company as on 315 March,

2022 was as under:

Share Capital . Amount (in Rs.)
Authorized capital .
10,00,000.00
1,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
Total 10,00,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up capital
5,00,000.00
50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/-"each
Total ' 5,00,000.00

2.2. Subsequent to the above date and until the date of the Scheme
being approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferor
Company, there has been no change in the authorized, issued,

subscribed or paid up capital of the Transferor Company.

For Newgen Software Technologies Lid
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2.3. The share capital of the Transferee Company as on 31% March,

2022 was as under:

Amount
Share Capital
(in Rs.)
Authorized 'capital
9,80,00,200 equity sh f Rs. - '
quity shares of Rs. 10/ 98.00,02,000
each '
1,19,99,800 Compulsory convertible
preference shares of INR 10 each 11,99,98,000
Total 110,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up lcap'ital
6,99,565,701 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
' 69,95,57,010
each fully paid up '
Total 69,95,57,010
For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd. For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.
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SECTION Il

3. TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING

3.1. Subject to the provisions of the Scheme in relation to the
modalities of transfer and vesting given below, with effect from
the Appointed Date and upon oécurrence of the Effective Date,
the Undertaking of Traﬁsferor Company shall stand transferred
to and be vested in and/or be deemed to have been transferred |
to and vested in and managéd by the Transferee Company, as
a going concern in accordance with the provisions of Section
230 to 232 of the 2013 Act and all other applicable provisions of
the 2013, Act and other Applicable Laws and withouf any further
act, deed, instrument, matter or thing, so as to become as and

~ from the Appointed Date,lin the manner provided hereunder, the
assets, properties, rights, privileges and debts, liabilities, duties
and obligations, as the cése_ U may be, of the Transferee
Company and further that it shall not be necessary to obtain the
consent of any third party or other person, who is a party to any
contract or arrangement by virtue of which such assets,
properties, rights, privileges, debts, liabilities, duties and
obligations, as the case 'may be, have arisen, in order to give

effect to the provisions of this Clause.

For Number Theory Software Pvi. Ltd.
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Provided always that thé Scheme shall not operate-to enlarge
the scope of security for any loan, deposit or facility(if any)
availed of by the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company shall not be obliged to' create or provide any further or

additional security thereof after the Effective Date or otherwise.

3.2 Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, the Transferor Company’s activities and
operations shall stand vested in the Transferee Company
without any further deed or act, together with all their properties,
assets, investments, rights, b'eneﬁts and interests therein,
subject to existing charges thereon in favour of banks and
financial institutions, as the case may be on a going concern
basis and the Transferee Coﬁwp;ny shall continue the activities
and business operations of the Transferor Company post the

amalgamation.

3.3 Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the past track record of
the Transferor Comp.all"ly' including without limitation, the
experience, credentials and market share shall be deemed to
be the track record of the LTransferee Company for all
commercial and regulatory purposes including for the purposes
of eligibility, standing, evaluation and participation of the
Transferee Company in all egistir;g and future bids, tenders and

contracts of all authorities, agencies and clients.
For Newgen Software Technologies Lid.
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3.4 Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with effect from the
| Appointed Date, all fhe assets, tangible or intangible of the
Transferor Company as are movable or incorporeal in nature or
are otherwise capable'df transfer, by manual or constructive
delivery and/or by endorsement and delivery, or by vesting and
recordable pursuant to the Scheme, shall stand vested in the
Transferee Company and shall become the property and an
integral part of the Transferee Company. The vesting pursuant
fo this clause shall bé deemed to have occurred by manual
delivery or endorsement and delivery, as appropriate to the
property being vested and the {itle to such properfy shall be
deemed to have transferred accordingly. All other movable B
properti'es of the Transferor Company, including sundry debtors,
deferred tax assets, Goods & Services Tax and its related input
credits, MAT credits, outstanding loans and advances, .if any,
recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received, bank
balances and deposits, if a‘ny!u with the government, quasi-
government, local and other authorities and bodies, customers
and other persons, shall without any further act, instrument or
deed, become the propérty of the Transferee Company, and the
same shall also be deemed to have been transferred by way of |
assignment or ‘deliveryl.' of possesSion of the respective
documents, as mas}‘ be appropriate in fhis regard. No staﬁp
duty or taxes are payable on ihe transfer of such movable

properties being vested in the Transferee Company.

For Number Theory Software Pvt, Ltd.
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3.5 Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all immoi/abl“e properties, including land
together with the buildings and structures standing thereon, if
any of the Transferor Company, whether freehold or leasehold
and all documents of title, lrights and easements in relation
thereto, if any shall stand transferred to and be vested in and/or
be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company, without any further act or deed done or
being required to be done by the Transferor Company and/or
the Transferee Company. The-Transferee Company shall be
entitted to exercise all rights and privileges attached .to the
immovable properties & shall beﬂ liable to pay the ground rent

~and taxes and fulfil all obliga;‘.ions in relation to or applicable to
such immovable properties. The mutation or substitution of the
tite of the immovable properties shall, upon this Scheme
becoming effective, be made duly recorded in the name of the
Transferee Company by the appropriate authorities pursuant to
the sanction of this Sche'mt_-:- by the Tribunal in accordance with

the terms thereof;

3.6 Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all cheques and other negotiable instruments,
payment orders received in the name of the Transferor
Company after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the
bankers of the Transfereé Company and credited to the account

of the Transferee Company. Similarly, the bankers of the

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd, For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.
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Transferee Company shall honour cheques issued by the

Transferor Company for payment after the Effective Date.

3.7 Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with, éﬁect from the
Appointed Date, all the taxes/duties, (including the tax under
MAT & tax deducted at source (“TDS"), paid by the Transferor
Company shall be deemed to be the taxes/ duties paid by the
Transferee Company and the Transferee Company shall be
entitled to claim credit for_ such taxes/duties paid against its tax/
duty liabilities, notwithstanding that the 'certiﬁcatesl challans or
other documents for payment of such taxes/duties are in the

name of the Transferor _Company, as the case may be.

3.8 Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with effect from the -
Appointed Date, all sundry- debts, investments, outstanding
loans and advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received, bank balances and deposits, if any, with
government, semi-government, local and other authorities and
bodies, customers and otlher.“ persons of the Transferor
Company shall without any act, instrument or deed become the

property of the Transferee Company.

3.9 Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities
(including any guaranties, security, surety given or extended),

duties, obligations and guarantees, secured or unsecured,

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd. ' For Newgen Software Technologies Lid.
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whether or not provided fér tn the books of accounts or
disclosed in -the balénce sheets of the Transferor Company
shall become and be déemed to be the debts, liabilities,
contingent liabilities (including any guaranties, security, s'urety
given or extended), duties, obligations and guarantees of the
Transferee Company aﬁd undertakes to meet, discharge and

satisfy the same.

3.10 Where any of the liabilities and obligations attributed to the
Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date havé been
discharged by the Transferor Company after the Appointed
Date and prior to the effective date, such discharge shall be
deemed to have been for and on behalf of the Trénsferee

Company;

3.11In so far as the asséts of the Transferor Cémpany are
concerned, the -existing securities, mortgages, charges,
encumbrances or liens (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Encumbrances”) over .the asseté or any part thereof, if any, and
transferred to the Transferee Company in terms of this Scheme
and relating to the Liabilities of the Transferor Company, shall,
after the Effective Date, \A}ith‘ouut any further act or deed,
continue to relate or at;tach to such assets or any'par’t thereof,
but such encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any of the
assets and properties ‘'of the Transferee Company or any part
thereof or to any of the other assets of the Transferor Company

transferred to the Transferee Company pursuant to this
For Number Theory Software Pt. Ltd. For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.
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Scheme, save to the extent warranted by the terms of any
existing security arra'nlgements to which the Transferor
Company and t.he' Transferee Company are party and
consistent with the joint ob[igatibns assumed by them under

such arrangements.

3.12 Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all contracts, letter of intent, deeds, bonds,
agreements, insurancé bolicies,' schemes, arrangements and
other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the -
Transferor Company to which the Transferor Company éfe
parties or to the benefit of which the Transferor Company may
be eligible, shall be in full fdrce-and effect against or in favour of
the Transferee Company and may be enforced as fuIIy. énd
effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the
Transferee Company héd been a party or beneficiary or oblige

thereto.

3.13 Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all permit,_grants, allotment reco‘mhendations,
rights, entitlements, licenses and- registrations including relating
to trademarks, tenancies, priviléges, powers, facilities of every
kind and description of'whatsoever nature in relation to the
Transferor Comr.-)any't‘ea which the Transferor Corhpany are
parties to or to the benefit of \n;hich the Transferor Company

may be eligible, shall be.énforceable as fully and effectually as

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd. _ For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.
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if, instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company

had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto.

3.14 Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all statu'tory licenses, no-objection certificates,
permissions, registra’gions; approvals, consents, pefmits,
quotas, entitlements or rights 'req;Jired to carry on the operations
of the Transferor Company or grantedrto Transferor Company
including /custom [ Goods and Services Tax
exemption/concessional rate benefits including its related inputs
credits, if any shall stand vested in the Transferee Company -
without further act or deed, and shall be appropriately
transferred or assigned by the statutory authorities concerned
herewith in favour of the Transferee Company upon vesting bf
the Undertaking of Transferof Company pursuant to. this
Scheme. The benefit of all statutory and regulatory permissions,
environmental approvalé and consents including the statutory
licenses, permissions or appr;)VaIs or consents required to carry
on the operations of the Transferor Company shall vest in and
become available to the Transferee Company pursuant to this

Scheme.

3.15 The Transferee Company shall, at any time after comihg into
effect of the Scheme in accordance with the provisions thereof,
if so required under any Law or otherwise, execute deeds of
confirmation or other writ'ings or arrangements with any party to

any contract or arrangement in relation to the Transferor
For Number Theory Software Put. Ltd. For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.
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Company to which the Transferor Company are parties, in order
to give formal effect to the above provisions. The Transferee
_ Company shall under the pro;fisions of the Scheme, be deemed
to be authorized to execute any such writing on behalf of the
Transferor Company and to carry out or perform all such
formalities or compliances referred to above on part of the

Transferor Company.

3.16 Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the resolutions, if
any, of the Transferor Company “which are valid and subsisting
on the Effective Date shall continue to be valid and subsisting
and be considered as resolutions of the Transferee Cc_)mpany
and if any such resolutions hgve.,upper monetary or other limits
being imposed under the- provisions of the Act, or any other
applicable provisions, then said limits shall be added and shall
constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the Transferee

Company.

3.17 The Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions
relating to “Amalgamation” as specified under Section 2(1B) of
the IT Act. If any termls or provisions of the Schéme is/are
inconsistent with the provisions of Section 2(1B) of the IT Act,
the provisions of Section 2(1B) of the IT Act shall prevail and
the Scheme shall stand moﬁiﬂéd to the extent .necessary to
comply with Section 2(1B) of the IT Act; such modification to not

affect other terms or provisions of the Scheme.
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4. EMPLOYEES OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

4.1. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all employees of the
Transferor Company shall be deemed to vhave become
employees of the Transferee Company without any interruption
of service and on the basis of continuity of service and on the
same terms and conditions' or_1p which they are engaged by
Transferor Company on the Effective Date. The services of
such employees with the Transferor Company up to the -
Effective Date shall be ;caken into.account for the purposes of all
benefits to which the employees may be eligible, including for
the purpose of paymen'.c of any retrenchment compensation,
gratuity and other terminal benefits including ESOPs or RSU

schemes.

4.2. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all contributic;ns to funds
and schemes in respect of provident fund, employee state
insurance contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, staff
welfare scheme, ESQPs or RSU schemes, or any other special
schemes or benefits created or existing for the benefit of such
employees of the Transferor Company shall be made by the
Transferee Company in gccordénce with the provisions of such

schemes or funds and Applicable Laws.

4.3. Subject to Applicable Laws, the existing provident fund,
employee state insurance contribution, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund, the staff welfare scheme including ESOPs

or RSU schemes, and any other schemes or benefits created

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd. For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.
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by the Transferor Company for the employees shall be
continued on the same terms' and conditions and be transferred
to the existing provident fund, employee state insurance .
contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, staff welfare
scheme, etc., being maintained by the Transferee Company
without any separate act or deéd/approval, and the Transferee
Company shall stand suiastituted for the Transferor Company
for all purposes whatsoever in relation to the administration or
operation of all such fun'ds," schemes and benefits, in
accordance with the .terms provided in the respective
documents pe.rtaining to such funds, schemes and benefits. It is
the aim and intent that all the rights, duties, powers and .
obligations of the Transferor Company‘ in relation to such funds,
schemes and benefits §hall become those of the Transferee
Company. Where applicable, trustees including the Board of
Directors of the Transferor Cbmpany and the Transferee
Company shall be entitled to adopt such course in this regard
as may be advised, provided however that there shall be no
discontinuation or breakage in the services of the employees of

the Transferor Company.

5. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

5.1. Upon occurrence of the Effectiveé Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, the Transferee .Company shall bear the burden
and the benefits of any legal or other proceedings initiated by or

against Transferor Company.

For Newgen Sofiware Technologies Ltd.
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5.2. If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever nature by or
against the Transferor Company, be pending, the same shall
not abate, be disconfinued' or“ in any way be prejudicially
affected by reason of the transfer of such the undertaking of
Transferor Company or of anything contained in this Scheme
but the proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and
enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same
manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against such

_ Transferor Company as if this Scheme had not been made.
Upon the Scheme ‘becon'}ing effective, the Transferee Company
undertakes to have such legal or other proceedings initiated by
or against the Transferor Company transferred in its name and
to have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or
against the Transferee' Company to the exclusion of the
Transferor Company.The Transferee Company also undertakes
to handle all legal or other proceedings which may' be initiated
against the Transferor Company after the Effective Date relating
to the Transferor Compa;ny in respect of the period up to the
Effective Date, in its own name and account and further
undertakes to pay all amoimtfs“ including interest, penalties,

damages, etc. which any of the Transferor Company may be

™

called upon to pay or secure in respect of any liability or
obligation relating to the Transferor Company for the period up
to the Effective Date.In the event that the legal proceedings

referred to herein requiré Transferor Company to be treated as
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party thereto, Transferee Company shall be added as party to

such proceedings.

5.3. On and from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall
and may, if required, initiate any legal proceedihgs' in relation to

the business of the Transferor Co"mpany.

6. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS UNTIL THE EFFECTIVE DATE

6.1. With effect from the Appointed Date and upto and including the
Effective Date:

(i) The Transferor Company shall carry on and be deemed to
have been carrying on all its activities and operations, for
and on behalf of and in trust for the Transferee Company.

(i)  All profits accruing or arising to the Transferor Company and
all taxes thereof (including but not limited to advance tax,
TDS, MAT credit, securities ftransaction tax, taxes
withheld/paid in a foreigr; country, Goods & Services Tax,
etc.) or losses arising or incurred by it shall, for all purposes,
be treated as the profits, taxes or losses, as the case may
be, of the Transferee, Company. The tax payments
(including, without limitation income tax, tax, applicable
Goods and Sewide. Tax etc.) whether by way of téx
deducted at source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever,
by the Transferor Company a:fter the Appointed Date till the
Effective Date, shall be deemed to be paid by the
Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt
with accordingly. Any tax deducted at source by the
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Transferor Company and Transferee Company on
transactions with the Tra'nsféror Company and Transferee
Company, if any (from Appointed Date to Effective Date)
shall be deemed to be advance tax paid by the Transferee
Company and shall, in all. proceedings, be dealt with
accordingly. Obligation for deduction of tax at source on any
payment made by ‘or to be made by the Transferor
Company shall be made or deemed to have been made and
duly complied with by the Transferee Company.

(i) The Transferor Company shall carry on its activities and
operations with reasona'ble diligence and business prudence
and in the same manner as ilt had been doing hitherto, and
shall not undertake any ladditional financial commitments,
borrow any amounts or incur any other liabilities or
expenditure, issue any additional guarantees, indemnities,
letters of comfort or commitment either for themselves or on
behalf of any third party, or‘sell, transfer, alienate, charge,
mortgage . or encumber or deal in any of its respective
assets, issue any new securities including Equity Shares or
commence any new line df bL;siness except-

(@) When the same is in the ordinary course of business
as carried on by the Transferor Company; or

(b) When the same is expressly provided in the Scheme;
or

(c) When written cé)nsent of the Transferee Company has

been obtained in this regard.
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(iv) The Transferor Company shall not vary the terms and
conditions of the employment of its employees except in the
ordinary course of. business; it being vclariﬁed that
notwithstanding anything contained in the Scheme, with
effect from the date of the respective Board meetings of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company
approving the Scheme and up to and including the Effective
Date, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company
may undertake any harmonisation processes (including the
continuation of any such existing processes) pertaining to
the terms and conditions applicable to the employees of the
Transferor Company and Transferee Company, in

accordance with Applicable Laws.

6.2. The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction
of the Scheme, to apply to the Central Government and all other
agencies, departments ‘and authorities concerned as are
necessary under any Law, contract or are otherwise considered
necessary, for such consents, approvals and sanctions which
the Transferee Company may require to effectually own and

operate the business of the Transferor Company.

6.3. With effect from the Effective Ijete, the Transferee Company
shall commence and operate the undertaking of the Transferor
Company. The Transferee Company unconditionally and
irrevocably agrees and undertakes to pay, discharge and satisfy

all the liabilities and obligations of the undertaking of the
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Transferor Company with effect from the Appointed Date, in

order to give effect to the foregoing provisions.

7. CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

7.1. Subject to the other provisions of the Scheme, aﬁd pursuant to
the order of the Tribunél sanctioning the Scheme, upon the
Scheme coming into effect, all contracts, schemes, assurances,
licenses, insurance policies, bguarantees, deeds, bonds,
agreements, arrangements and other instruments (including all
tenancies, leases, and other assurances in favour of the
Transferor Company or powers or authorities granted by or to it)
of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor Company is a
party, or the benefit to which the Transferor Company may be
eligible, subsisting or opefative immediately on or before the
Effective Date, shall be in full force and effect against or in
favour of the Transfereel Qompahy and may be enforced as fully
and effectively as if instead of the Transferor Company, the
Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary thereto.
The Transferee Company sﬁall enter into and/or issue and/or
execute deeds, in writings or confirmation or enter into any
tripartite agreement, confirmations or novation’s to which the
Transferor Company will, if necessary, also be parties in order
to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme, if so
required or becomes .necessary. Further, the Transferee
Company shall be deemed to be authorised to execute any
such deeds, writings or 6onﬁrmations on behalf of the
Transfefor Company and to implement or carry out all
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formalities required on the part of the Transferor Company to

give effect to the provisions of this Scheme.

7.2, It is hereby clarified that by viﬁue of the provisions of the
| Scheme and pursuant to the order of the Tribunal sanctioning
the Scheme, upon the Scheme coming into effect, all rights,
services, obligations, liabilities, responsibilities undertaken by or
in favour of the Transferor Company under any contractual
arrangements shall autbmatically stand transferred to and
vested in and/ or shall be deemed to have been transferred to
and vested in the Trénsfere‘e '“Company and all benefits to
which the Transferor Company are entitled to shall be available
to and vested in and/ or shall be deemed to have been available
to and vested in the Transferee Company, as a successor-in-
interest and the Transferee Corﬁpany shall be entitled to deal
with the same in place and stead of the Transferor Company, as
if the same were originally performed or conferred upon or given
or issued to or executed in favour of the Transferee Company,
and the rights and benefits under the same will be available to
the Transferee Company, without any further act or deed. The
Transferee Company shall discharge its obligation in respect of
the services to be performed/ provided or in respect of payment
of service charges under any contractual arrangements instead

of the Transferor Company.

7.3. Without prejudice to the above, the Transferee Company shall,
if so desirable or required or become necessary, upon the
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coming into effect of this Schemeé and with efféct from the
Appointed Date, enter into and/or issue and/or execute deeds,
writings or confirmations . or- enter into any tripartite
arrangements, to which the Transferor Corﬁﬁany will, _if
necessary, also be partg'/ in order to give formal effect to the
provisions of this Scheme and to the extent that the Transferee
Company is required prior 'to' thvep Effective Date to join in such
deeds, writings or confirmations, the Transféree Company‘shall
be entitled to act for-and on behalf of and in the name of the
Transferor Company, .as the .case may be. Further, the
Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorized to
execute any such deeds,' writings or confirmations on behalf of
the Transferor Company and to implement or carry out all
formalities required on the part of the Transferor Company to

give effect to the provisions of this Scheme.

8. TAXES, DUTIES, CESS, ETC.

8.1. Upon occurrence of the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all taxés’. and duties payable by the Transferor
Company(including under the Income Tax Act, 1961, Customs
Act, 1962, , SeNice téx, Goods & Services Tax including its
related inputs and all other Applicable Laws) accruing and
relating fo the Transferor Corﬁpany from the Appointed Date
onwards, including all advance tax payments, tax deducted at
source, minimum alternate ta'x, z_abny refund and claims shall, for

all purposes, be treated:-as taxes, advance tax payments, tax
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- For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd.

deducted at source or refunds and claims, as the case may be,

of the Transferee Company.

8.2. With effect from the Appointed Date, all the deductions
otherwise admissible to the Transferor Company including
payment admissible on actual -payment or on deduction of
appropriate taxes or on payment of TDS (like Section 43B,
Section 40, Section 40A etc. of the IT Act) will be eligible as
deduction to Transferee Company upon fulfiiment of required

conditions under the IT Act.

8.3. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all un-availed credits and
exemptions, and other statutqry benefits, including in respect of
income tax (including tax deducted at source, tax collected at
source, advance tax, eté.) Goods & Services Tax including its
related inputs credit MAT credit etc. as at the Appointed Date to
which Transferor Company is entitled to shall be available to
and vest in the Transferge Company without any further act or

deed.

8.4, Upon the Scheme becomillxg effective, all tax assessment
proceedings/ appeals of whatsoever nature by or against thé
Transferor Company shall be continued and/ or enforced by the
Transferee Company. Further, the aforementioned proceedings
shall not abate or be discontinued nor be in any way

prejudicially affected by reason of the consolidation of the
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Transferor Company with the Transferee Company or anything

contained in the Scheme.

8.5. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company
is permitted to revise and file its income tax return, withholding
tax return, including tax dedtictec‘;,l at source certificates, Goods
& Services Tax returns-and other tax returns for the period
commencing on and from the Appointed Date, and to claim

refunds/credits, pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme.

8.6. Upon \the Scheme becoﬁing effective, any TDS deposited, TDS
certificates issued or TDS returns filed by the Transferor
Company pertaining to the pe'riod after the Appointed Date shall
continue fo hold good as, if such TDS amounts were deposited,
TDS certificates were issued and TDS returns were filed by the

Transferee Company.

8.7. All the expenses incurred by the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company in relation to the amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, including
stamp duty expenses, if'any, sﬁall be allowed as deduction to
the Transferee Company in accordance with the Section 35DD
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 over a period of 5 years beginning

with the previous year in which the Scheme becomes effective.

8.8. Any refund under the tax laws due to Transferor Company

consequent to the assessments made on the Transferor
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Company shall belong to and pe received by the Transferee
Company. The relevant authérities shall be bound to transfer to
the account of and give ‘credit for the same to the Transferee
Company upon the effectiveness of the Scheme upon relevant

proof and documents being provided to the said authorities.

9. CONSOLIDATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

9.1. The entire authorized share capital of the Transferor Company
No.1 amounting to Rs 10,0'0,060/- (INR Rupees Ten lacs)
divided into 1,00,000 (one lac) equity shares of Rs.10 each shall
stand transferred to and combined with the authorized share
capital of the Transferee Company without any further act or
deed. The filing fees and stamp duty already paid by the
Transferor Company on' its authorized share capital shall be
deemed to have been so paid by the Transferee Company on
the combined authorized share capital and accordingly, the
Transferee Company shall not be required to pay any fees/
stamp duty on the authorized share capital so increased. The
consent/ resolution approving the Scheme shall be deemed to
be the approval for increase in the authorized share capital of
the Transferee Company under Section 61 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

9.2. Consequently, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the
authorized share capital of the Transferee Company shall
automatically stand increased without any further act,

instrument, or deed on the part of the Transferee Company
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including payment of stamp duty and payment of fees payable
to ROC, by the authorized share capital of the Transferor

Company.

9.3. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company
relating to the authorized share capital shall, without any further
act, instrument or deed, be and stand increased, altered,
modified and amended pursuant'to Section 13 & Section 61 of
the Companies Act, 2015 or any other applicable provisions of
the Act, as the case may be and be replaced with the following
clause: “

“The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is
Rs.110,10,00,000/-(INR Rupees One hundred ten crores and
ten lacs only) consisting 9,81,00,200 (Nine crores eighty one
lacs and two hundred only) equity shares having nominal
value of Rs. 10/~ each,  having equal voting rights and
119,99,800 convertible preference shares of Rs 10 each .”

9.4, The Transferee Company shall file with the ROC, NCT of
Delhi all requisite forms and complete the compliance and

procedural requirements under the Act, if any.
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 SECTION Iil

10. CONSIDERATION

10.1. The entire share capital of the Transferor Company is held
directly by the transféfe.e company and its one of the wholly
owned subsidiary. Upon this scheme becoming effective, as the
Transferee Company is the‘ulti;nate holding company of the
Transferor Company, there shall not be any issue of shares as
consideration to the shareholders of the Transferor Company
and the Paid up share capital of.the Transferor Company shall

stand cancelled.

10.2. Further, upon this scheme becoming effective, the investments
in the share capital of the Transferor Company, appearing in the
books of account of the Transferor Company shall be cancelled

without, any further applic'ation, act, instrument or deed.

: F
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SECTION IV

11. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF

TRANSFEREE COMPANY

11.1 The amalgamation shall be accounted for in the books of
account of the Transferee Combany accordi?ng to the applicable
accounting standards i.e. Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder and in accc')rd_a“nce with prevailing guidelines.

11.2 On the Scheme Ifor amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferee Company becoming effective, the
Transferee Company shall account for the Amalgamation in its
books as per Pooling of Interest Method of accounting as laid
down in Appendix C, 'Blisihess Combinations of entities under
common control’ of Ind-AS 103, ‘Business Combinations’ as
prescribed under Section 133 ofb the Companies Act, 2013, as
follows:

(a) All the assets, liabilities and reserves recorded in the
books of the Transferpr Company, subject to Clause (b)
and (f) below, shall be transferred to and vested in the
books of Transferee Company at their respective book
values thereof and in the same form as appearing in the
consolidated financial statements of the Transferee
Company, being the holding company.

(b) No adjustment is intended to be made to the book vélues
of the assets and liabi!itigs of the Transferor Company

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd.\yhen they are incorporated in the financial statements of
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the Transferee Company exce‘pt to ensure uniformity of
accounting policies. |

(¢) In case of any differences in accounting policies between
the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company,
the accounting policies - followed by the Transferee
Company shall prevail and the difference shall be
adjusted in Reverlwe Reserves of Transferee Company,
to ensure that thé financial statements reﬂect the
financial position on fhe_basis of consistent accounting
poli.cies.

(d) The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the
financial statements of the trahsferor is aggregated with
the corresponding balahce appearing in the financial
statements of 'the transferee. Alternatively, it is
transferred to General Reserve, if any.

(e) The identity of the reserves of the Transferor Company,
shall be preserved and they shall appear in the ﬁnancial
statements of the Transferee Company in the same form
and manner, in which tl]ey appeared in the aforesaid
consolidated ﬁnanciél statements of the Transferee
Company, prior to this Scheme becoming effective. As a
result of preserving thé identity, reserves which are
available for distribution as dividend before the business
combination would also be available for distribution as
dividend after the business combination.

() The investment in equity shares of Transferor

Companies held by th‘e Transferee Company shall stand
For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd.
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(9)

(h)

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd.
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cancelled and the differerice, if any, arising betweeﬁ the
(i) carrying value of assets and liabilities and reserves
pertaining to the Transferor Company and (ii) carrying
value of investment in equity shares of Transferor
Company in the booké 01; Transferee Company shall be
adjusted to/credited to capital reserve in the books of
Transferee Company and should be presented
separately from other capital reserves with disclosure of
its nature and purpose in the notes.

Inter-company bélances, if any, shall stand canc;elled
and there shall be no further obligation/outstanding in
that behalf.

The financial information in the financial statements in
respect of prior periods should be restated as if the
business combinationl had occurred from the beginning
of the preceding period in the financial statements,
irrespective of the actual date of the combination.
However, if business combination had occurred after
that date, the prior period information shall be restated

only from that da‘tg.
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SECTION V

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

12. APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL

12.1. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall,
with all reasonable dispatch, make necessary applications
under Section 230 to Seqtion 232 of the 2013 Act to the Hon'ble
Tribunal at New Delhi for sanctioning this Scheme and for such
other orders as the Tribunal may deem fit for bringing the
Scheme into effect and all métters ancillary or incidental thereto
and for dissolution of the Transferor Company without winding

up and other connected matters.

12.2. Upon the sanction of the Scheme by the Tribunal and after the
Scheme has become efflective, with effect from the Appointed
Date, the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with
Transferee C‘ompany in accofdar;ce with Section 2(1B) of the IT

Act, shall be deemed to have occurred.

13. VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS. ETC

13.1 Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme and with effect from
the Appointed Date, the resolutions of the Transferor Company
as are considered necessary by the Board of Directors of
Transferee Company which are \falidly subsisting be considered
as resolutions of Transferee Company. If any such resolutions

have any monetary limits approved subject to the provisions of
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the Act or of any other applicable statutory provisions, then thé
said limits, as are considered necessary by the Board of
Directors of Transferee Company, shall be added to the Iifnit, if

any, under the like resolutions passed by Transferee Company.

14. DIVIDEND

14.1. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall
be entitled to declare and pay dividends, whether interim or
final, to their respecti\./e shareholders in respect of the
accounting period prior to the Effective Date but only consistent

with the past practice, or in the ordinary course.

14.2. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, on and from the
Appointed Date, the prbﬁts of the Transferor Company shall
belong to and be. the profits of the Transferee Company and will
be availablé to the Transferee Company for being disposed of iﬁ

any manner as it thinks fit.

14.3. It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of
declaration of dividends are enabling provisions only and shall
not be deemed to confer any right on any member of the
Transferor Company and/ .or the Transferee Company to
demand or claim any diVidends which, subject to the provisions
of the said Act, shall be entirely at the discretion of the Board of
the Transferlor Company 'and the Transferee Company
respectively subject to such abproval of the shareholders, as

may be required. For Newgen Software Technologies Lid.
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15. MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

15.1. Subiject to the approval pf the Hon'ble Tribunal, the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company by their respective
Board of Directors or such other person or persons, as the
respective Board of Direct'ors may authorize, including any
committee or sub-committee thereof, may consent, to any
modifications or amendments of the Scheme or to any
conditions or limitations that the-Hon’ble Tribunal or any other
competent authority may deem fit to direct or impose or which
may otherwise be cémsidered necessary, desirable or
appropriate by the Hon’ble Tribunal or any other compétent
authority for settling any queétioﬁ or doubt or difficulty that may
arise for implementing and/or carrying out the Scheme, whether

in pursuance of a change in Law or otherwise.

15.2. In order to give effect to this Scheme or to any modifications or
amendments thereof, the Board of Directors of the Transferee
Company or such other person or persons, as the respective
Board of Directors may authorize, including any committee or
sub-committee thereof, shall be authorized to take all such
steps as may be necessary, desirable or proper to give effect to
this Scheme and to resolve any qoubts, difficulties or questions
whether by reason of any .directive or orders of any other

authorities or otherwise Howsoever arising out of or under or by
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virtue of the Scheme and/or any matter concerned or connected

therewith.

15.3. In the event that any conditions are imposed by any competent
authority or the Tribunal which the Transferor Company or the
Transferee Company find - un:acceptable for any reason
whatsoever, then Transferor Cbmpany and/or the Transferee

- Company shall be entitled to withdraw the Scheme.

16 LISTING REGULATIONS AND SEBI COMPLIANCES

16.1Since the transferee company is a listed Company, this scheme
is subject to the compliances of all the requirements under the
listing regulations and all the statutory directives of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI) insofar as they

relate to sanction and implementation of the Scheme.

16.28EBI vide notification No. SEBI/LAD/NRO/GN/2016-17/029 -
dated 15" 'Februéry, 2017 has amended the listing regulations
and relaxed the requirement of obtaining prior approval or no
objection/observation letter gf stock exchanges anhd SEBI in
case of merger of wholly owned subsidiary with its holding
company. The draft schemes shall be filed with the stock
| exchange for disclosure purpose in compliance with the above
notification.
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17 CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME

17.1 The Scheme shall be conditional upon and subject to:

(a) Scheme being approved by the requisite majority in number
and value of the shareholders (either by way -ofé meeting or
by no objection certiﬁcate!letter of consent from the
shareholders) and/or cn;,ditors, if any of the Transferor
Company aﬁd the Transferee Company, as may be directed
‘by the Tribunal.

(b) Scheme being sanctioned by the Tribunal under Sections
230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the
Act. | |

(c) The receipt or ﬁlfng of all relevant regulatory or statutory
approvals, sanctions, cohse;ﬂs required under Applicable
Law for .or in pursuance of the Scheme (“Regulatory

Approvals”)

17.2 This Scheme, although to come into operation from the
Appointed Date, shall no;c become effective until the‘ later of the
following dates, namely:

(i)  That on which the last of the aforesaid approvals and
-sanctions as mentioned in Clause 17.1 shall be obtained
or passed; or
(i) That on which the certified copy of the order of the
Tribunal sanctioning this Schéme being filed with the
RoC.
The last of such dates shall be the “Effective Date” for the

purpose of this Scheme.
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17.3 The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall file
the certified copy of the order of the Tribunal sanctioning this
Scheme with the RoC only upon the satisfaction (or waiver in
writing) of such conditions as may be mutually agreed between
the Transferor Compan_y .and the Transferee Company in

writing.

18 EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS AND MATTERS

RELATING TO REVOCATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF THE

SCHEME

18.1In the event of ény of the said séhctions and approvals referred
to in Clause 16.1 not being obtained and/or the Scheme not -
being sanctioned by the Tribunal, this Scheme shall stand
revoked, cancelled and be pf no effect, save and except in
respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is contempllated
hereunder or as to any .rights and/or liabilities which might have
arisen or accrued pursuént thereto and which shall be governed
and be preserved or worked out as is specifically provided in the

Scheme or as may otherwise arise in Law.

18.2The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the
Tranlsferee Company shall be entitled to withdraw this Scheme

prior to the Effective Date.
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18.3The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company shall be lentitled to revoke, céncel and
declare the Scheme of no effect if they are of the view that the
coming into effect of the Scheme with effect from the Appointed
Date could have adverse implications on the combined éntity

post-amalgamation.

18.4The Transferee Company shall be entitled to file/revise its
income tax returns and other statutory returns of its own or the
Transferor Company, if required, and shall have the right to
claim refunds, advance tax credits, etc. if any, as may be

required consequent to implementation of this Scheme.

18.50n this Scheme becoming effective, the shareholders of the
Transferee Company, the Transferor Company shall be deemed
to have also accorded their approval under all relevant
provisions of the Act for éiving effect to the provisions contained

in the Scheme.

19 COSTS, CHARGES & EXPENSES

19.1All costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other
expenses, if any (save as e>‘(pre'ssly otherwise agreed) arising
out of, or incurred in carrying out and implementing this Scheme
and matters incidental théreto, shall be borne by the Transferee

Company.
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20 FILING / AMENDMENT OF RETURNS

20.1 The Transferee Company is expressly permitted to file/revise its

income tax (including TDS), ,‘Goods & Services Tax, , and other
statutory returns, cons_equentA to the Scheme becoming
effective, notwithstanding that the period for filing/ revising such
returns may have lapsed. Tran§feree Company is expressly
permitted to amend TDS/T 68 and other statutory certificates
and shall have the right to claim refunds, advance tax credits,
set offs and adjustments relating to their reépe'ctive incomes /
transactions from the Appointed Date. It is specifically declared
that all the taxes(including taxes paid under MAT) /duties paid
by the Transferor Company shall after the Appointed Date be
deemed to be the taxes(including taxes paid under MAT)/duties
paid by the Transferee Comp‘any‘. and the Transferee Company
shall be entitled to claim credit for such taxes deducted
(including taxes paid under MAT) paid against its tax/ duty
liabilities notwithstanding that the certificates/ challans or other
documents for payment of such taxes (including taxes paid

under MAT)/duties are in the name of the Transferor Company.

21 DISSOLUTION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY

21.1 Upon the Scheme hecoming effective, Transferor Company

'shall without any further act or deed, stand dissolved without

being wound up.

For Newgen Software Technologies Ltd.

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd.

R >

’g’?’ Gar/ WAuthorised Sf;l

tory

Authorised Signatory
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21.2 On and with effect from the Effective Date, the name of the
Transferor Company shall be struck off from the records of the
RoC. The Transferee Company shall make necessary filings in

this regard.

22 SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

22.1The transfer and vesting of tHe assets, liabilities and obligations
of Transferor Company as per this Scheme and the continuance
of the legal proceedings by or against the Transferee Company
shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already
completed by the Transferor Company on or before the
Appointed Date, and aftér the Appointed Date till the Effective
Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee Company
accepts all acts, deeds and thing; done and executed by -and/or
on behalf of the Transferor Company as acts deeds and things
done and executed by and on behalf of the Transferee

Company.

23 SEVERABILITY

23.11f any part of this Scheme hereof is invalid, ruled illegal by any
court/ tribunal of competent jurisdiction or unenforceable under
present or future Laws, fhen it is the intention of the parties to
the Scheme that such part ;shall be severable from the
remainder of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be affected
thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause this

Scheme to become materially adverse to any party, in which

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd. For Newgen Software Technologies Lid.

Brolparar~ Q o M@A"“&A
Authorised Signatory ' Authorised Stghatory
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case the parties to the Scheme 'shall attempt to bring about a
modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve for such
parties the benefits and obligations of the Scheme, including but

not limited to such part.

23.2 If any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any |
_reason whatsoever, th‘e same shall not, subject to the mutual
agreement of the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, affect the validity or implementation of the other parts

and/or provisions of this Scheme.

23.3 The non-receipt of any sanctions or approvals for a particular
asset or liability forming part of the Undertaking getting
transferred pursuant to this Scheme, shall not, subject to the
mutual agreement of the Tr_ansféror Company and the
Transferee Company, affect the effectiveness of the othAer parts

of the Scheme.

. :
or Newgen Software Technoiogies Ltd

For Number Theory Software Pvt. Ltd. Q\—Wﬂ
gywn <£§’9¢ o> L

Authorised Signgtbry
Authorised Signatory
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ANNEXURE- 2

/7/’; newgen

Newgen Software Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200DL 1992PLC049074, E-44/13, Okhla Phase 1I, New Delhi 110020, India
Tel: +91 11 46533200, 26384060, 26384146 Fax: +91 11 26383963

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NEWGEN
SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED UNDER SECTION 232(2)(c) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Newgen Software Technologies Limited
(“Transferee Company” or “Company”) at its Board meeting held on 3 May
2022 has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013,
as amended from time to time (“Act”) and other applicable laws between the
Company and Number Theory Software Private Limited (“Transferor
Company”) (the “Scheme”).

This Report as per the provisions of Section 232 of the Act, sets out the effect of
the Scheme on the equity shareholders, creditors, key managerial personnel,
promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Company and laying out in
particular if applicable, the share exchange ratio (specifying any special
valuation difficulties).

1. Scheme:

Upon the same becoming effective and with effect from the appointed date
(being 1 April 2022), all the assets and liabilities and entire business of the
Transferor Company shall stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company. In addition, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor
Company shall stand dissolved without being wound up. Further, no shares
will be issued to the shareholders of the Transferor Company pursuant to the
Scheme, as the said Transferor Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Transferee Company. '

2. Effect of the Scheme:

(a) Promoter and non-promoter shareholders

(i) Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the equity shareholders of the
Transferor Company shall not be entitled to receive the equity shares of the

Transferee Company as the Transferor Company is a whohy ﬂwned subsidiary

of the Transferee Company.

Registered Office: A-6, Satsang Vihar Marg, Qutab Institutional Ardg
Tel: +91 11 40770100, 26964733, 26963571 Fax: +911
info@newgensoft.com www.newgensoft.com
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(ii) Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, the equity shares of the
Transferor Company held by the Transferee Company shall stand cancelled in
their entirety. |

(iii) Upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company into and with the
Transferee Company, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without
winding up in accordance with the Scheme.

(b) Creditors

No rights of the creditors of the Transferor Company are being effected
pursuant to the Scheme. The liability of the Transferee Company towards the
creditors of the Transferor Company is neither being reduced nor being varied
* or extinguished. The creditors of the Transferor Company would in no way be
affected by the Scheme.

¢) Employees, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
ploy y g

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date,
all employees, who are on the payrolls of the Transferor Company shall
become, without any interruption of service as a result of the amalgamation and
transfer, employees of the Transferee Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date,
since the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved, the directors and/or Key
Managerial shall cease to be Directors and/or Key Managerial of the Transferor
Company.

3. Share Exchange Ratio and Valuation difficulties

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, no shares will be issued to the
shareholders of the Transferor Company pursuant to the Scheme, as the said
Transferor Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company.
Since pursuant to the Scheme, there will be no issuance of shares from the
Transferee Company to the Transferor Company, there is no valuation exercise
required to be undertaken by the Transferor Company or the Transferee
Company to determine the share exchange ratio.

For and on behalf of Newgen Software Technologies Limited
N {

Aman Mourya
Company Secretary

03]os (2022
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ANNEXURE-3

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD. OF DIRECTORS OF NUMBER THEORY
SOFTWARE PRIVATE LIMITED UNDER SECTION 232(2)(c) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Number Theory Software Private Limited
(”Transferor Company” or “Company.”) at its Board meeting held on 25t April 2022 has
approved the Scheme of Amalgamation pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013, as amended from time to time
(“Act”) and other applicable laws between the Company and Newgen Software
Technologies Limited (“Transferee Company”) (the “Scheme”).

This Report as per the provisions of Section 232 of the Act, sets out the effect of the Scheme
on the equity shareholders, creditors, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-
promoter shareholders of the Company and laying out in particular if applicable, the share
exchange ratio (specifying any special valuation difficulties).

1. Scheme:

Upon the same becoming effective and with effect from the appointed date (being 1 April
2022), all the assets and liabilities and entire business of the Transferor Company shall
stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company. In addition, upon the Scheme
becoming effective, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without being wound
up. Further, no shares will be issued to the shareholders of the Transferor Company
pursuant to the Scheme, as the said Transferor Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Transferee Company.

2. Effect of the Scheme:

(a) Promoter and non-promoter shareholders

(i) Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the equity shareholders of the Transferor
Company shall not be entitled to receive the equity shares of the Transferee Company as
the Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company.

(if) Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon. amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company, the equity shares of the Transferor Company
held by the Transferee Company shali stand cancelled in their entirety.

(ii) Upon amalgamation of the Transferor Company into and with the Transferee
Company, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without winding up in
accordance with the Scheme.

www.numbertheory.ai

BLK-D-10, PKT-8, G/F. Sec-23B, Dwarka, New Delli-110077

email: team@numbertheory.ai Phone: 0124-4929764
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417
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(b) Creditors

No rights of the creditors of the Transferor Company are being effected pursuant to the
Scheme. The liability of the Transferee Company towards the creditors of the Transferor
Company is neither being reduced nor being varied or extinguished. The creditors of the
Transferor Company would in no way be affected by the Scheme.

¢) Employees, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
ploy ' Yy &

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
employees, who are on the payrolls of the Transferor Company shall become, without any
interruption of service as a result of the amalgamation and transfer, employees of the
Transferee Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, since the
Transferor Company shall stand dissolved, the directors and/or Key Managerial shall
cease to be Directors and/or Key Managerial of the Transferor Company.

3. Share Exchange Ratio and Valuation difficulties

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, no shares will be issued to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company pursuant to the Scheme, as the said Transferor Company is a wh611y
owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company. Since pursuant to the Scheme, there will be
no issuance of shares from the Transferee Company to Transferor Company, there is no
valuation exercise required to be undertaken by the Transferor Company or the Transferee
Company to determine the share exchange ratio.

For and on behalf of
Number Theory Software Private Limited

Tl

T.S. Varadarajan
Director

Date: 25 |O \\\20 22

www.numbertheory.ai
BLK-D-10, PKT-8, G/F. Sec-23B, Dwarka, New Delhi-110077
email: team@numbertheory.ai Phone: 0124-4929764
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417
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ANNEXURE- 4

Newgen Software Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200DL1992PLC049074, E-44/13, Okhla Phase II, New Delhi 110020, India
Tel: +91 11 46533200, 26384060, 26384146 Fax: +91 11 26383963

Date: 06" May 2022

BSE Limited ' ' National Stock Exchange of India
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Limited
Dalal Street, Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block,
Mumbai — 400001 Bandra- Kurla Complex

‘ Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400051
Ref.: Newgen Software Technologies Limited Ref.: Newgen Software Technologies
(NEWGEN/INE619B01017) Limited
Scrip Code — 540900 (NEWGEN/INE619B01017)

Sub: Intimation of Scheme of Amalgamation under Regulation 37(6) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Dear Sir/Ma’am

We refer to our letter dated 03 May 2022 submitted under Regulation 30 of the LODR Regulations,
intimating that the Board of Directors of Newgen Software Technologies Limited (the “Transferee
Company™) at its meeting held on 03 May 2022 have considered and approved the scheme of
amalgamation under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Scheme"), is subject to necessary
statutory and regulatory approvals including the approvals of National Company Law Tribunal, the
shareholders ard creditors of each of the companies.

Number Theory Software Private Limited (“Transferor Company™) being wholly owned subsidiary of the
Transferee Company, pursuant to Regulation 37(6) of the LODR Regulations, there is no requirement of
obtaining any ‘No-Objection Letter' or 'Observation Letter' to the Scheme from the Stock Exchanges on
which the securities of the Company are listed.

However, in accordance with clause 7 of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017,
we hereby enclose the below mentioned documents for the purpose of the disclosure.

a. Certified copy of the Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) for the merger of Number Theory Software
Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) with Newgen Software Technologies Limited (“thé
. Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors; and

b. Certified true copy of the Resolution passed by the Board of Directors of Newgen Software
: Technologies Limited dated 03" May 2022, approving the scheme.

You are requested to kindly take the same on your records and disseminate the same on ycur website.

Enc.: a/a

Régistered Office: A-6, Satsang Vihar Marg, Qutab Institutional Area, New Deihi 110067, India
Tel: +9111 66476647, 40770100 Fax: +9111 26856936
info@newgensoft.com www.newgensoft.com
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S G Arora & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ANNEXURE- 5

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NUMBER THEORY SOFTWARE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of NUMBER THEORY
SOFTWARE PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet
as at 31t March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss Account (including other
income), and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (“hereinafter referred as

Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement

The management of the Company are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position& financial
performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

’

FF-141, JMD Megapolis, Sohna Road, Sector 48, Gurugram, Haryana - 122018
Phone : 0124-4959218 e-mail : info@cagsarora.com
Website : www.cagsarora.com
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Auditor’'s R nsibili

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standard on Auditing issued by the ICAL
Those Standards on Auditing require complying with ethical requirement and plan and
performing the-audit to obtain reasonable assurance about- whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us, the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India:

(a) In the case of the balance sheet, the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2022;

(b) In the case of the profit and loss account, of the profit/ loss for the year ended on
that date; and

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations whicl

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kap
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c. the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014;

e. on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2022, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in
terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise;

(iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not
arise.

For S G Arora & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA Saurabh Arora
Partner
M. No. 520925

Gurugram, 25tApril'2022
UDIN: 22520925AHTVIX7610

’
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The “Annexure -A" referred to in paragraph 1 with the heading ‘Report on other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of NUMBER THEORY
SOFTWARE PRIVATE LIMITED on the Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 315 March, 2022.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal coulse of audit and to the best of

our knowledge and h;eiief, we state that:

i){a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includin
p B g
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(i)(a)(B) The Company has not intangible assets.

(i)(b)  All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in
the previous year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once
in year which is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets.

(i)(c) Based on our examination of the sale deed/agreement of building provided to us,
we report that, the title in respect buildings immovable property (other than
properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included
under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

(i)(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022,

(i)(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a) The Company’'s business does not require maintenance of inventories and,
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ii)(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five
crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of
the year on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii)(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of
loans, stood guarantee or provided security to [companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties]. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii)(b)-Auring the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees,
Fafiled security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to
anies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties]. Accordingly,
irement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the




(iii)(c)

(iii)(d)

(iii)(e)

(iii) ()

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

(vii)(b)

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to
[companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties].
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to
[companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties]. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to
[companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or afly other parties]. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
[companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties].
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76
of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
irisurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed
by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added
tax, cess, goods and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

he Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
ecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
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(ix)(a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon
due to any lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
ix(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(ix)(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix)(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to
report on elause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(¢) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix)(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement
to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public
offer / further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year
under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by [cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us] in Form ADT
- 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.

(xi)(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xii)(a) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(xii)(b) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(xii){c) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
#o{ Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
§dtes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
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(xiv)(b) No internal audit required by the Company and hence requirement to report on

(xv)

Clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
Persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause

3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)

(xvi)(b)

are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement Lo report on
Clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(xvi)(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made

by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year in the immediately
preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

On the basis of the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information

‘accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors

and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management and
the audit procedures performed by us, provisions of section (5) of section 135 of
Companies Act, are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management and
the audit procedures performed by us, provisions of section (5) of section 135 of
Companies Act, are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

87



(xxi)  There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in
the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CAROQO) reports of the company.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not

applicable.

ForS G Arora & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 024523N

CA Saurabh Arora
Partner
M, No, 520925

Gurugram, 25%April’2022
UDIN: 22520925AHTVIX7610
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Number Theory Software Private Limited
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417

Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2022

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Notes Amount as on Amount as on
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
a, Share Capital 2 5.00,000 5,00,000
b. Reserves and Surpius {2,99,05,785) (44,83,023)
2. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term borrowings 4 3,47,63,413 1,53,35,386
3. CURRENT LIABILITIES
a. Trade Payable 5 - -
b. Short Term Borrowings 6 - 18,31,232
c. Other Current Liabilities 7 8,04,818 33,65,031
d. Short Term Provisions 10,37,476 -
Total 71,699,922 1,65,48,626
1. ASSETS
1. NON CURRENT ASSETS
a. Fixed Assets
-Tangible Assets 8 6,51,089 8,28,824
b. Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 37,840 19,275
2. CURRENT ASSETS
a. Trade Receivables 9 - 75,83,865
b. Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 22,26,984 13,16,226
d. Other Current Assets 11 42,284,009 68,00,436
Total 71,99,922 1,65,48,626

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For S G Arora & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 024523N

-,

Saurabh Arora
{Partner)
Membership No. 520925
Date: 25-04-2022 Diwakar Nigam
Place: Gurgaon

UDIN: 22520925AHTEHG1378

Director
DIN : -00263222

For Number Theory Software Private Limited

T.S.Varadarajan
Director
DIN :-00263115
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Number Theory Software Private Limited
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417

Statement of Profit & Loss for the period ending 31.03.2022

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Notes Amount as on Amount as on
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
1. Revenue
-Revenue from Operations 12 1,69,41,603 3,31,74,335
-Other Income 13 12,839 1,70,785
Total 1,69,54,442 3,33,45,120
2, EXPENSES
Employee Benefit Expenses 14 2,66,70,699 1,97,32,903
Finance Cost 15 5,65,371 6,94,247
Other Expenses 16 1,34,22,901 1,32,20,392
Total 4,06,58,971 3,36,47,542
Earnings before Tax and Depreciation. (2,37,04,529) (3,02,422)
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 3,56,734 3,60,148
Profit before Tax (2,40,61,263) (6,62,570)
Tax Expense

- Current Tax - -

- Deferred Tax (11,380) (15,306)
Total Tax Expense (11,380) (15,306)
Profit for the year (2,40,45,883) (6,47,264)

Basic EPS (481) (13)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For S G Arora & Co. For Number Theory Software Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 024523N

;w’

Saurabh Arora
(Partner)
Membership No. 520925

4

Diwakar Nigam
Director
DIN : -00263222

Date: 25-04-2022 T.S.Varadarajan

Place: Gurgaon
UDIN: 22520925AHTEHG1378

Director
DIN :-00263115
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INR

Cash flow from Operating Activities

Net profit before tax

(2,40,61,263)

Adjustments for non cash items:-

Add:-

Depreciation 3,56,734
Adjustments for working capital changes:-

Accounts Receivable 75,83,865
Other Deposits -
Other Current Assets -
Other Current Liabilites 10,37,476
HST/CT Tax Payable -
Expense Payable -
Cash flow from operating activities (1,50,83,188)
Taxes Paid 7,185
Net cash generated from operating activities (1,50,90,373)
Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets (1,78,999)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,78,999)
Cash flow from Financing Activities

Loans from Directors & Friends -
Debentures -
Loan from NSTL(Holding Co) -
Repayment of Bank Loan (18,31,232)
Others (13,72,879)
Net cash used in financing activities (32,04,111)
Net increase in cash{A+B+C) (1,84,73,483)
Cash at beginning of period 13,16,226
Cash at end of period (1,71,57,2587)
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Number Theory Software Private Limited
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417

Notes to financial Statements for the period ended 31.03.2022

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. GENERAL
The company was incorporated on 08.01.2016, having its registered office at Block D10, Pocket 8, Ground Floor, Sector 23B,
Dwarka, New Delhi, 110077. The main object of the company is to carry on the business of software development.

b. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial statements are prepared under the Historical Cost Convention as a going concern and are, in accordance with

the generally accepted accounting principles & standards and relevant disclosure 'requirements of The Companies Act, 2013.
The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting.

c. FIXED ASSETS

All the Fixed Assets are valued at cost less depreciation/amortization. The cost of an asset includes the purchase cost of
materials, including import duties and non-refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to the
location and condition of its intended use.

d. DEPRECIATION

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Written Down Value ( WDV) at the rates prescribed in Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 . Depreciation on addition/ deletion made during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from the date
of addition/ deletion on which asset is put to use or upto date of deletion.

e. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised only when risks and rewards incidental to ownership are transferred to the customer, it can be
reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. Revenue from operations includes sale of goods,
services, tax, and sales during trial run period, adjusted for discounts (net), and gain/loss on corresponding hedge contracts.

f. FORIGN CURERENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction and exchange
difference arising from settled transactions are adjusted to the Profit & Loss Account.All monetary items denominated in
foreign currency at the year end are translated at the year end rate of exchange difference arising therefrom and are adjusted
to the Profit & Loss Account.

g. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
We have recorded all known liabilities in the financial statements of Leave Encashment. The Company has no policy for
leave encashment or accrual thereof; hence there is no accrued liability for leave encashment as at the period-end.

h. LEASES
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account on a

straight line basis over the lease term.

i. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot bg LTS s@\with reasonable certainty are treated as
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i) TAXATION

(a) Tax Expense comprises of Current and Deferred Tax. Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid
to the Tax Authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(b) Deferred Tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet
date. Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the difference
between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the cumulative effect thereof is reflected in the Balance Sheet.

k) OPERATING CYCLE

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out above which are in accordance with the Schedule I1I to the Act.

Based on the sale of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current- non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

1) PROVISIONS AND CONTIGINCIES
A provision is recognized when:
a. the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past events;

b. it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

c. in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions {excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However Contingenr assets are assessed continuously and if
it is virtually certain that an economic bernefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the period in
which the change occurs.

m) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction and exchange
difference arising from settled transactions are adjusted to the profit & loss account. All monetary items denominated in
foreign currency at the year end are translated at the year end rate of exchange difference arising therefrom and are adjusted
to the Profit & Loss Account.

n) EARNING PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of
equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

o) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and Cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash at bank and on hand and short term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdra are considered an integral part of the Company’s Cash
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Number Theory Software Private Limited
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417

Notes to financial Statements for the period ended 31.03.2022

2. SHARE CAPITAL

Asat As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Amount(Rs) Amount(Rs)‘
Authorised Capital
1,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00
10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital
50,000 Equity shares @ Rs 10 each 5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00
5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00
a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.
EQUITY SHARES (of Rs.10 each)
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
No of Shares Amouunt (Rs) No of Shares Amouunt (Rs)
At the beginning of the period 50,000 5,00,000.00 50,000 5,00,000.00
Issued during the period - - - -
Shares redeemed during the period - - - -
Cutstanding at the end of the period 50,000 5,00,000.00 50,000 5,00,000.00
c. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
No of Shares % Holding No of Shares % Holding
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up
Newgen Software Technologies Limited (Holding Co.) 50,000 100% - -
Tarun Gulyani - - 25,000 50%
Rajan Nagina - - 25,000 50%

b) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the Year ended 31st March 2022, no amount of dividend was recognised.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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Number Theory Software Private Limited
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417

Notes to financial Statements for the period ended 31.03.2022

3. Reserves & Surplus

Asat As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Balance as per last financial statements (44,83,023) (38,35,759)
Profit/Laoss for the period (2,40,49,883) (6,47,264)
Others (13,72,879) -
Closing Balance (2,99,05,785) (44,83,023)
Share Premium - _
Total Reserves and Surplus (2,99,05,785) (44,83,023)
4. Long Term Borrowings
Asat Asat
31.03,2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Unsecured Loans - -
Loans from Directors & Friends - 3,35,386
Debentures - 1,50,00,000
Loan from NSTL(Holding Co) 3,47,63,413 -
3,47,63,413 1,53,35,386
5. Trade Payable
Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Sundry Creditors - -
6. Short Term Borrowings
Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Unsecured Loans
-HDFC Bank Limited 18,31,232
- 18,31,232
7. Other Current Liabilities
Asat Asat
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Taxes Payable 5,26,816 16,73,181
Expenses Payable - 1,73,727
Other Current Liabilities 2,78,002 15,18,123
8,04,818 33,65,031
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Number Theory Software Private Limited
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417

8_ Fixed Asset
) ;RateofD'pf 8 —
I s b 1] / . ; Deprec1at10n on 'f A
i RN ol el danig clition b |7 e
A I ) ;’_L_-',’hc;y_h e ‘31/03/2022 i 01?04/1021‘ assets soId v f{i 1/03/2021‘ el
Computer & Accessories 63.16% 9,19,983 1,79,000 - 10,98,983 " 4,94,655 2,80,098 - 7.74,753 4,25,328 3,24,230
Furniture & Fixtures 25.89% 88,350 - - 88,350 42,077 11,980 - 54,057 46,273 34,293
Office Equipments 18.10% 5,86,536 - - 5,86,536 2,29,313 64,657 - 2,93,970 ) 357,223 2,92,566
TOTAL 15,94,869 1,79,000 - 17,73,869 7,660,045 3,56,735 - 11,22,780 8,28,824 6,51,089
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Number Theory Software Private Limited
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417

Notes to financial Statements for the period ended 31.03.2022

9, Trade Receivables

As at Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Sundry Debtors
-Outstanding for more than 6 months - -
-Outstanding for less than 6 months 75,83,865
- 75,83,865
10. Cash and Bank balances
Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Cash Balance 6,371 63,834
Balance with Banks
-Balance in Current Accounts 22,20,613 12,52,392
22,26,984 13,16,226
11. Other Current Assets
Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Fixed Deposits - 30,00,000
Office Security 5,44,985 1,74,485
Other Current Assets 37,39,024 36,25,951
42,84,009 68,00,436
12. Revenue from Operations
Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs}
Revenue from Operations
-Domestic Revenue 1,69,41,603 1,89,63,417
-Export Revenue - 1,42,10,918
1,69,41,603 3,31,74,335
13. Other Incomes
Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
. Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
[nterest on Fixed Deposits 9,013 1,60,755
Interest on Bank 3,699 10,030
Cash Back 127
12,839 1,70,785




Number Theory Software Private Limited
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417

Notes to financial Statements for the period ended 31.03.2022

14. Employee benefit expenses

Asat Asat Asat
31.03.2022 18.01.2022 31,03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Salaries, Bonus, PF & ESIC 2,66,54,562 1,34,74,024 1,96,70,747
Staff Welfare Expenses 16,137 47,185 62,156
2,66,70,699 1,55,21,209 1,97,32,903
15. Finance Costs
_Asat As at As at
31.03.2022 18.01.2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Bank Charges 6,570 6,113 19,247
Interest On ICD 3.49,874
Interest 2,08,927 1,598,656 6,75,000
5,65,371 1,65,769 6,94,247
16. Qther Expenses
Asat Asat Asat
31.03.2022 18.01.2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Auditors Expenses (As per annexure 17) 20,000 40,000 40,000
Business Promotion Expenses 12,503 12,503 9,589
Communication Charges 75,644 20,897 71,221
Consultancy Expenses 25,30,000 25,30,000 75,47,500
Conveyence Expenses 59,044 - 3,640
Domain Charges 9,81,0456 8,08,474 3,07,113
Donation : - - 39,500
Electricity Expenses 9,394 - 40,638
Employee Reimbursement 1,98,365 1,895,015 -
Employee Inusrnace 26,128
Fees & Subscription 3,717 2,972 2,26,780
Fuel Expenses 25,038 25,038 -
Freelancer Expenses 20,000 20,000 35,100
Gratuity Expenses 10,17 476 10,17,475 -
Internet Expenses 27,939 27,939 30,900
Legal & Professional Charges 33,00,651 12,88,590 1,96,800
Medical Expenses 2,081 2,081 -
Office Expenses 56,499 50,571 6,36,789
Office Maintenance 9,05,591 7,68,236 7,26,440
Preliminary Expenses W/o - - 4,000
Amount Written Off 20,08,565
Printing & Stationery Expenses 650 650 5,610
Registration Fees 2,05,650 8,450 -
ROC Fees 3,850 3,850 -
Recruitment Expenses 1,43,750 1,39,365 3,03,065
Rental Expenses 10,66,585 7,50,969 19,52,079
Server Expenses 4,17,000 4,17,000 -
Forex Fluctuations 40,106
Misc, Expenses 4,490
Sofrware Expenses 37,323 18,765 -
Technology Expenses 2,13,525 1,83,577 10,19,628
Travelling Expenses - Domestic 8,891 8,891 -
Web Designing Expenses 31,645 24,000
1,34,22,901 83,86,954 1,32,20,392
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Number Theory Software Private Limited
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417

Notes to financial Statements for the period ended 31.03.2022

17. Payment to Auditors

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 . 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
As Auditor:
Tax Audit Fees - -
Statutory Audit Fees 20,000 40,000
In other capacity:
Others - -
Total 20,000 40,000
18. Earning per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and share data in the basic EPS
Asat Asa
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)
Total operations for the year 1,69,54,442 3,33,45,120
Profit/ (Loss) after tax (2,40,49,883) (6,47,264)
Less: Dividends on convertible preference shares & tax thereen - -
Net profit/ (Loss) for calculation of basic EPS (2,40,49,883) (6,47.264)
No of Shares No of Shares
50000 50000
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS
Basic EPS (481) (13)
19. Related party disclosures
A, Name of Related parties and refated party relationship
Key Management Personnel Diwakar Nigam
Key Management Personnel T.S.Varadarajan
B. Related Party Transactions
Asat
31.03.2022
_Amount (Rs)
Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Inter-company Deposit given 3,41,00,000
Intt. on Inter-company Deposit 3,49,874
Insurance paid on behalf of NT 3,13,539
3,47,63,413
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Number Theory Software Private Limited
CIN: U72300DL2016PTC289417

20. Activity in Foreign Currency

Asat
31.03.2022
Amount (Rs)
(a) Earning in Foreign Exchange -
(b) Expenditure in Foreign Exchange -

21. Impairment of Asset
As per internal assessment of the company there is no asset requiring provision for impairment as on 18.01.2022 as per AS 28

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

22. Previous years figures.
Previous years figures have been presented for the purpose of comparison and have been regrouped where necessary.

23. Debit/Credit balances included in Sundry Debtors, Loans and Advances, Current liabilities are pending confirmation and
consequential reconciliation. Adjustments in this respect, in the opinion of the management are not likely to be material and
wotld be carried out as and when ascertained.

24. In the opinion of the board, currents assets, loans and advances have a value on realisation in the crdinary course of buiness
atleast equal to the amount at which they are stated. '

For § G Arora & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 024523N

Saﬁra \//

(Partner) ~
Membership No. 520925 &—
Date: 25-04-2022 Diwakar Nigam T.S.Varadarajan

Place: Gurgaon Director Director

UDIN: 22520925AHTEHG1378 DIN : -00263222 DIN :-00263115
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP ANNEXURE- 6

Walker Chandiok & Ca LLP
215t Floor, DLF Square
Jacaranda Maig, OLF Phase |l
Gurugram - 122 002

India

T +91 124 462:8088,
F+a1 124462 8001

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standaione financial statements of Newgen Software Technologies Limited
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of the sigmificant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and
its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI') together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Chartered Accountants
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5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A. Revenue recognition for software

implementation services

Refer Note 3(i)(ii) for accounting policy and 27
of notes forming part of the Standalone
Financial Statements.

The Company earns revenue from software
implementation services wherein it has
entered into various fixed-price contracts, for
which revenue is recognised by the Company
using the percentage of completion computed
as per the Input method prescribed under Ind
AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. The said revenue recognition
accounting policy involves exercise of
significant judgement by the management and
the following factors requiring significant
auditor attention:
e High estimation uncertainty relating to
determination of the progress of each
contract, efforts incurred tili date and
additional efforts required to complete
" satisfaction of the performance obligation
e Determination of unbilled revenue
receivables and unearned revenue related
to these contracts as at the end of reporting
period

Considering the materiality of the amounts
involved and significant degree of judgement
and subjectivity involved in the estimates as
mentioned above, we have identified revenue
recognition from fixed price contracts as a
key audit matter for the current year audit.

Our audit work included but was not restricted to the foliowing
procedures:

a)

Obtained an understanding of the systems, processes and
controls implemented by management for recording and
calculating revenue, and the associated unbilled revenue,
unearned revenue and deferred revenue balances.

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of related
manual controls and involved auditor's experts to assess key
information technology (IT) controls over the |IT environment
in which the business systems operate, including access
controls, segregation of duties, program change controls,
program development controls and IT operation controls;

Selected a sample of contracts and performed a performed

the following procedures:

- Inspected key terms, including price, deliverables,
timetable and milestones set out in the contract for
selected sample of contracts and identified the distinct
performance obligations.

- Tested project management tool for budgeted efforts
and related percentage completion milestones and
establishing accuracy of milestones based on
actualisation of efforts for delivered projects.

- Tested the details of activities completed with those
stated in the customer contract, details of activities
completed as provided by the project head and
confirmation/acceptance of completion of such activities
by the customer.

Evaluated the appropriateness of disclosures made in the
financial statements with respect to revenue recognised
during the year as required by applicable Indian Accounting
Standards.

B. Trade receivables and provision for
-expected credit losses

Refer note 3(e) for significant accounting
policy and note 43(C)(ii) for credit risk
disclosures.

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue
comprise a significant portion of the current
financial assets of the Company. As at 31
March 2022, the Company has reported trade
receivable of Rs. 18,864.30 lacs (net of
provision for expected credit loss of Rs.
3,134.11 lacs).

The Company applies simplified approach
permitted by Ind AS 109 - Financial
Instruments, which requires lifetime expected
credit losses to be recognised from the date of
initial recognition of receivables. The

Our audit work included but was not restricted to the following
procedures:

a)

b)

Obtained an understanding of the process adopted and
controls implemented by the Company for calculation,
recording and monitoring of the impairment loss recognised
for expected credit loss;

Assessed and tested the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls over completeness and accuracy of the key
inputs and assumptions considered for calculation,
recording and monitoring of the impairment loss recognised.
Also, evaluated the controls over the modelling process,
validation of data and related approvals;

Considered the Company's accounting policies for
estimation of expected credit loss on trade receivables and
unbilled revenue and assessing compliance with the policies
in terms of Ind AS 109;

Chartered Accountants

102




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Considering this area inherently involves
significant area of judgement and subjectivity
followed with discussions with TCWG at
regular intervals, we have identified this as a
key audit matter.

Company analyses the trend of trade |d) Inquired with management about the conditions leading to,
receivables under different ageing bracket for and their assessment of recoverability of dues from the
previous years and calculate weighted customers and also referred to the available communication,
average loss rate basis such movement in if any, between them.
ageing brackets.

e) Assessed, on a sample basis that items in the receivables
The estimate of expected credit [oss involves ageing report were classified within the correct ageing
judgement as the management factors the bracket by comparing individual items in the report with
past history as above, market conditions and underlying documentation, which included sales invoices,
forward looking estimates as at each reporting proof of delivery and customers sign offs;
date.

f) Analysed the methodology used by the management and

considered the credit and payment history of specific parties
to determine the trend used for arriving at the expected
credit loss provision and co-related to our understanding of
the debtor'’s financial condition, the industry in which debtor
operates.

g) Since the assumptions and inputs used for calculating ECL
is based on historical data, we assessed whether such
historical experience was representative of current
circumstances.

h) Tested the accuracy and completeness of underlying data
for "expected credit [oss model”.

iy Evaluated responses to direct confirmation request
circulated to customers and ensured the reconciling items
have been adequately recorded in the books of account;

i} Obtained written representations from management and
those charged with governance on whether they believe
significant assumptions used in calculation of expected
credit losses are reasonable.

k) Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made by the
management in the financial statements to reflect the
expected credit loss provision, trade and other receivables.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 13 e
&
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preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management;

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation;

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the standalone financial statements of the Company to
express an opinion on the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the pubhc
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 were audited by the
predecessor auditor, B S R & Associates LLP (Chartered Accountants), who have expressed an unmodified opinion
on those standalone financial statements vide their audit report dated 25 May 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to
its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report, to
the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial statements;

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms
of section 164(2) of the Act;

f}  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2022 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure Il wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as at 31
March 2022;

Chartered Accountants

105



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

ii.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022;

jii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v.  The dividend declared or paid during the year ended 31 March 2022 by the Company is in compliance with
section 123 of the Act

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regb/tr‘aja'\ No.: 001076N/N500013
\

Neeraj Goel
Partner

Place: Gurugram
Date: 3 May 2022
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets:

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment and
right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period
of two years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment and right
of use assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are
held in the name of the Company.

(d)The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and right of use assets or intangible
assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii) (a) The Company does not hold any tangible inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii) (a} of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore sanctioned by banks based on the security
of current assets. The quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed
by the Company with such banks and such returns/statements are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company for the respective periods, which were not subject to audit/review.

(ifi) (@) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans to 1 company. The details of
the same are given below:

Particulars Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances
in nature
of loans

Aggregate amount during the year - - | 34,450,000 -

- Subsidiary

Balance outstanding as at - - | 34,450,000 -

balance sheet date

- Subsidiary
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(a) The investments made and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans are not, prima facie,
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and the
payment of the interest has not been stipulated and accordingly, we are unable to comment as
to whether the repayments/receipts of principal interest are regular.

(c) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to
such companies, firms, LLPs or other parties.

(d) The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan which has fallen due
during the year. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue
loans/advances in nature of loan.

(e) The Company has granted loan which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment, as per details below:

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate of loans/advances in
nature of loan

e Repayable on demand (A) 34,450,000 - 34,450,000

o Agreement does not specify - -

any terms or period of

repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 34,450,000 - 34,450,000
Percentage of loans/advances in 100% - 100%

nature of loan to the total loans

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security, as
applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as deemed deposit within
the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

Chartered Accountants

108



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022

(vii)(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to in
subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any loans or
other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has
not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
any money by way of term loans during the year and there has been no utilisation during the current year
of the term loans obtained by the Company during any previous years. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
any funds on short term basis during the year or in any previous year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the period covered
by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the
year-.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii)  The Company has not entered into any transactions with the related parties covered under Section 177 or
Section 188 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal
audit system as required under section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period
under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of section 192 of
the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the RBI as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does
not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding financial
year.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022

(xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and
management, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent amount
in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the expiry of the financial year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements of the
Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registratiop No.: 001076N/N500013
\ﬁo\g
Nawj/ AN

Neeraj Goel
Partner
Membership No.: 099514

Place: Gurugram
Date: 3 May 2022
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of Newgen Software
Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Newgen Software Technologies Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘'ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in -am‘ with generally

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are (§‘r g on ly in Annexure

9)
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Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Newgen Software Technologies
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registratiog No.: 001076N/N500013

N e

Neeraj Goel

Partner

Membership No.: 099514
UDIN: 22099514AIHYBB9827
Place: Gurugram

Date: 3 May 2022
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 16,171.37 15,682.11
Right-of-use assets 19 4,412.87 4,239.66
Intangible assets 5 13.09 64.12
Investment in subsidiaries 6 2,786.27 1,420.34
Financial assets

Other Financial assets 7 10,087.33 3,684.13
Deferred tax assets (net) 33 1,488.54 1,913.69
Income tax assets (net) 8 1,289.90 985.84
Other non-current assets 9 18.15 6.83
‘Total non-current assets 36,267.52 27,996.72
Current assets
Financial assets

Investments 10 9,237.76 8,317.46

Trade receivables 11 18,864.30 17,541.07

Cash and cash equivalents 12 5,379.36 2,869.61

Other bank balances 13 17,236.15 17.003.77

Loans 14 365.75 9.04

Other financial assets 15 12,537.67 9,967.56
Other current assets 16 861.66 591.65
Total current assets 64,482.65 56,300.16
TOTAL ASSETS 1,00,750.17 84,296.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 17 6,954.02 6,930.60
Other equity . 18 69,940.50 56,418.49
Total equity attributable to the owners of the Company 76,894.52 63,349.09
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Botrowings 20 430.18 -

- Lease Jiabilities 19 1,231.03 1,091.74
Provisions 21 3,330.84 2,844.25
Total non-current liabilities 4,992.05 3,935.99
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 20 188.55 -

Lease liabilities 19 494.45 475,32

Trade payables . 22

- Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 75.27 -

- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4,024.63 2,387.20

Other financial liabilities 23 3,767.43 4,319.47
Deferred income 24 7,862.92 6,542.05
Other current liabilities 25 1,139.12 1,218.02
Provisions 26 627.02 446,52
Income tax liabilities (net) 9A 684.21 1.623.22
Total current liabilities 18,863.60 17,011.80
Total liabilities 23,855.65 20,947.79
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,00,750.17 84,296.88
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense

Current tax

Tax expense for earlier years
Deferred tax expense
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive (loss)/ income not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

o

Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

F ial assets or in: carried at fair value through other comprehensive income

Net other comprehensive (loss)! income to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Other comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share

Nominal value of share INR 10 (31 March 2021: INR 10)
Basic eamning per share (INR)

Diluted earning per share (INR)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standal

As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Neeraj Goe!
Partner

Membership No.: 099514

Place: Gurugram
Date: 03 May 2022

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note

27 71,078.57 61,039.47
28 2,993.38 1,430.95
74,071.95 62,470.42
29 34,890.01 27,926.06
30 317.79 534.84
31 1,532.43 - 1,851.48
32 18,076.59 15.188.91
54,816.82 45,501.29
19,255.13 16,969.13

33
3,090.56 3,632.26
- 1,288.86
565.32 288.58
3.655.88 5,209.70
15,599.25 11,759.43
(316.59) 102.73

110.63 (35.90)
(205.96) 66.83
(95.89) 7525
33.51 (26.30)

(62.38) 48.95
(268.34) 115,78
15,330.91 11,875.21
15,599.25 11,759.43
15,599.25 11,759.43
(268.34) 115.78
(268.34) 115.78
15,330.91 11,875.2]
15,330.91 11,875.21

34
22.47 17.00
2232 16.82

3

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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ot Oen e 1

Diwakar Nigam
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00263222

Place: New Delhi
Date: 03 May 2022
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All ammounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

a. Share capital

Equity share capital Total share capital
Particulars Number Amount Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 6,99,55,701 6,995.57 6,995.57
Less: Shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust 6,49,696 64.97 64.97
Total Share capital as at 31 March 2021 6,93,06,005 6,930.60 6,930.60
Balance as at 1 April 2021 6,99,55,701 6,995.57 6,995.57
Less: Shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust 4,15,510 41.55 41.55
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6,95,40,191 6,954.02 6,954.02
b. Other equity*
Others Items of.Otl.wr
. comprehensive income Total
. Securities Retained Capital General Newgen | Share options | Remeasure Debt attributable
Particulars premium earnings redemption reserve | ESOP Trust| outstanding ment of instruments | to owners of
reserve reserve reserve defined through OCI | the Company
benefit
liability
Balance as at 1 April 2020 10,314.50 33,286.82 87.95 1,731.39 297.47 405,75 (96.29) 0.89 46,028.48
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2021
Profit for the year - - 11,759.43 - - - - - - 11,759.43
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - - - - - - 66.83 48.95 115.78
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Addition to Newgen ESOP Trust reserve - - - - 106.85 - - - 106.88
Dividend on equity shares - (1,399.11) - - - - - - (1,399.11)
Employee stock compensation expense - - - - - 64.59 - - 64.59
Loss of debt instrument transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss - - - - - - - 9.00 9.00
Transferred to securities premium account on exercise of stock options 104.00 - - - - (125.62) - - (21.62)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 10,418.50 43,647.14 87.95 1,731.39 404.32 344.72 (29.46) 58.84 56,663.40
Less: Securities premium on shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust 244.91 - 244.91
Balance as at 31 March 2021 10,173.59 43,647.14 87.95 1,731.39 404.32 344.72 (29.46) 58.84 56,418.49
Balance as at 1 April 2021 10,418.50 43,647.14 87,95 1,731.39 404.32 344,72 (29.46) 58.84 56,663.40
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 May 2021
Profit for the year - 15,599.25 - - - - - - 15,599.25
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - - - - - - (205.96) (62.38) (268.34)
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Addition to Newgen ESOP Trust reserve - - - - 107.39 - - - 107.39
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividend on equity shares - (2,448.45) - - - - - - (2,448.45)
Employee stock compensation expense - - - - - 548.26 - - 548.26
Loss of debt instrument transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss - - - - - - - 7.35 71.35
Transferred to securities premium account on exercise of stock options 106.76 - - - - (130.21) - - (23.45)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 10,525.26 56,797.94 87.95 1,731.39 511.71 762,77 (235.42) 3.81 70,185.41
Less: Securities premium on shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust 244.91 - - - - - - - 244.91
Balance ns at 31 March 2022 10,280.35 56,797.94 87.95 1,731.39 511.71 762,77 (235.42) 3.81 69,940.50
* Refer note 18
Summary of significant accounting policies Note 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Fi ial S
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounis are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss allowance on trade receivables & unbilled revenue
Liabilities/ provision no longer required written back
Unrealised foreign exchange gain
Share based payment - equity settled
Finance cost
Fair valve changes of financial assets at FVTPL
Profit on sale of mutual funds (net) at FVTPL
Loss on redemption of bonds at FVTOCI
Interest income
Gain on lease termination

Operating cash flow before working capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in loans
Increase in other financial assets
(Increase )/decrease in other assets
Increase in provisions
(Decrease)/increase in other financial liabilities
Increase in other liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid (net)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition or construction of property plant and equipment
including intangible assets, capital work-in-progress and capital
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Purchase of mutual funds and bonds
Proceeds from redemption of mutual funds and bonds
Loan to body corporate
Interest received from bonds
Interest received from bank deposits
Investment in subsidiary company
Investment in bank deposits (net of maturities)
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayment of) / proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)
Repayment of lease liabilities
Dividend paid
Interest paid
Gain on transfer of equity shares by Newgen ESOP trust
Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the b of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents: (refer note 12)
Cash in hand
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts

- balances with scheduled banks in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months

Notes:

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"

1 Q

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Fi
As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrati%x No.: 001976

Neeraj Goel
Partner
Membership No.: 0993

Place: Gurugram
Date: 03 May 2022
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited

< Plecdets

Diwakar Nigam
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00263222 DIN: 00263115

Place: New Delhi
Date: 03 May 2022

Place: Noida
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For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

19,255.13 16,969.13
1,532.43 1,851.48
(8.05) (10.16)
1,804.50 2,149.62
(64.71) (7.27)
(297.92) (10.61)
438.74 61.90
195.39 465.37
(75.39) (70.60)
(146.79) (125.98)
24.80 27.78 ¢
(1,511.60) (1,034.23)
(0.43) (87.49)
21,196.10 20,178.94
(2,768.12) 4,133.12
(12.21) 74.50
(2,759.72) (1,350.05)
(267.62) 84.94
350.50 665.30
(731.06) 727.25
1,241.98 585.63
1,777.31 (754.59)
18,027.16 24,345.03
(4,333.60) (2,855.62)
13,693.56 21,489.41
(1,251.06) (1,166.15)
9.64 12.33
(16,374.16) (14,893.36)
15,408.22 14,444.43
(341.00) -
259.74 168.20
1,156.96 626.40
(702.73) -
(6.322.49) (13,487.76)
(8,156.88) (14,295.91)
- (7,453.21)
(689.01) (1,297.51)
(2,445.31) 1,399.11)
- (86.71)
107.39 153.94
(3,026.93) (10,082.60)
2,509.75 (2,889.10)
2,869.61 5,758.70
5,379.36 2,869.61
3.51 3.08
4,309.46 2,706.53
1,066.39 160.00
5,379.36 2,869.61

T.S.Varadarajan
Whole Time Director

Date: 03 May 2022

=
Arun Kumar Gupta

Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 056859

Place: Noida
Date: 03 May 2022

Aman Mourya

Company Secretary
Membership No: F9975

Place: Noida
Date: 03 May 2022



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1. Background

Newgen Software Technologies Limited (‘Newgen’ or ‘the Company’) is a public company domiciled
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office
of the Company is situated at A-6, Satsang Vihar Marg, Qutab Institutional Area, New Delhi - 110067.
The Company raised money by way of initial public offer during the year ended 31 March 2018 and its
shares were listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) of India.

The Company is a global software Company and is engaged in the business of software product
development including designing and delivering end-to-end software solutions covering the entire
spectrum of software services from workflow automation to Document management to imaging.
Newgen provides a complete range of software that helps automate business processes. Newgen’s
solutions enable document intensive organizations/ industries such as Finance and Banking, Insurance
and government departments to improve productivity through better document management and
workflow implementation.

2. Basis of Preparation

A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2018 were the first financial statements that the Company had prepared in
accordance with Ind AS.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
03 May 2022.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items ' Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value
' of defined benefit obligations
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

D. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty
about the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to
the carrying value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

¢ Note 3(i) and Note 27 - revenue recognition from fixed price contracts of software implementation
services: percentage of completion method to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a
proportion of the total efforts or costs to be expended. ™

e Note 3(l) and Note 19 — determination of lease term;

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2022 is included in the following notes:

* Note 3(c)(iii) —Estimation of Useful lives of intangible assets and Property, plant and equipment

e Note 29 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

¢ Note 33 —Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used;

e Note 35 —Fair value of share based payments

e Note 43 — Impairment of trade receivables and financial assets.

e Note 19 —Recognition of right of use asset and lease liability

E. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

- itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively.
All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquiéition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly
to the chief financial officer. The Company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to
measure fair values, then the Company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support
the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s audit committee.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

Note 35 — Share-based payment arrangements; and

Note 43 — Financial instruments.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
a. Foreign currency

i. Functional currency
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional
currency.

ii. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into INR, the functional currency of the Company, at
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates
the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Morietary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

b. Financial instruments

i. Recogmnition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are dlrectly—attglbutable to its acquisition or
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost;

- Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — debt investment;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as FVTPL: .

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
“ designated as FVTPL:
* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and
= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment _
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management, for instance the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio, frequency,
volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not -
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL. '

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
Interest.
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
» terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
= prepayment and extension features; and

Basis the above classification criteria, Company’s investments are classified as below:-

- Investments in government and other bonds have been classified as FVOCI.
- Investments in Mutual funds have been classified as FVTPL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL ‘
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI )

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in Statement
of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to Statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at_fair value and net gains and

Py SCN
0% [/

124



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset. :

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised. :

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Derivatives and Embedded derivatives

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host
contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

c¢. Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, ihcluding import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of
profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance
Sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not
ready to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Category of property, plant and equipment Estimated useful life (Years)

Building 60
Plant and equipment _ 15
Leasehold Improvements* 3
Office equipment** 10
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Computer hardware

- servers and networks 6

- Computers** , 3-5

126



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Depreciation on addition (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed off).

*Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease term of the respective property
or 3 years whichever is lower.

Leasehold land is amortised over the lease period of 90 years.

**Based on an internal technical assessment, the management believes that the useful lives as given
above best represents the period over which management expects to use its assets. Hence, the useful
life of plant and equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of
Companies Act, 2013.

d. Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the
specific asset to which it relates.

Amortization

Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful life (at present 3-4 years) or the tenure of the respective software
license, whichever is lower. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least
at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous
estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

e. Impairment

i. Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments.
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At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by
the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivr:llent
to ‘investment grade’ e.g. BBB or higher as per renowned rating agencies.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.
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The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

ii. Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying
amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to
the asset (or cash generating unit).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised

f. Employee benefits

i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii. Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees of the
Company and subsidiaries of the Company is recognised as an employee expense and deemed
investment, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally
become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense/deemed investment is based on the
estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense/dement investment is
based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at
the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value
of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences
between expected and actual outcomes.

iii. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Goyvernment administered
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provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are
rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.

iv. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market
yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to
the terms of related obligations

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past
service cost.

v.  Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of
any related assets is deducted.

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss

g. Provisions (other than for employee benefits)
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A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for. Provisions are reviewed by the management at
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Onerous contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.
Before such a provision is made, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract.

h. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements ‘

i. Revenue

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115
replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted Ind AS
115 using the cumulative effect method. The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact
to the Standalone financial statements of the Company.

Revenues from customer’s contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract
has been approved by the parties, in writing, to the contract, the parties to contract are committed to
perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. Revenue
is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services (“performance obligations™) to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has received or expects to receive
in exchange for these products or services (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to
collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. ‘

i. Sale of License

Revenue from sale of licenses for software products is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer which generally coincides with delivery of
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licenses to the customers, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible
return of software sold can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over, or
managerial involvement with the licenses transferred and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

ii. Rendering of services

Revenue from services rendered is recognized in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction
at the reporting date. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion
as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Software Implementation Services

The revenue from fixed price contracts for software implementation is recognized based on
proportionate completion method based on hours expended, and foreseeable losses on the completion
of contract, if any are recognized immediately. Efforts or costs expended have been used to determine
progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. Progress
towards completion is measured as the ratio of costs or efforts incurred to date (representing work
performed) to the estimated total costs or efforts. Estimates of transaction price and total costs or efforts
are continuously monitored over the lives of the contracts and are recognized in profit or loss in the
period when these estimates change or when the estimates are revised. Revenues and the estimated total
costs or efforts are subject to revision as the contract progresses. Provisions for estimated losses, if any,
on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on
the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.

The Company is also involved in time and material contracts and recognizes revenue as the services
are performed.

Digitization services
Revenue from digitization services is recognized as services are rendered to the customer.

Annual Technical services
Revenue from annual technical service and maintenance contracts is recognised ratably over the term
of the underlying maintenance arrangement.

iii. Sale of right to use software

Software-as-a-service, that is, a right to access software functionality in a cloud-based-infrastructure
provided by the Company. Revenue from arrangements where the customer obtains a “right to access”
is recognized over the access period.

Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due to the sale of license is recognized
as the performance obligations are satisfied.

Revenue is recognised, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. This inter alia involves
discounting of the consideration due to the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit
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terms. Reimbursements of out-of-pocket expenses received from customers have been netted off with
expense.

Amounts received or billed in advance of services to be performed are recorded as advance from
customers/unearned revenue. Unbilled revenue represents amounts recognized based on services
performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms.

iv. Multiple deliverable arrangements

When two or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single
arrangement, the Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS 115, Revenue from contract with
customer, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The
arrangements with customers generally meet the criteria for considering license for software products
and related services as distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the
Company has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its
relative standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is
the best evidence of its standalone selling price. In cases where the company is unable to determine the
standalone selling price, the company uses the expected cost plus margin approach in estimating the
standalone selling price.

Arrangements to deliver software products generally have three elements license, implementation and
Annual Technical Services (ATS). The company has applied the principles under Ind AS 115 to account
for revenues from these performance obligations. When implementation services are provided in
conjunction with the licensing arrangement and the license and implementation have been identified as
two separate performance obligations, the transaction price for such contracts are allocated to each
performance obligation of the contract based on their relative standalone selling prices. In the absence
of standalone selling price for implementation, the performance obligation is estimated using the
expected cost plus margin approach.

Deferred contract costs are incremental costs of obtaining a contract which are recognized as assets and
amortized over the term of the contract.

Revenue from subsidiaries is recognised based on transaction price which is at arm’s length.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts.
Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is
unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of
revenues.

j- Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in Statement of profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right
to receive payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
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- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the
gross basis.

k. Sale of investments

Profit on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company and is determined
as the difference between the sales price and the carrying value of the investment

1. Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain
that they will be exercised. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the
lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

134



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

ni.

i

ii.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the
Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination
option. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease
being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a
net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
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- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised,
are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/
no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities. '

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT?) under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is
recognised as current tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act
in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit
can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an
asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid
convincing evidence no longer exists.

n. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and cash in hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

o. Earnings per share (“EPS”)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares
outstanding during the year but including share options, compulsory convertible preference shares
except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

136



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

p. Share Capital
Equity Shares

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new
equity shares are recognized as a deduction from equity.

Dividends

The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders,
and interim dividend are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board
of Directors.

q. Basis of segmentation
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker (CODM).

Identification of segments:

All operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors, who have been
identified as the CODM, to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. Refer
note 45 for segment information.

r. ESOP Trust

The ESOP trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by
ESOP Trust are netted off from the total share capital. Consequently, all the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company, except
for profit / loss on issue of shares to the employees and dividend received by trust which are
directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.

s. Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

t. Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2022.
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4

Property, plant and equipment

Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2020
Additions during the year
Capitalised during the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2021
Additions during the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2020
Additions during the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2021
Additions during the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Carrying amount (net)
Balance as at 31 March 2021
Balance as at 31 March 2022

ts for the period ended 31 March 2022

Freehold land  Buildings Plant and Leasehold ' Vehicles Office Furnitureand Computer Total Capital
hinery  improv equipment fixtures and servers work-in-
progress
428  4,092.42 458.84 5.99 244.85 1,160.28 347.63 1,746.23 8,060.52  9,072.62
- 8,802.73 299.31 - - 171.46 283.97 284.12 9,841.59 43791
- - - - - - - - - (9,510.53)
- = 16.08 - 16.20 16.44 16.71 82.41 147.84 -
4.28 12,895.15 742.07 5.99 228.65 1,315.30 614.89 1,947.94 17,754.27 -
- - 2.07 - 275.83 40.11 1.12 1,088.89 1,408.02 -
- - 22.03 - 27.39 3.7 0.16 37.01 90.30 -
4.28  12,895.15 722.11 5.99 477.09 1,351.70 615.85 2,999.82 19,071.99 -
- 112.53 134.90 5.99 111.01 209.25 121.25 844.87 1,539.80 -
- 106.56 54.56 - 34.49 128.61 45.51 308.30 678.03 -
- - 15.49 - 16.20 16.25 15.54 82.19 145.67 -
- 219.09 173.97 5.99 129.30 321.61 151.22 1,070.98 2,072.16 -
- 217.02 70.49 - 36.37 136.51 62.39 39439 917.17 -
- - 2175 - 27.39 3.00 0.16 36.41 88.71 -
- 436.11 222.71 5.99 138.28 455.12 213.45 1,428.96 2,900.62 -
4.28  12,676.06 568.10 - 99.35 993.69 463.67 876.96 15,682.11 -
4.28  12,459.04 499.40 - 338.81 896.58 402.40 1,570.86 16,171.37 -

As at 31 March 2022 properties with a carrying amount of INR 366.49 lakhs (31 March 2021 : INR 374.60 lakhs) are subject to first charge to working capital limits from banks.
Capital commitment as on 31 March 2022 is NIL (31 March 2021: NIL)

Intangible assets

Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2020
Additions during the year
Balance as at 3] March 2021
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2020
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2021
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Carrying amount (net)

Balance as at 31 March 2021
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Computer software

401.94
8.57
410,51
2.10
412.61

262,38
84.01
346.39
53.13
399.52

64.12
13.09

138




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in lukhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

6  Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in equity instruments - at cost (unquoted)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

6,000 (31 March 2021: 6,000) common shares of USD 200 each, fully paid up of 567.79 530.09
Newgen Software Inc.
1,000,000 (31 March 2021: 1,000,000) common shares of CAD 0.10 each, fully 58.86 56.52
paid up of Newgen Software Technologies Canada, Limited.
250,000 (31 March 2021: 250,000) ordinary shares of SGD 1 each, fully paid up of 119.18 117.44
Newgen Software Technologies Pte. Limited.
210,000 (31 March 2021: 210,000} equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up of 46.50 46.50
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited.
20,000,000 (31 March 2021: 20,000,000) common stock of GBP 0.01 each, fully 182.86 178.74
paid up of Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd.
1,600,000 (31 March 2021: 1,000,000} common shares of AUD 1 each, fully paid 497.92 491.05
up of Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd.
50,000 (31 March 2021: Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up of 1,313.16 -
Number Theory Software Private Limited

2,786.27 1,420.34
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 2,786.27 1,420.34

Increase in investment represents investment in Number Theory Software Private Limited (Newly acquired company) and deemed investment on account of share
based payment awards granted to the employees of subsidiaries of the Company.

Company entered into Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) with shareholders of Number Theory Software Private Limited (NTSPL) in January 2022 to acquire 100%
stake. Pursuant to SPA, the Company made an investment of INR.1,405.47 lakhs of which INR 703,72 lakhs were paid on the acquisition completion date i.e. 28
January, 2022 and the remaining will be paid over next three years equally. Consequent to the acquisition, a Scheme of Amalgamation w/s 230-232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 which provides for merger of Number Theory Software Private Limited (NTSPL) with Newgen Software Technologies Limited (NSTL) (“Scheme”), has
been approved by the respective Board of Directors of companies at their meeting held on 3 May 2022, subject to requisite approval(s). The application will be filed
under Regulation 37 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with NCLT for their approval. As the approval is yet to be filed,
therefore pending sanctions, impact of the Scheme has not been considered in standalone financials of NSTL for FY 2021-22.

7  Other financial assets (non-current)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Bank deposits*

- Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 6,000.00 -

- pledged with tax authorities 4.42 4.42

- held as margin money 3,375.26 3,282.03

Interest accrued on deposits 262.69 47.10

Security deposits 408.43 338.30

Eamest money deposits

-Unsecured, considered good 36.53 12.28

-Unsecured, considered doubtful 164.75 164.75

-Less: Loss allowance for doubtful deposits (164.75) (164.75)
10,087.33 3,684.13

*Bank deposits held as margin money represents deposits made on account of guarantees issued to government customers amounting to INR 296.62 lakhs
(31 March 2021: INR 282.03 Jakhs) and deposits made to avail averdraft facilitics amounting to INR 3,078.64 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 3,000 Lakhs)

Information about Company's exposure to credit and market risks and fair value measurement is included in Note 43 .

8 Income tax assets (net)

Advance incame tax (net of provision of INR 13,990.61 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 5,453.20 lakhs))

8A Income tax liabilities (net)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

1,289.90

985.84

1,289.90

985.84

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Provision for tax (net of advance tax of INR 2,657.57 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 7,084.45 lakhs)) 684.21 1,623.22
' 684.21 1,623.22
9  Other non-current assets Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Prepaid expenses 4.43 6.83
Capital advances 13.72 -
18.15 6.83
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10

Investments (refer note 41) As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Investments in bonds (unquoted)
Bonds at FVOCI
-Investment in government bonds 6,468.06 3,561.72
6,468.06 3,561.72
Investments in mutual funds (unquoted)
Mutual funds at FVTPL 2,769.70 4,755.74
2,769.70 4,755.74
9,237.76 8,317.46
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 9,237.76 8,317.46

Investments in bonds measured at FVOCI have stated interest rates of 7.04% to 8.63%. Information about Company’s exposure to credit and market risks and fair
value measurement is included in Note 43(c).

Trade receivables As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- Unsecured, considered good ’ 20,967.48 19,091.07
- Trade receivable - Credit impaired 1,030.93 2,439.38
21,998.41 21,530.45
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
- Unsecured, considered good (2,103.18) (1,550.00)
- Trade receivable - Credit impaired (1,030.93) (2,439.38)
18,864.30 17,541.07

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedul
' Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Currentbut  Less than 6 months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than Total
not due 6 months  to 1 years 3 years
As at 31 March 2022
Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered good 13,754.50 5,357.93 1,222.10 632.95 - - 20,967.48
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Which
have significant .
increase in credit risk - - . |- - - -
Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit
impaired - - - 494.07 536.86 - 1,030.93
Disputed Trade Receivables-
Considered good - - - - - . - -
Disputed Trade Receivables-
Which have significant )
increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables-
credit impaired - - - v . - -
13,754.50 5,357.93 1,222.10 1,127.02 _536.86 - 21,998.41
Asat31 March 2021
Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered good 12,466.43 4,840.42 1,125.85 658.37 - - 19,091.07
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Which :
have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit
impaired - - - 29.47 888.44 1,521.47 2,439.38
Disputed Trade Receivables-
Considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables-
Which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables-
credit impaired - - - . - - - -
12,466.43 4,840.42 1,125.85 687.84 888.44 - 1,52147 21,530.46

*Includes balance receivables from related parties. For details refer note 42

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other
receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30-90 days.

The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are discussed in note 43(c).
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12 Cash and cash equivalents As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash on hand 3.51 3.08
Balances with banks
- in current accounts* 4,309.46 2,706.53
-Balances with scheduled banks in deposit accounts with original maturity of less 1,066.39 160.00
than three months
5,379.36 2,869.61
*Current account balances with banks include INR 48.10 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 142.43 lakhs) held at a foreign branch.
Short term deposits are from varying periods of between one day and three months, depending upon the immediate cash requirements of the group, and earn interest
at the respective short term deposit rates.
13 Other bank balances As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balances with scheduled banks in
- Original maturity of less than 12 months 17,229.24 17,000.00
- Unclaimed dividend * 6.91 3.77
17,236.15 17,003.77
*These balances are not available for use by the Company as they represent corresponding unclaimed liabilities.
14  Current financial assets - Loans As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Loans to employees® 21.25 9.04
Loan to a related party 344.50 -
365.75 9.04

*These are interest bearing loans - repayable within one year given to employees, chargeable at tl\le rate of 12% p.a.

Disclosure for loan given on demand

Type of borrower As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Amount % of total Amount % of total
outstanding* advance outstanding advance
Promoters - - - -
Directors - - - -
KMP - - - -
Other related party 344.5 94.19% - -
The Company has provided following loans in parsuant to section 186 (4) of Companies Act , 2013,
Name of the entit Balance as at Loan Loan Loan Balance as at
Y 31 March 2021 given* repaid provided for 31 March 2022
Number Theory Software Private Limited (subsidiary _ 344,50 ) _ 344.50
company)
344.50 - - 344.50
|
Disclosure parsuant to schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements ) regulations, 2015
Rate of Secured/ Balanceasat3! Maximum Balance as at Maximum
N fE . Interest Unsecured  March 2022*  O/S during 31 March 2021 OIS during
ame of Enterprise the year the year
. 21-22 20-21
Loans and Advances in the nature of loan given to subsidiary
Number Theory Software Private Limited 6% Unsecured 344.50 344.50 - .
1
344.50 -

* Includes interest INR 3.50 lakhs .
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15

Current financial assets - Others

(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on deposits
Interest accrued but not due on government bonds
Derivatives assets
Security deposits
Other receivable from related party
Unbilled revenue*
- other than related parties
Less: Provision for loss allowance
- related parties (refer note 42)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

*Unbilled revenue represents amounts recognised based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms.

*Changes in unbilled revenue is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Less: Amount of revenue billed during the year

Add: Addition during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Other current assets

Advances to vendors
Deferred contract cost
Advance to employees
Prepaid expenses
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378.27 519.11
307.04 158.87
21173 -
75.38 150.40
3.14 -
8,064.49 6,926.03
(273.39) -
3,771.01 2,213.15
12,537.67 9,967.56
Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
9,139.18 7,767.02
(5,470.19) (3,224.27)
8,166.51 4,596.43
11,835.50 9,139.18
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
54.11 12.65
109.68 93.90
52.44 24,52
645.43 460.58
861.66 591.65
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17

17A

17B

17C

17D

Share capital

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Number Number
i__of shaves Amount of shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each 9,80,00,200 9,800.02 9,80,00,200 9,800.02
0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each 1,19,99,800 1,199.98 1,19,99,800 1,199.98
11,00,00,000 11,000.00 11,00,00,000 11,000.00

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Issued, subscribed and paid up Number Number

of shares Amount of shares Amount
Equity share capital of INR 10 each, fully paid up 6,99,55,701 6,995.57 6,99,55,701 6,995.57
Add: Issued during the year to Newgen ESOP Trust - - - -
Balance 6,99,55,701 6,995.57 6,99,55,701 6,995.57
Less : Shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust 4,15,510 41.55 6,49,696 64.97
Total Share capital 6,95,40,191 6,954,02 6,93,06,005 6,930.60

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beg

ing and at the end at the reporting year.:

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Equity share capital of INR 10 cach, fully paid up Number Amount Nuraber Amount

of shares of shares
At the beginning of the year 6,99,55,701 6.995.57 6,99,55,701 6.995.57
Add: Issued during the year to Newgen ESOP Trust - - - -
At the end of the year 6,99,55,701 6,995.57 6,99,55,701 6,995.57
Less: Shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust 4,15.510 41.55 6,49,696 64.97
Total equity share capital 6,95,40,191 6,954.02 6,93,06,005 6,930.60

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

In case of equity shares, each equity shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend, if any. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their respective shareholding.

Details of shareholders holding more than $% shares in the Company

Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up held by:

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Number Number

of shares % Holding of shares % Holding
- Mr. Diwakar Nigam 1,56,74,732 22.41% 1,84,72,406 26.41%
- Mr. T.S. Varadarajan 1,50,09,306 21.46% 1,50,09,306 21.46%
- Mrs. Priyadarshini Nigam 65,69,792 9.39% 79,68,906 11.39%
- Mrs. Usha Varadarajan 13,32,320 1.90% 45,28,320 6.47%
- Malabar India Fund Limited 18,35,083 2.62% 49,78,931 7.12%

Details of shares held by promoters and promoters group
Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up held by:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Number % of total % change Number % of total shares

of shares shares during the year of shares
- Mr. Diwakar Nigam 1,56,74,732 22.41% -15.1% 1,84,72,406 26.41%
- Mr. T.S. Varadarajan 1,50,09,306 21.46% 0.0% 1,50,09,306 21.46%
- Mrs. Priyadarshini Nigam 65,69,792 9.39% -17.6% 79,68,906 11.39%
- Mrs. Usha Varadarajan 13,32,320 1.90% -70.6% 45,28,320 6.47%
- Mrs. Ragini Goorha 50 0.00% 0.0% 50 0.00%
- Mrs. Sudha Sairaj 100 0.00% 0.0% - -

Shares reserved for issue under Employee stock option plan and RSU Scheme
Terms attached to stock options granted to employees are described in note 35 regarding share based payments.

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

(i) Equity shares have been issued under Employee stock options plans to trust for which only exercise price has been received in cash.

For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended ended
31 March 2022 '31 March2021 31 March 2020 31 March2019 31 March 2018
Equity shares of INR 10 each - - 3,70,000 3,50,000 10,50,000

(ii) Other than aforementioned, no shares has been alloted by way of bonus issues and no shares has been bought back in the current year and preceding 5 years.
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18  Other equity As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Securities premium 10,280.35 10,173.59
Retained earnings 56,797.94 43,647.14
Capital redemption reserve 87.95 87.95
General reserve 1,731.39 1,731.39
Newgen ESOP Trust reserve 501,71 404.32
Share options outstanding reserve 762,77 344.72
Other comprehensive gain/ (loss) (231.61) 29.38
69,940.50 56,418.49
As at As at
Securities premium (refer note (i) below) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year 10,418.50 10,314.50
Transferred from share options outstanding reserve on exercise of stock options 106.76 104.00
Balance as at end of the year 10,525.26 10,418.50
Less: Securities premium on shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust 244.91 244.91
Balance as at end of the year 10,280.35 10,173.59
Asat As at
Retained earnings (refer note (ii) below) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year 43,647.14 33,286.82
Profit for the year 15,599.25 11,759.43
Dividend on equity shares (2,448.45) (1.399.11)
Balance as at end of the year 56,797.94 43,647.14
As at ) As at
Capital redemption reserve 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year 87.95 87.95
Balance as at end of the year 87.95 87.95
As at As at
General reserve 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year 1,731.39 1,731.39
Balance as at end of the year 1,731.39 1,731.39
Newgen ESOP Trust reserve (refer note (iii) below) As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year 404.32 297.47
Addition to Newgen ESOP Trust reserve 107.39 106.85
Balance as at end of the year 511.71 404.32
Share options outstanding reserve (refer note (iv) below) As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year 34472 405.75
Employee stock compensation expense 548.26 64.59
Transferred to securities premium account on exercise of stock options (130.21) (125.62)
Balance as at end of the year 762.77 344.72

Other comprehensive income/(loss) (refer note (v) below)

As at As at

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year (29.46) (96.29)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (net of tax} (205.96) 66.83
Balance as at end of the year (235.42) (29.46)
Fi ial assets or inv carried at fair value through other comprchensive income Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year 58.84 0.89
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (62.38) 48.95
(Profit)/Joss on sale of debt instrument transferred to profit and loss 7.35 9.00
Balance as at end of the year 3.81 58.84

(i) Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(ii) Retained earnings represents accummlated balances of profits over the years after appmpriat'ions for general reserves and adjustments of dividend,

(iii) Newgen ESOP Trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust are netted off from the total share capital.

Consequently, all the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company, except for profit / loss on issue of shares

to the employees and dividend received by trust which are directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.

(iv) The Company has established various equity-settled share-based payment plans for certain employees of the Company. Refer to note 35 for further details on these
lans.

?v) Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for analysis of other comprehensive income, net of tax.
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19 Right-of-use assets

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars Category of ROU asset Total
Leaschold land Buildings

Balance as at 1 April 2020 3,365.78 2,641.23 6,007.01

Termination of leases - (677.91) (677.91)

Depreciation (39.30) (1,050.14) (1,089.44)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,326.48 913.18 4,239.66

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the period ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Category of ROU asset Total
Leaschold land Buildings

Balance as at 1 April 2021 3,326.48 913.18 4,239.66

Addition - 739.97 739.97

Termination of leases - (4.63) (4.63)

Depreciation (39.30) (522.83) (562.13)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,287.18 1,125.69 4,412.87

*Right of use assets recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial recognition.

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.(refer note 31)

Lease liabilities

Break up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current lease liabilities 1,231.03 ' 1,091.74
Current lease liabilities 49445 475.32
Total 1,725.48 1,567.06
Movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2021

As at
Particulars 31 March 2021
Balance as at 1 April 2020 3,347.03
Additjon -
Finance cost 272.63
Termination of leases (755.09)
Payment of lease liabilities (1,297.51)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,567.06
Movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2022

As at
Particulars 31 March 2022
Balance as at | April 2021 1,567.06
Addition 672.16
Finance cost 180.33
Termination of leases (5.06)
Payment of lease liabilities (689.01)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,725.48

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to

lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was INR 448.81 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 94.31 lakhs)

For detail regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of lease liabilities. (refer note 43)
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20 Borrowings

Non Current Borrowings
-Deferred payment liabilities (refer note 6)

Current Borrowings

Current maturities of deferred payment liabilities (refer note 6)

21 Non-current provisions
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 29)

- provision for gratuity
- provision for compensated absences

22 Trade payables

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

430.18

430.18

188.55

188.55

Asat
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

2,633.00 2,196.75

697.84 647.50

3,330.84 2,844.25
Asat As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

- Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 75.27 -
- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4.024.63 2,387.20
: 4,099.90 2,387.20
Trade payables Ageing Schednle
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than Unbilled Total
1 year 3 years payable

As at 31 March 2022
Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small
enterprises 75.27 - - - - 75.27
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro
enterprises and small enterprises 253.68 B _ _ 3.414.67 3,668.35
Disputed Dues of Micro enterprises and small enterprises . - - . . .
Disputed Dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and
small enterprises . - - - 356.28 356.28

328.95 - - - 3,770.95 4,099.90
As at 31 March 2021
Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small
enterprises . _ N N . .
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro
enterprises and small enterprises 583 50 043 _ R 1,803.38 2,387.20
Disputed Dues of Micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed Dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and
small enterprises - - - - - -

583.59 0.23 - - 1,803.38 2,387.20
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30-45 days.
a) Refer note 37 for disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED).
b) Refer note 42 for dues to related parties.
¢) The Company's exposure to liquidity risk and currency risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 43(b) & (c).

23 Current financial liabilities - Others As at As at

Employee related payables

Payable in respect of retention money
Earnest money deposits

Payable for capital assets#

Unpaid dividends*

# Refer note 37 for amount payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises.
*Unpaid dividends amount is not due for deposit to the Investor Education & Protection fund.
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31 March 2022

31 March 2021

3,441.95 4,169.87
- 127.82

1.00 1.00
317.57 17.01
6.91 3.77
3,767.43 4,319.47
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24

25

26

Deferred income

Unearned revenue*

*Changes in deferred income is as follows:

Balance at the begining of the year
Revenue recognised that was included
Increase due to invoicing during the year,
Balance at the end of the year

in deferred income at the beginning of the year
ludi ised as revenue during the year

&

Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable

Advance from employees for share options
Other current liabilities

Advance from customers

Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 29)
- provision for gratuity
- provision for compensated absences
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Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
7,862.92 6,542.05
7,862.92 6,542.05
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
6,542.05 5,940.17
(6,388.62) (5,739.60)
7,709.49 6,341.48
7,862.92 6,542.05
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1,114.79 1,185.09
1.65 0.26
1.00 (0.00)
21.68 32.67
1,139.12 1,218.02
Asat As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

460.68 313.84
166.34 132.68
627.02 446.52
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27 Revenue from operations

28

29

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Sale of products - softwares 14,977.63 11,857.65
Sale of services

- Implementation 13,908.52 13,253.68

- Scanning 746.03 702.82

- AMC/ATS 17,532.14 14,396.97

- Support 19,055.47 16,900.50

- SaaS revenue 4,858.78 3.927.85

71,078.57 61,039.47

Performance obligations and r

ining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end of the reporting period and
an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has
not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where :

(i) The performance obligation is part of a contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less.

(ii) The revenue recognised corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts where
invoicing is on time and material basis.

Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts,
periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materialised and adjustments for currency.

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as at 31 March 2022, other than those meeting the exclusion criteria

mentioned above is INR Nil (31 March 2021 INR Nil),

Other income

Interest income under the effective interest rate method:

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended *
31 March 2021

- on security deposits at amortised cost 26.90 38.69
- government and other bonds at FVOCI 249.49 240.64
[nterest income on deposit with banks 1,231.71 754.90
Gain on lease termination 0.43 87.49
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 8.05 10.16
Profit on sale of mutual funds (net) at FVTPL 146.79 132.79
Fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL 75.39 70.60
Liabilities / provision no longer required written back 64.71 7.27
Net foreign exchange fluctuation gain 1,164.53 -
Bad debts recovered 5.00 43.10
Miscellaneous income 20.38 45.31
2,993.38 1,430.95

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus 32,063.29 25,747.74
Contribution to provident funds (refer note i below) 1,104.02 995.96
Expenses related to compensated absences (refer note ii below) 535.95 419.26
Share based payment - equity settled 488.74 61.90
Expense related to defined benefit plan (refer note iii below) 526.54 614.89
Staff welfare expenses 171.47 86.31

34,890.01 27,926.06

(i) Defined contribution plans:

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of the employee salaries in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund, which
is a defined contribution plan. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to provident fund for the year aggregated to INR 1,104.02 lakhs (31 March
2021: INR 995.96 lakhs). The amount recognised as an expense towards employee state insurance aggregated to INR 0.29 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 0.88 lakhs).

(ii) Compensated absences:
The Principal assumptions used in determining the compensated absences benefit obligation are as given below:

31 March 2022
3.55%-17.18%
5.00% -7.00%

31 March 2021
3.20% - 6.88%
5.00% - 6.00%

Discounting rate (p.a.)
Future salary increase ( p.a.)

(iii) Defined Benefit Plan:
Gratuity scheme - This is an unfunded defined benefit plan and it entitles an employee, who has rendered atleast 5 years of continuous service, to receive one-half
month's salary for each year of completed service at the time of retirement/exit. .

i) On normal retirement / early retirement / withdrawal / resignation: As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with vesting period of 5 years of
service.

ii) On death in service: As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting period.

Gratuity payable to employee in case (i) and (ii), as mentioned above, is computed as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 except the Company does not have any
limit on gratuity amount.
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AM t in net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year

Benefits paid

Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in OCI
change in demographic assumptions

hange in financial ption

experience adjustments

Balance at the end of the year

B. i) Expense recognised in profit and loss
Particulars

Current segvice cost
Interest cost
Total expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss

iR ts 1

Particulars

Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligation

Total remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

C. Defined benefit obli
i. Actuarial assumptions

1 in other comprehensive income

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Mortality rate

ii. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumption:

benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2,510.58 2,077.89
(260.03) (123.72)
361.46 471.52

165.08 143.37

1.84 20.87

116.71 3.28

198.04 (82.63)
3,093.68 2,510.58

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

361.46 471.52
165.08 143.37
526.54 614.89

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

316.59

(58.48)

316.59

(58.48)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

3.55%-7.18%
5.00% -7.00%
100% of IALM

(2012- 14)

3.25%- 6.88%
5.00% - 6.00%
100% of IALM

(2012- 14)

s, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.50% movement) (105.20) 114.82 (77.18) 83.10
Future salary growth (0.50% movement) 113.90 (105.64) 83.40 (78.76)

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable being
a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Although the anaiysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's
financial statements as at balance sheet date:

til. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligati As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Within the next 12 months ( next annual reporting period ) 460.68 313.84
Between 2 and 5 years 1,049.38 790.86
Beyond 5 years 1,622.50 1,430.20

Net defined benefit liability 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Liability for gratuity 3,093.68 2,510.58
Liability for compensated absences 864.18 780.17
Total employee benefit liabilities 3,957.86 3,290.75
Non-current:

Gratuity 2,633.00 2,196.75
Compensated absences 697.84 647.50
Current:

Gratuity 460.68 313.84
Compensated absences 166.34 132.68

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The
Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.
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30

31

32

Finance costs

Finance cost on lease liabilities
Interest expense on borrowings
Other finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4)
Depreciation of right-of use assets (refer note 19)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5)

Other expenses

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

Rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional fees

Outsourced technical services expense (refer note 42)
Cloud hosting services

Payment to auditors*

Electricity and water

Advertising and sales promotion
Membership and subscription fee
Brokerage and commission
Communication costs

Software and license maintenance
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note 39)
Donation

Recruitment charges

Insurance

Operation and maintenance

Printing, stationery and scanning charges
Loss allowance on trade receivables

(net of adjustment for bad debts written off of INR 2,386.38 lakhs (previous year INR 2991.03 lakhs). Loss
allowance on trade receivables includes loss allowance created on unbilled revenue amounting to INR 273,39

[akhs)

Security charges

Net foreign exchange fluctuation loss

Loss on redemption of bonds (net) at FVOCI
Miscellaneous expenses

*Payment to auditors

As auditor:

- Statutory audit fee

- Limited review fee

- Certification fee

- Reimbursement of expenses
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For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

180.33 272.67

15.05 86.71
12241 175.46
317.79 534.84

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

917.17 678.03
562.13 1,089.44
53.13 84.01
1,532.43 1,851.48

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

44881 9431
319.38 261.85
324.65 426.49
974.82 773.16
2,327.33 2.140.17
4,100.05 3,219.84
1,402.26 1,245.75
66.95 7231
310.75 355.98
843.23 399.33
275.82 250.00
1,466.61 861.77
229.00 233.69
1,085.03 790.09
248.85 201.27
30.82 29.00
398.49 115.53
494.09 385.02
249.13 418.65
400.48 293.12
1,804.50 2,149.62
201.62 229.12
- 141.98
24.80 27.78
49.12 73.08
18,076.59 15,188.91
37.00 39.50
21.50 22.50
5.25 6.95
3.20 3.36
66.95 72.31
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Income Tax

A. The major components of income tax income recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Tax expense 3,090.56 3,632.26
Tax expense for earlier years - 1,288.86
Deferred tax expense 565.32 288.58
Total 3,655.88 5,209.70
Recognised in Other comprehensive income
Tax impact on ’
- Re-measurement on defined benefit plan 110.63 (35.90)
- Financial assets or investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income 33,51 (26.30)
Total 144.14 (62.20)
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 19,255.13 16,969.13
Tax using the Company's tax rate 34.94% 6,728.51 34.94% 5,929.69
Effect of deduction under section 10AA of the Income tax .
Act, 1961 -15.69% (3,020.28) -13.38% (2,270.61)
Effect of expenses permanently disallowed under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 ’ 0.70% 135.56 0.25% 41.98
Effect of income exempt/ non taxable/ taxed on lower rate -0.60% (116.38) -0.68% (114.75)
Effect of profit on redemption of mutual funds -0.16% (30.67) 0.66% 111.75
Tax expense for earlier years -1.30% (251.22) 7.60% 1,288.86
Others 1.09% 210.36 1.31% 222.78
Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss for the
current year 18.99% 3,655.88 30.70% 5,209.70

C. Deferred tax asset /(liabilities) and movement in temporary differences

31 March 2022

Balance as at

Recognised in

Recognised in OCI

Balance as at

N 1 April 2021 | Statement of Profit | during the year 31 March 2022
Particulars .
or Loss during the

year
Investments at fair value through OCl (29.73) - 29.54 (0.19)
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) 15.47 - 110.63 126.10
Property, plant and equipment (606.72) (390.04) - (996.76)
Loss allowance on other financial assets 57.57 ' - - 57.57
Loss allowance on trade receivables 1,394.05 (307.44) - 1,086.61
Provision for employee benefits 1,214.87 51.02 - 1,265.89
Lease liabilities 39.00 (B1.13) - 7.87
MAT credit entitlement - 1 139.18 139.18
Others (170.82) ' (26.91) - (197.73)
Total 1,913.69 (565.32) 140.17 1,488.54

31 March 2021

Particulars Balance as at Recognised in Recognised in OCI Balance as at

1 April 2020 | Statement of Profit | during the year 31 March 2021

or Loss during the
year

Investments at fair value through OCI 1.42 , - (31.15) (29.73)
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) 51.37 - (35.90) 15.47
Property, plant and equipment (373.98) (232.74) - (606.72)
Loss allowance on other financial assets 57.57 ' - - 57.57
Loss allowance on trade receivables 1,688.07 (294.02) - 1,394.05
Provision for employee benefits 931.23 283.64 - 1,214.87
Lease liabilities 58.84 (19.84) - 39.00
Others (145.20) (25.62) - (170.82)
Total 2,269.32 (288.58) 1,913.69
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Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into

equity shares.

i. Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic and diluted earnings

ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Opening balance of equity's shares

Effect of share options exercised

Weighted average number of shares for basic EPS

Effect of dilution:

Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of employees stock options

Weighted average number of shares for diluted EPS

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
15,599.25 11,759.43
15,599.25 11,759.43

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

6,93,06,005 6,90,89,813
1.15,752 1,00.973

6,94,21,757 6,91,90,786
4,67,801 7,02,162
6,98,89,558 6,98,92,948

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

INR INR
22.47 17.00
2232 16.82
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35 Share-based payment arrangements:
A. Description of share-based payment arrangements
i. Share option programmes (equity-settled)

The Company established Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) in the year 2014-15, administered through a new Trust ‘Newgen ESOP Trust'. The
maximum numbers of shares to be issued under this Scheme shall be limited to 3,783,800 equity shares of the Company. Pursuant to the scheme, during the year 2014-15, the Company
has granted 3,653,525 options at an exercise price of INR 63 per option, to the employees of the Company. Further, during the year 2017-18 grant of options 353,000, 130,000, and
79,250 through grant II, [T and IV on 1 Jul 2017, 1 Sep 2017 and ! Oct 2017 respectively under the same scheme and with same vesting conditions was made. During the year 2020-21,
the Company has granted 2,33,000 options under Newgen ESOP 2014 on 25 March 2021.Under the terms of the plans, these options are vested on a graded vesting basis over a
maximum period of four years from the date of grant and are to be exercised either in part(s) or full, within a maximum period of five from the date of last vesting.

During the year 2020-21, the Company has established Newgen Software Technologies Restricted Stock Units Scheme — 2021 (Newgen RSU — 2021), administered through a new trust
“"Newgen RSU Trust" The maximum numbers of shares to be issued under this Scheme shall be limited to 14,00,000 equity shares of the Company. During the year 2021-22, the
Company has granted 12,11,500 and 1,73,500 options through grant I and II respectively under this scheme at an exercise price of INR 10 per option, to the employees of the Company.
Under the terms of the scheme, these options are vested on a graded vesting basis over a maximum period of five years from the date of grant and are to be exercised either in part(s) or
full, within a maximum period of five from the date of last vesting.

Particulars Newgen ESOP 2014  |Newgen RSU —2021
Maximum number of shares under the plan 37.83,800 14,00,000
Methad of settl {cash/equity) Equity Cash/ Equity
Vesting period (maximum) 4 years 5 years
1 year - 10% atthe end of 3rd year -
2 year - 20% 50%
3year- 30% at the end of 5th year -
4year-40% 50%

Exercise period from the date of vesting (maximumy)

S year from last vesting

S year from last vesting

Vesting conditions

Service period

Service period &

Performance based

Newgen ESOP trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust are netted off from the total share capital, Consequently, all
the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company, except for profit / los<'on issue of shares to the employees and dividend
received by trust which are directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve. :

Following table represents general terms of the grants for the ESOP outstanding as on 31 March 2022,

ESOP schemes Grant Date No. of Options |  Exercise Price Weighted Vesting Period
Outstanding average
remaining life
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Jan-2015 2,49,326 INR 63.00 1.75 4 years
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Jul-2017 69,486 INR 63.00 4.25 4 years
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Sep-2017 60,600 INR 63.00 442 4 years
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Qct-2017 19,800 INR 63.00 4.50 4 years
Newgen Employees Stock Option Sct 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 25-Mar-2021 2,04,000 INR 63.00 7.99 4 years
Following table represents general terms of the grants for the RSU ling as on 31 March 2022.
ESOP schemes Grant Date No. of Options | Exercise Price Weighted Vesting Period
Outstanding average
Newgen Software Technologies Restricted Stock Units Scheme — 2021 (Newgen 23-Dec-2021 11,86,500 INR 10,00 9.73 5 years
)
Newgen Software Technologies Restricted Stock Units Scheme — 2021 (Newgen 2-Mar-2022 1,73,500 INR 10.00 9.93 S years
RSU - 2021)

B. Measnrement of fair values

i. Equity-settled share-based payment arr

The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes formula. The fair value of options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair
values of the equity-settled share based payment plans are as follows:

Particulars Newgen Newgen Newgen
ESOP 2014 RSU-2021 RSU -2021 Grant
Grant-V Grant - I -11
Date of grant 25-Mar-2021 23-Dec-2021 2-Mar-2022
Fair value of options at grant date 230.95 554,29 470.62
Share price at grant date 280.50 583.30 499.40
Exercise price 63.00 10.00 10.00
Expected volatility (weighted-average) 46.49% 44.91% 44.8%
Expected life (weighted age) 6 years 6.5 years 6.5 years
Expected dividends 0.50% 0.60% 0.70%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 5.80%-6.19% | 5.29%-6.39% 5.60% - 6.69%
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C. Reconciliation of outstanding share options
The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options under the share option programmes were as follows.

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) Number of  Weighted average Number of  Weighted average
options exercise price options exercise price

31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2021

Options ding as at the beginning of the year 9,01,406 INR 63.00 . 8,84,598 INR 63.00
Add: Options granted during the year - INR 63.00 2,33,000 -
Less: Options lapsed during the year 64,008 - - INR 63.00
Less: Options exercised during the year 2,34,186 INR 63.00 2.16,192 INR 63.00
Options outstanding as at the year end 6,03,212 INR 63.00 9.01,406 INR 63.00
Exercisable as at year end 4,20,012 4,89,498

Weighted - average contractual life 4,51 years 5.20 years

Newgen Software Technologies Restricted Stock Units Scheme — 2021 (Newgen RSU - 2021) Number of  Weighted average Number of  Weighted average

options exercise price options exercise price

31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2021

Options ding as at the beginning of the year - INR 10.00 - -
Add: Options granted during the year 13,85,000 INR 10.00 - -
Less: Options lapsed during the year 25,000 INR 10.00 - -
Less: Options exercised during the year - INR 10.00 - -
Options outstanding as at the year end 13,60,000 INR 10.00 - -
Exercisable as at year end -

Weighted - average contractual life 9.76 years

D. Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

For details on the employee benefits expense, refer note 29
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36 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

The Company is committed to operationally, technically and financially support the operations of its certain subsidiary companies.

37 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises
should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum.

Disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 based on information received and available with the

Company.
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Principal Amount* 382.62 -

Interest due thereon at the end of the accounting year .

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16,0f the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year .

the amount of interest due and payable for the year for delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006).

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year .

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years untill such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 - -
of MSMED Act , 2006.

* Includes INR 307.35 lakhs on account of capital creditor

38 After the reporting date the following dividend were proposed by the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of shareholders at Annual General Meeting; Accordingly,
the dividends have not been recognised as liabilities.

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Final dividend of INR 4.50 per share (31 March 2021: INR 3.50/- per share) 3,148.01 2,448.45

39 Utilisation of Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the following is the detail of CSR expenses incurred by the Company: Gross amount required to be spent by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2022 is INR 245.65 lakhs as approved by the board of directors (previous year INR. 201.09 lakhs). Amount spent during the year ended 31

March 2022:

Particulars Amount spent during | shortfall at the end | Total of previous [Reason for shortfall
the vear of year vear shortfall

i) For construction / acquisition of any asset ' . . _ NA

ii) For purpose other than (i) above* 248.85 - - NA

*The areas for CSR activities are promoting education, health care, sanitation, digital literacy and livelihood enhancement . The funds were primarily utilized through the
year on the activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013,

40 The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F
of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company has got the updated
documentation for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year. The management is of the opinion that its international
transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of
provision for taxation. '
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Details of current Investments (refer note 10)

Number of units

Amount in lakhs

Particulars as at as at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Investment in mutual funds -FVTPL
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund -Growth-Regular Plan 4,04,905.14 1,94,248.97 661.29 639.68
Bharat bonds ETF 20,000.00 20,000.00 240.62 226.87
Aditya Birla Liquid Fund Direct plan Growth option 1,70,596.77 4,72,293.51 585.36 1,565.81
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund Growth - 4,92,315.98 - 1,500.27
HDFC Liquid Fund -Direct Growth 7,622.95 7,622.95 319.00 308.39
IDFC Cash Fund - Growth- Direct Plan - 20,704.45 - 514.71
Axis Money Market Fund 83,644.96 - 963.43 -
Investment in government bonds-FYTOCI
8.40% IRFC 15YRS SR2A 18022029 (18-Feb-2029) 40,000.00 40,000.00 484.14 494,26
7.35% NHAI LTD Tax free Bond 15YRS SR2A Annual (11-Jan-2031) 2,15,000.00 45,000.00 2,543.76 539.85
8.54% PFC Tax free Bonds (Series 2A) 16/11/2028 16,500.00 16,500.00 199.74 204,13
7.04% IRFC Bond 03/03/2026 15.00 15.00 162.00 164.73
8.3% NHAI Tax free Bonds 25/01/2027 30,000.00 30,000.00 344.85 352.97
8.63% IRFC Bonds 26/03/2029 22',000.00 22,000.00 269.72 275.62
8.30% IRFC Bonds 23/02/2027 87,000.00 87,000.00 994.49 1,016.65
8.20% NHAI Bonds 25/01/2022 - 50,000.00 - 513.51
7.34% IRFC Bonds 19/02/2028 1,30,000.00 - 1,469.36 -

9,237.76 8,317.46
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42 Related party transactions

A. List of subsidiaries

Set out below is the list of subsidiaries:

Country of Ownership interest

Name of the company incorporation 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Newgen Software Inc. United States of America 100% 100%
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd. Singapore 100% 100%
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limited Canada 100% 100%
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd, United Kingdom 100% 100%
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd. Australia 100% 100%
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited India 100% 100%
Number Theory Software Private Limited* India 100% -

The principal place of business of all the entities listed above is the same as the respective country of incorporation.
The company acquired control of Number Theory Software Private Limited during the year on 28 January 2022,

B. Transactions with Key Management Personnel

A number of key management personnel, or their related parties hold positions in other entities that result in them having control or significant influence
over those entities.

Compensation of the Company's key managerial personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post - employment defined benefit
plan(see note 29)

Executive officers also participate in the Company’s share option plan as per the conditions laid down in that scheme (see note 29 and note 35).

List of key management personnel and their relatives

Diwakar Nigam - Managing Director

T.S. Varadarajan - Whole Time Director

Priyadarshini Nigam - Whole Time Director

Arun Kumar Gupta - Chief Financial Officer

Virender Jeet - Chief Executive Officer

Surender Jeet Raj - Senior Vice President (HR/Operations)

Tarun Nandwani - Chief Operating Officer

Usha Varadarajan - Relative of Whole Time Director - T.S. Varadarajan
Aman Mourya- Company Secretary

List of non-executive and independent directors
Kaushik Dutta - Independent Director

Saurabh Srivastava - Independent Director
Subramaniam R Iyer - Independent Director
Padmaja Krishnan - Independent Director

Key igement personnel comy ti
Transaction value Balance payable
For the year ended For the year ended As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus* 1,737.36 1,236.05 786.29 675.20
Diwakar Nigam 370.7} 275.03 160.92 154.62
T.S. Varadarajan 195.95 148.70 96.55 91.61
Priyadarshini Nigam 113.29 88.20 64.37 60.25
Arun Kumar Gupta 184.53 87.64 48.16 41.33
Virender Jeet 291.06 268.40 160.53 118.78
Surender Jeet Raj 304.98 177.67 129.15 112.65
Tarun Nandwani 249.09 173.04 126.61 94.68
Aman Mourya 27.74 17.38 - 1.27

Dividend paid (excluding dividend distribution tax) 1,379.87 935.81 - -
Diwakar Nigam 548.60 369.45 - -
T.S. Varadarajan 525.33 300.19 - -
Priyadarshini Nigam 229.94 159.38 - -
Arun Kumar Gupta 1.02 1.10 - -
Virender Jeet 10.37 4.98 - -
Surender Jeet Raj 8.73 4.99 - -
Tarun Nandwani 9.24 5.14 - -
Usha Varadarajan 46.63 90.57 - -
Aman Mourya 0.01 0.03 - -
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Transaction value Balance payable
For the year ended For the year ended As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Share-based payments 161.34 99.83 - -

Arun Kumar Gupta 59.60 - - -

Virender Jeet - 71.72 - -

Surender Jeet Raj 76.60 - - -

Tarun Nandwani 15.24 19.75 - -

Aman Mourya 9.89 2.37

*It includes share-based payments and commission but excludes provision for gratuity and compensated absences, as these are determined on the basis of
actuarial valuation for the Company as a whole.

Sitting fees to independent director 56.00 50.00 - -
Kaushik Dutta 17.00 15.00 - -
Saurabh Srivastava 14.00 14.00 - -
Subramaniam R lyer 17.00 . 15.00 - -
Padmaja Krishnan 8.00 . 6.00 - -
Commission to independent director 107.28 95.79 96.55 88.60
Kaushik Dutta 26.82 23.95 24,14 22,15
Saurabh Srivastava 26.82 2395 24.14 22.15
Subramaniam R Iyer 26.82 23.95 24.14 22.15
Padmaja Krishnan 26.82 2395 24.14 22.15

C. Related party transactions other than those with key management personnel

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end
are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties. This assessment is undertaken at each reporting period.

Transaction value Balance receivable
For the year ended For the year ended As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sale of products and services*
Subsidiaries
Newgen Software Inc., USA 14,538.16 14,740.62 - 731.70
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd. 4,639.68 4,099.33 - 0.03
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limited 425.19 423.87 - 1.58
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. 1,206.23 1,019.49 - 3.17
* It includes unbilled revenues as follows:
Unbilled revenue
Newgen Software Inc., USA 2,266.46 1,085.72 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd. 1,211.13 699.26 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limited 11.32 115.09 - -
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. 268.64 283.85 - -
Sale of services-back office support cost #
Subsidiaries
Newgen Software Inc., USA 168.81 145.70 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd. 36.79 37.30 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limited 19.17 20.23 - 4.60
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. 11.07 11.33 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd. 8.95 6.40 - -
# It includes unbilled revenues as follows:
Unbilled revenue
Newgen Software Inc., USA 10.54 17.67
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd. 1.41 4.70
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limited 0.98 4.02
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. 0.18 1.88
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd. 0.35 0.95
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Expense-Outsourced technical services @
Subsidiaries

Newgen Software Inc., USA

Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd.

Expense-Marketing support services@
Subsidiary
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd.

@ It includes unbilled payable as follows:
Unbilled payable

Newgen Software Inc., USA
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd.
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd.

Rent expense
Subsidiary
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited

Inter-Company Deposit Given and Interest thereon
Subsidiary
Number Theory Software Private Limited

Paid on behalf of
Subsidiary
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd.
Number Theory Software Private Limited

Bank Guarantee issued on behalf of
Subsidiary
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd.

Recovered from

Subsidiary
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd.

Investment in subsidiaries - share based payment
Newgen Software Inc., USA
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd.
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limited
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd.
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd.
Number Theory Software Private Limited

D. Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiary Company

Newgen Software Inc. USA

Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limited
Newgen Software Technologies Pte, Ltd.
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd.
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd.
Number Theory Software Private Limited

Transaction value

Balance receivable

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

As at As at
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

2874.09
357.63

2,401.65
115.11

634.53 511.66

520.84 346.00
57.41 19.40
181.75 97.89

344.50 0.00

2.56 1.25

3.14

0.00 65.71

1.25 0.00
0.00 0.22

37.70 1.99
1.74 0.70
2.34 -
4.12 -
6.87 -
6.75 -

344,50

27.28

As at As at
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

567.79
58.86
119.18
46.50
497.92
182.86
1,313.16

530.09
56.52
117.44
46.50
491.05
178.74

2,786.27

1,420.34
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43 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

e

Carrying amount Fair value
31 March 2022 Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in mutual funds 10 2,769.70 - - 2,769.70 2,769.70 - - 2,769.70
Investments in bonds ) 10 - 6,468.06 . - 6,468.06 6,468.06 - - 6,468.06
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other non-current financial asset 7 - - 10,087.33 10,087.33 - - - -
Trade receivables : 11 - - 18,864.30 18,864.30 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 12 - - 5,379.36 5,379.36 - - - -
Other bank balances 13 - - 17,236.15 17,236.15
Loans 14 - - 365.75 365.75 - - - -
Other financial assets 15 - - 12.537.67 12,537.67 - - - -
2.769.70 6,468.06 64.470.56 73,708.32 9,237.76 - ~ 9.237.76
Financial liabilities ' :
Financial liabilitics not measured at fair value
Lease liabilities 19 - - 1,725.48 1,725.48 - - - -
Borrowings 20 - - 618.73 618.73 - - - -
Trade payables 22 - - 4,099.90 4,099.90 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - 23 - - - - 3,767.43 3,767.43 - - .- -
- - 10,211.53 10,211.53 - - - -
Carrying amount Fair value
31 March 2021 Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value .
Investments in debt mutual funds 10 4,755.74 - - 4,755.74 475574 =~ - - 4,755.74
Investments in bonds 10 - 3,561.72 - 3,561.72 3,561.72 - - 3,561.72
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other non-current financial asset 7 - - 3,684.13 3,684.13 - - - -
Trade receivables 11 - - 17,541.07 17,541.07 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 12 - - 2,869.61 2,869.61 - - - -
Other bank balances 13 - - 17,003.77 17,003.77
Loans 14 - - 9.04 9.04 - - - -
Other financial assets 15 - - 9,967.56 9,967.56 - - - -
4,755.74==-=.. 3,561.72 51,075.18 59,392.64 8,317.46 - - 8,317.46
S
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Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long-term maturities of finance lease obligations (secured) 19
Trade payables 22
Other financial liabilities 23

- - 1,567.06 1,567.06 -
- - 2,387.20 2,387.20 -
- - - 431947 4,319.47 -

- - 8,273.73 8.273.73 -

The fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other current financial assets, current borrowings, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts, due to their short-term nature. Fair value of bank deposits included in non-current other financial assets are equivalent to their carrying amount, as the interest rate on them is equivalent to

market rate.

B. Measurement of fair values

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable inputs
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

Particulars Fair value |Valuation technique Significant Inter-relationship between
hierarchy unobservable |unobservable inputs and fair
inputs value measurement
Financial assets measured at FVTPL B B o .
Investments in mutual funds Level 1 Market valuation technique: Investments traded in active markets ar¢ determined{Not applicable [Not applicable "
by reference to quotes from the financial institutions; for example: Net asset value
(NAYV) for investments in mutual funds declared by mutual fund house, quoted
price of equity shares in the stock exchange etc.
Financial assets measured at FYTOCI
Investments in bonds Level 1 Market valuation technique: The fair value of bonds is based on direct and market|Not applicable |Not applicable _
observable inputs.
Financial liabilities measured at Amortised cost
Long term borrowings Level 2 Discounted cash flow: The valuation model considers the present value of Not applicable |Not applicable
Short term borrowings : Level 2 expected payment, discounted using a risk adjusted discount rate.

There have been no transfers in either direction for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

C. Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

i. Risk management framework

The Company's board of directors has framed a Risk Management Policy and plan for enabling the Company to identify el of risk as contemplated by the provisions
of the Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company's audit committee oversees how monitors compli with the Ci *s risk policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy

of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises partially from
the Company's receivables from customers, loans and investment in debt securities. The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure, The
Company has credit policies in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing bisis.

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure, The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting was:

Particulars Asat ) Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Other financials assets-non current 10,087.33 3,684.13
Investments 9,237.76 8,317.46
Trade receivables 18.,864.30 17,541.07
Loans 365.75 9.04
Cash and cash equivalents 5,379.36 2,869.61
Other bank balances 17,236.15 17,003.77
Other financials assets-current 12,537.67 9,967.56

73,708.32 59,392.64

To cater to the credit risk for investments in mutual funds and bonds, only high rated mutual funds/bonds are accepted.

The Company has given security deposits to vendors for rental deposits for office properties, securing services from them, government departments. The Company does not
expect any default from these parties and accordingly the risk of default is negligible or nil.

Trade receivables and unbilled revenues are typically unsecured and derived from revenue eamed from customers primarily located in India, USA, EMEA and APAC.

Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approval, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credit term in normal course ofbusiness. Credit limits are established for each customers and received quarterly. Any sales/services exceeding
these limits require approval from the risk management committee.

The Company establishes an altowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivables. The management uses a simplified approach
for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit
characteristics, including whether they are an individual or legal entity, industry and existence of previous financial difficulties, if any.

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The management establishes an
allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows
— Carryingamount

Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
India 6,739.96 6,086,63
USA 68.15 770.54
EMEA 10,061.11 8,586.97
APAC 1,995.08 2,096.93
18,864.30 17,541.07
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The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables from individual customers:

As at 31 March 2022 Gross carrying amount Weighted- average Loss allowance
loss rate
0-3 months past due 16,634.55 3.28% 545.22
3-6 months past due 1,582.58 11.62% 183.89
6-9 months past due 1,038.84 25.99% 269.98
9-12 months past due 496.85 45.89% 227.99
12-15 months past due 586.03 63.85% 374.16
15-18 months past due 208.22 78.94% 164.36
18-21 months past due 257.41 89.38% 230,07
21-24 months past due 174.07 87.94% 153.08
above 24 months past due 1,019.86 96.62% : 985.36
21,998.41 3,134.11
As at 31 March 2021 Gross carrying amount Weighted- average Loss allowance
loss rate
0-3 months past due 16,097.90 2.89% 465.75
3-6 months past due 614.74 10.05% 61.80
6-9 months past due 647.86 21.86% 141.60
9-12 months past due 411.58 36.89% 151.85
12-15 months past due 666.53 50.64% 337.52
15-18 months past due 459.03 56.55% 259.57
18-21 months past due 153.09 65.94% 100.94
21-24 months past due 34.49 72.84% 25.12
above 24 months past due 2.445.22 100.00% 2,445.22
21,530.45 3,989.38
Ageing for expected credit loss has been considered from invoice date
Balance as at 1 April 2020 W
Impairment loss recognised 2,149.62
Amounts written off 2,991.03
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,989.38
Impairment loss recognised 1,531.11
Amounts written off 2,386.38
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,134.11

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of i:iefault and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Debt securities

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing anly in liquid debt securities and only with counterparties that have a credit rating AA to AAA from renowned
rating agencies.

The Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ratings. For its investment in bonds, Company also reviews changes in government bond
yields together with available press and regulatory information about issuers

The exposure to credit risk for debt securities at FVTOCI and at FVTPL is as follows:-
Net carrving amount

Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2021
India 9,237.76 8317.45
9,237.76 8,317.45

Basis experienced credit judgement, no risk of loss is indicative on Company's investment in mutual funds and government bonds.

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of INR 5,379.36 lakhs at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 2,869.71 lakhs) and other bank balances of INR 17,236.15
lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 17,003.77 lakhs). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are rated
AA- to AAA, based on renowned rating agencies.

163



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation.

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity include cash and bank balances, deposits, undrawn borrowings and cash flow from operating activities. As at 31 March 2022,
the Company had a working capital of INR 45,619.08 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 39,408.60 lakhs) including cash and cash equivalent of INR 5,379.36 lakhs (31 March
2021: INR 2,869.61 lakhs), other bank balances of INR 17,236.15 lakhs ( 31 March 2021: 17,003.77 lakhs) and current investments of INR 9,237.76 lakhs (31 March 2021:
INR 8,317.46 lakhs).

Consequently, the Company believes its revenue, along with proceeds from financing activities will continue to provide the necessary funds to cover its short term liquidity
needs. In addition, the Company projects cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet liquidity requirement.

In addition, the Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of tlie reporting year

Particulars Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 years 2-5years More than §
less years

As at 31 March 2022 10,206.00 - 10,206.00

Asat 31 March 2021 10,553.00 - 10,553.00 - - -

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest
payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2022 Carrying Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 years 2-5years More than §
amount less years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Finance lease obligations (including current maturities) 1,725.48 6,812.39 64.47 397.38 475.46 739.14 5,135.94
Borrowings 618.73 702.73 - 23424 234.24 23425 -
Unpaid dividends 6.91 6.91 6.91 - - - -
Employee related payables 3,441.95 3,441.95 280.16 3,061.83 99.96 - -
Trade and other payables 4,099.90 4,099.90 2,513.13 1,586.77 - - -
Earnest money deposits 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 - - -
Payable for capital assets 317.57 317.57 - 317.57 - - -
Total 10,211.54 15,382.45 2,864.67 5,598.79 809.66 973.39 5,135.94

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2021 Carrying Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 years 2-5years  More than §
amount less years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Finance lease obligations (including current maturities) 1,567.06 6,703.87 99.15 456.13 283.55 663.24 5,201.79
Unpaid dividends 3 3.77 3.77 - - - -
Employee related payables 4,169.87 4,169.87 2,533.13 1,540.59 96.16 - -
Trade and other payables 2,387.20 2,387.20 2,387.20 - - - -
Payable in respect of retention money 127.82 127.82 - 127.82 - - -
Earnest money deposits 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 - - -
Payable for capital assets 17.01 17.01 - 17.00 - - -
Total 8.273.73 13,410.54 5,023.25 2,142.54 379.70 663.24 5.201.79

Interest payment on variable interest rate loan in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the reporting dates and these amount may change as market interest

changes
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the company’s income or the value of its holdings
of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. We
are exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of our investments. Thus, our exposure to market risk is a function
of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign curreficy. The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure
in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

’ L. Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company is exposed to
currency risk on account of its borrowings, receivables and other payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.

The Management endeavours to minimize economic and transactional exposures arising from currency movements against the US Dollar, Euro, Great Britain Pound, Canadian
dollar, United Arab Emirates Dhiram, Saudi Riyal, Singapore dollar, Australian dollar and Malaysian Ringgit making all the US dollar payments through EEFC account for
avoiding exchange risk. The Company manages the risk by netting off naturally-occurring opposiu:e exposures wherever possible, and then dealing with any material residual
foreign currency exchange risks if any.

The Company has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risks involved in foreign exchange transactions and has booked 23 forward contracts for USD
2.5 million per month dusing the period from April 2021 to March 2022. The hedging gain of INR 638.95 lakhs is on account of mark to market gain (realised gain is 427.23 lakhs
and unrealised gain is 211.72 lakhs) on foreign exchange forward contracts which do not qualify for hedge accounting as per Ind As-109, have been recognized in the profit and
loss account in the financial statement for the period ended 31 March 2022.

Exposure to currency risk

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are as below:

31 March 2022 31 March 202}
R Amount in foreign [ Amount in local | Amount in foreign | Amount in local
Particulars Currency
currency currency currency currency
(lakhs) (lakhs) (lakhs) (lakhs)

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables*
UsD 188.12 14,278.16 167.49 -~ 1225557
AED 5.61 115.94 4.05 80.62
CAD - - 0.47 27.12
EUR - - 1.21 104.02
GBP 0.64 63.58 0.11 11.00
SAR 2.08 42.00 - -
SGD - - 0.01 0.41
MYR 2.02 36.39 9.80 172.99

Bank balance-Dubati AED 233 48.10 7.15 142.43

Bank balance-EEFC USD 46,03 3,493.93 16.43 1,202.38

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
USD (35.01) (2,606.45) (17.74) (1,277.36)
SGD (1.35) (75.82) (0.86) (47.04)
SAR™ (1.24) (24.88) - -
EURO (0.04) (3.02) - -
AUD (3.19) (181.75) (1.76) (97.89)
AED (1.29) (26.33) - -

* gross of loss allowance
Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening / weakening of the Indian Rupee against US Dollar, Euro, Great Britain Pound, Canadian dollar, United Arab Emirates Dhiram, Saudi Riyal,
Singapore Dollar, Australian Dollar and Malaysian Ringgit at reporting date would have affected thle measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies and
affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of
forecast sales and purchases.

For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 Mareh 2021

Effect in Lakhs of INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
1 % movement )
USD 151.15 (151.15) 121.60 (121.60)
EURI (0.03) 0.03 1.04 (1.04)
GBP1 0.64 (0.64) 0.11 0.11)
CADI - - 0.27 (0.27)
SGD1 (0.76) 0.76 (0.46) 0.46
AEDI 137 (1.37) 2.23 (2.23)
SARI 0.17 (0.17) - -
MYRI 0.36 (0.36) 1.73 (1.73)
AUDI (1.82) 1.82 (0.98) 0.98
151.10 (151.10) // &E{W\a\ 125.54 (125.54)
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

IL. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest
bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments
will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

a) Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to both fair value interest rate risk as well as cash flow interest rate risk arising both on short-term and long-term floating rate instruments.
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:
Nominal amount in INR
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 34,509.13 24,017.21
Financial liabilities 2,344.20 1,567.06
Total 36,853.33 25,584.27

There is no balance in variable rate instruments

b) Sensitivity analysis

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company accounts for investments in government and other bonds as fair value through other comprehensive income. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the

reporting date would have impact on equity.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity by INR 42.04 lakhs after tax (31 March
2021: INR 23.15 lakhs).

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant,

There is no variable rate linked instrument and therefore, there is no cash flow sensitivity.

Market price risk

a) Exposure

The Company's exposure to mutual funds and bonds price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through profit
and loss and at fair value through other comprehensive income respectively.

To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the
Company.

b)Sensitivity analysis

Company is having investment in mutual funds, government bonds, other bonds and investment in subsidiaries.

For such investments classified at Fair value through other comprehensive income, a 2% increase in their fair value at the reporting date would have increased equity by
INR 84.08 lakhs after tax (31 March, 2021: INR 46.30 lakhs ). An equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased equity by INR 84.08 lakhs after tax (31
March, 2021: INR 46.30 lakhs )

For such investments classified at Fair value through profit or loss, the impact of a 2% increase in their fair value at the reporting date on profit or loss would have been an
increase of INR 36.01 lakhs after tax (31 March, 2021: INR 61.82 lakhs ). An equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased profit or loss by INR 36.01
lakhs after tax (31 March, 2021: INR 61.82 lakhs )
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44 Capital Management
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it as and when required. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may pay
dividend or repay debs, raise new debt or issue new shares. No major changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt’ to 'adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities comprising
interest bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity

The Company capital consists of equity attributable to equity holders that includes equity share capital, retained earnings and long term borrowings.

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total liabilities 2,34420 1,567.06
Less: Cash & Cash equivalent 5.379.36 2.869.61
Adjusted net debt (a) (3,035.16) (1,302.55)
Total equity (b) 76.894.52 63.349.09
Total equity and net debt (a+b) =c¢ 73,859.36 62.046.55
Capital gearing ratio (a/c) -4.11% -2.10%

As a part of its capital management policy the Company ensures compliance with all covenants and other capital requirements related to its contractual
obligations.
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45 Segment reporting
A. Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company's board of directors have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Makers (CODM) since they are responsible for all major decisions in respect of
allocation of resources and assessment of the performance on the basis of the internal reports/ inf:'onnmion provided by functional heads. The board examines the
performance of the Company based on such internal reports which are based on operations in various geographies and accordingly, have identified the following reportable

« India

« Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA)

« Asia Pacific and Australia (APAC)

* United States of America (USA)

B. Information about reportable segments

. Reportable segments
Particulars
India EMEA APAC USA Total Segment

Revenue
External revenue 21,446.17 23,886.09 9,878.34 15,867.97 71,078.57
Inter-segment revenue - - - - -
Total Segment Revenue 21,446.17 23,886.09 9,878.34 15,867.97 71,078.57
Segment profit/(loss) before income tax 4,203.26 8,116.39 3,157.92 2,914.09 18,391.66
Segment assets 11,189.09 13,633.07 5,082.23 4,927.68 34,832.07
Segment liabilities - 5,890.47 9,047.26 2,070.61 2,375.89 19,384.23
Capital expenditure during the year 1,410.12 - - - 1,410.12
Year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars Reportable segments

India . EMEA APAC USA Total Segment
Revenue
External revenue 19,723.17 16,770.68 8,453.08 16,092.54 61,039.47
Inter-segment revenue - - - - -
Total Segment Revenue 19,723.17 16,770.68 8,453.08 16,092.54 61,039.47
Segment profit before income tax 4,545.60 4,963.27 3,509.41 5,250.09 ' 18,268.37
Segment assets 9,245.75 11,635.05 4,304.78 4,023.53 29,209.11
Segment liabilities 5,591.38 6,634.20 1,987.77 2,209.21 16,422.56
Capital expenditure during the year 9,850.16 - - - 9,850.16
C. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS
Par.liculars For the year ended 31  For the year ended
March 2022 31 March 2021

(a) Revenue

Total revenue for reportable segments 71,078.57 61,039.47

Elimination of inter-segment revenue - -

Total revenue 71,078.57 61,039.47

(b) Profit/ (loss) before tax
Total profit before tax for reportable segments 18,391.66 18,268.37

Unallocated amounts: .

- Unallocated income 2,993.38 1,430.95
- Other corporate expenses 2,129.91 2,730.19

Total profit before tax from operations 19,255.13 16,969.13

(¢) Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 34,832.07 29,209.11

Other unallocated amounts 65.918.10 55,087.77
Total assets 1,00,750.17 84,296.88

(d) Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 19,384.23 16,422.56

Other unallocated amounts 4,471.42 4,525.23
Total liabilities 23,855.65 20,947.79

D. Information about major customers
No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,
E. Unallocated assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses

Certain assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are not specifically allocable to individual segments as the underlying services are used interchangeably. The Company
believes that it is not practicable to provide segment disclosures relating to such assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and accordingly such’ assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses are separately disclosed as ‘unallocated’.

F. The Company, during the year ended 31 March 2022, changed the segment classification for one gleography which was earlier reported as part of Australia segment, has
been reclassed in APAC segment. Impact of this change is immaterial for operating results of both the segments. Prior perind figures have also been restated to conform the
current period composition of the operating segments.
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46. Ratios as per Schedule III requirements

Ratio Numerator Denominator Unit | 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 % variance _ Reason for variance
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities Times 3.42 3.31 3.2%% -
Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity Times 0.03 0.02 23.24% -
(refer note 1 below)
Debt Service Earnings for debt service = Net Debt service Times 28.04 1.85 1415.00% Increase due to zero
Coverage ratio profit after taxes + Non-cash (refer note 3 below) borrowings from bank
operating expenses during the year

(refer note 2 below)

Return on Net Profits after taxes — Preference  Average Shareholder’s Equity % 22.25% 2027% = 9.76% -

Equity ratio Dividend

Inventory Turnover Cost of goods sold Average Inventory Times NA NA NA Not applicable for the

ratio business of the company

Trade Receivable  Net credit sales = Gross credit sales - Average Trade Receivable Times 3.84 291 31.89%  Increase due to increase in

Turnover Ratio sales return sales and better

(refer note 4 below) management of its

collection as compared to
previous year

Trade Payable Net credit purchases = Gross credit ~ Average Trade Payables Times NA NA NA Not applicable for the

Turnover Ratio purchases - purchase return business of the company

Net Capital Net sales = Total sales - sales return Working capital = Current assets—  Times 1.56 1.55 0.29% -

Turnover Ratio Current liabilities

Net Profit ratio Net Profit % 21.95% 1927%  13.92% -

Net sales = Total sales - sales return

Return on Capital  Eamings before interest and taxes Capital Employed % 23.36% 27.87% -16.18% -

Employed (refer note 5 below) (refer note 6 below)

Return on Interest (Finance Income) Average Investment % 4.00% 6.17% -3521%  Decrease due to increased

Investment investment in liquid funds
and mark to market loss
in bonds at the end of the
year

Notes:

1. Total debts consists of borrowings and lease liabilities.

2. Eaming available for debt services=profit for the year + depreciation, amortization and impairment + finance cost + provision for doubtfu! debts + share based payment to
employees + non cash charges.
3. Debt service = Interest + payment for lease liabilities + principal repayments.

4. Credit sales= Total Revenue + opening unbilled revenue - closing unbilled revenue - opening deferred revenue + closing deferred revenue.
5. Earnings before interest and taxes = profit before tax + finance cost - other income

6. Capital Employed = Average tangible net worth + Total debt + Deferred tax.

7. Average is calculated on the basis of opening and closing balances.

Schedule I1I require explanation where the change in the ratio is more than 25% as compared to the preceding year. Since there are only three instances where the change is more than
is given only for the said ratios.

25% i.e. Debt Service Coverage ratio , Trade receivable turnover ratio and Return on In hence
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47 Asat31 March 2022, the Company has gross foreign currency receivables amounting to INR 14,532.92 lakhs (previous year INR 12,651.72 lakhs). Out of these receivables,

INR 2036.07 lakhs (previous year INR 492.42 lakhs) is outstanding for more than 9 months. As per circular RBI/2019-20/206 A. P. (DIR series) circular no. 27 , receipt for
export goods should be realized within a period of 9 months from the date of export. The Company must file extension with AD Bank & as per the requirements of circular
no. RBI/2015-16/395 A. P. (DIR series) Circular no. 68 dated May12, 2016, in one calendar year, the Company is allowed to seek extension for an amount equivalent to 10%
of the average export collection of the last 3 years only and pursuant to the same, the company has applied for an extension of all the foreign currency receivables outstanding
for more than 9 months. The management is of the view that the Company will be able to obtain approvals from the authorities for realizing such funds beyond the stipulated
timeline without levy of any penalties as it had bonafide reasons that caused the delays in realization.

48 Other statutory informations
i.  The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.
ii  The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
iii  The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
iv. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
v The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
vi The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
vii The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
viii The company has sanctioned working capital amounts from banks on the basis of security of Trade Receivables and Fixed Deposits. The quarterly returns being filed by
company with banks are in line with the books of accounts
49 Previous period's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current period's classification/disclosure.

As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Newgen Software Technologies Limited
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